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Vision Statement

» We will be the leading institution for providing financial assistance for the
development and support of Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) in Pakistan.

» We will respond to the needs of Small and Medium Enterprises by providing
them with necessary financial assistance and business support services in the form
of short to long term funds.

» Will, through support of SME sectot, conttibute to the growth of local
entrepreneurs, develop export markets and provide employment opportunities in
the country.
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Mission Statement

»  To support and develop SME sector by providing necessaty financial and technical
assistance on a sustainable basis.

» To enable SME sector to contribute to economic development through value
addition and exports, promote entrepreneurship and create employment
opportunities.
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President’s Message

It is my pleasure to present the 19th Annual Report of SME Bank for the year ended December 31,
2020.

The wotld has changed after global crisis of the COVID-19 pandemic. The social, political, economic,
and financial structure of the whole world has been massively disturbed. Country-wide lockdowns
take effect across the world including Pakistan, businesses and other companies are coming under
increasing financial strain. In order to ensure that liquidity issues do not translate into solvency issues,
from time to time SBP has taken different measures to mitigate the impact of COVID-19 on economic
growth by improving access to credit and easing certain regulatory controls in the financial sector. This
situation affects borrower’s repayment capacity that will cause substantial increase in impairment of
advances even though SBP has taken different measures to reduce the impact by deferment in payment
of principle up to one year and also by providing facility of restructuring/rescheduling of performing
advances. The spread of COVID-19 World over posing severe challenges to economic development.

SME Bank has continued to work with a limited equity base, bank is operating with paid-up capital
of Rs 2.39 billion since 2007 and has applied to SBP to grant exemption to meet the requirement of
minimum paid up capital of Rs 10 billion.

With a network of 13 branches the Bank has very limited outreach. Permission to open new branches
is not granted by SBP due to pending privatization.

Even under constrained circumstances there is no letup in the Bank’s primary operations, albeit at
a slower than desired pace for reasons stated. In these circumstances we have been able to increase
deposit by Rs 101.55 million and stood at Rs. 7,602.26 million as on December 31,2020 as compared
to last year Rs. 7,500.71 million. The bank made fresh disbursement of Rs.262 million during the year
under review as compared to Rs. 139 million of last year. Working capital position of the bank also
improved as compare to previous year.Net interest expense and Operating expenses decreased during
the year which resulted reduction in operational loss of the bank.

As business & economic activities remained depressed, repayment commitments were dishonored
by many borrowers, however due to the management’s focus and strenuous efforts by the field staff,
there is a decrease in non-performing portfolio and stood at Rs. 485 million at the year-end December
31,2020 as compared to Rs. 505 million last year.

We are hopetul that the process of privatization will complete soon and this will cause further expansion
in business and enhance operations to the advantage of all stakeholders.

Itis the Management’s vision to build an image of SME Bank as the bank which is a friend of the Small
& Medium Enterprises; a bank totally trusted with their deposits, ability and resources to cater to their
business needs. Customers’ will see SME Bank as the bedrock integral to their business growth and
sustainability and as a national institution ably playing its crucial role in the country’s economic growth
& development.
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On behalf of the management, I would like to take this opportunity to thank the State Bank of
Pakistan, the Ministry of Finance and the Board of Directors for their continued support and guidance.

et

President
Dilshad Ali Ahmad
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Financial Highlights

for the year 2020

PROFIT & (LOSS)

Income

Total Income
Interest Income

Expenses

Total Expenses

Interest Expenses

Spread (Net interest income / Gross interest income)
Loss before tax

Loss after tax

FINANCIAL POSITION

Shareholder's Funds
Net Equity
Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Borrowing from financial institutions
Deposits

Assets

Total Assets

Advances (net of provisions)
Investment

RATIOS

Return on Assets

Capital Adequacy Ratio (Required 10%)
Earning/(Loss) per share
BUSINESS ACHIEVEMENTS
Recoveries of New portfolio
Advances disbursed during the Year
Number of SMEs Finances

OTHER INFORMATION

Number of Employees

Number of Banking branches
Total Branches/Recovery Offices

(Rs. in million)

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 |
753.9 7895 753.6 674.0 662.3 753.2 |
738.9 776.3 7414 649.3 615.1 705.3 |

1,901.0 2,076.9 1,629.8 1,395.0 1,119.2 1,027.8

1,008.7 1,149.6 520.4 520.4 4412 4363

(0.4) (0.5) 03 0.2 03 04

(1,147.1) (1,287.4) (876.3) (721.0) (456.8) (274.6)
(977.2) (1,072.3) (825.9) (294.0) (199.2) (282.2)

2,392.5 2,3925 2,3925 2,3925 2,3925 2,3925 |

(3,160.1) (2,512.4) (1,693.9) (434.3) 20.6 356.3 |

13,101.2 12,664.4 11,3324 11,4294 9,357.6 8,260.2

4,127.6 3,654.8 4,739.9 5,308.3 3,460.3 2,888.7

7,602.3 7,500.7 5,721.0 5,343.7 5,228.7 4,770.2

9,941.1 10,152.0 9,6385 10,9951 9,378.2 8,616.5

1,530.3 1,908.0 2,230.8 2,505.5 2,771.7 2,751.7

58284 5,740.0 5,765.2 6,911.3 4,869.5 41175
9.73% -10.84% 8.01% 2.89% 221% 4.05%

-107.95% 71.83% 52.19% -13.65% 2.75% 6.79%
(4.08) (4.48) (3.45) (1.23) (0.83) (1.18)
514.1 632.9 623.2 694.6 659.8 767.7

1,120.9 1,377.7 1,622.5 1,956.5 1,956.2 1,993.6

198 219 366 397 481 447
468 480 486 497 490 495
13 13 13 13 13 13
18 18 18 18 18 21
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Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

We are pleased to present the 19" annual report of SME Bank Limited with the audited accounts and
auditors’ report thereon for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Economic Review- 2020

Coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) has affected global economies as major economic activities
are either suspended or restricted due to epidemics. Pakistan also faced a similar situation as the
implementation of the lockdown to avoid trade activities preventing Covid-19. This study focuses on
the effects of COVID-19 on Pakistan’s services sector and considers various published reports for this
purpose. The services sector, including tourism, hospitality and transport, is likely to be most affected.
Millions of SMEs will not be able to survive in the long run due to lack of cash flow while the revenue
of SMEs has also been reduced. The lockdown situation will lead to weak employment and stagnation
in every province of Pakistan. The above statement suggests that business-oriented programs will
create jobs effectively, especially by promoting information technology and e-commerce.

CPI Inflation and Market expectation

For the month of Dec’20, headline inflation as measured by CPI clocked in at 7.97% YoY (lowest
after Feb 2019 6.8%Y0Y), taking THFY21 average inflation to 8.63% YoY compared to 11.12%
corresponding period last year. The jump in index came mainly due to 13.3% YoY increase in food
prices, which makes up 35% of weight of CPI basket (in particular perishable food items — up by
16.3%Y0Y), however transport index receded by 3.47% YoY on the back of decrease in fuel prices
on YoY basis (-35% YoY in Nov’20 | -28% YoY in Dec’20). SPI for 1THFY21 period has grown by
11.48% compared to 14.87% seen in same period previous year. On MoM basis, it decreased by 2.7%
in Dec’20 as compared to an increase of 1.1% a month eatlier and a decrease of 2.0% in Dec’19. With
this, we maintain our stance of status quo (policy rate at 7%) for January’s MPS.

Foreign Exchange

Pakistan’s international forex reserves rose to USD 20.3bn in Nov’20 from USD 17.9bn at the end of
Dec’19. At almost 2.9 months of imports coverage, Pakistan’s foreign reserves are slightly below the
IMF’s minimum 3 months’ threshold. Moreover, an increase of PKR 248bn in Net Foreign Assets
(NFA) of Pakistan’s banking system in 1QFY21 is also reflected in Foreign Exchange Reserves. Causes
of this increase in Net Foreign Assets was a Current Account Surplus along with deferment of some
repayments of foreign loans which helped ease off pressure from foreign exchange reserves of the
country.

Money Market

In 2020, the interbank market looked down sharply after achieving government targets. That was hoped
that further cuts would be made in discount rate. In this scenatio, the market touched a low and the
SME Bank took advantage by selling lower yield bonds and booked small capital gains. Following the
fluctuations in the bond market during the financial year 2020, the bank developed a further portfolio
for the higher yield. Many banks took advantage of the timely decision to build the book to make it
profitable in capital and to keep the book blue by positive spread between borrowing and investment.
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THE STATE BANK DIVERSION

State Bank of Pakistan — The Messiah

The outbreak of the pandemic, Central Banks around the world were grappled with concerns
about despondent economic activity and a drastic fall in GDP. Like much of the world, Pakistan
too, Initiated an aggressive round of monetary easing, slashing the policy rate by 625bps within 3
months. The SBP through its monetary policy statements and other communication made it clear
that inflation targeting will take a back seat while growth revival would primarily influence monetary
policy deliberations.

CHALLENGES FOR BANKS

Strong balance sheets to mitigate COVID risks

Monetary easing stressed banking spreads: As a counter measure to contain the ill-effects of the
pandemic, SBP reverted to an easy monetary policy stance (reducing policy rate by a cumulative
625bp in CY20) that kept rupee-lending rates under pressure throughout CY20. The profitability of
commercial banks witnessed substantial improvement during CY20 which was primarily supported by
reduced interest expense and exceptional capital gains. However, the drag to the overall financial health
of the banking sector came from reduced business activities due to the pandemic and higher burden
of provisioning charged to build up coverage against potential losses. This turn around looks more
impressive in the presence of a narrowing average interest rate spread. Indicators for the management
performance of the banking sector also depicted positive trends.

Monetary tightening to initiate in 4QFY21

Going forward, when view the inflation and monetary outlook as being highly contingent on the
COVID situation which has seen a recent deterioration. While the rest of the world is reeling from a
perilous scenario, Pakistan’s second wave is still far from being deadly as the first wave. Subsequently, it
is expected oil prices to pick up in CY21 —another driver for domestic inflationary readings. Seasonality
impact of the Ramazan month is also likely to drive inflation. Whereas the impact of house rent
adjustments (Jan’21 and Apr’21) is also likely to translate into inflationary pressure.

POLICY RATE SCENARIO

50bps hike expected in 4QFY21, avg. inflation for FY21 at 9.26%

Premised on the aforementioned reasons, It is projected that average inflation during 2HEFY21 to settle
at 9.74% against 8.78% during THFY21. Market pundits’ projections for FY21 average CPI are set at
9.26% and it is expected that an interest rate hike of 50bps in 4QFY21. It is also predicted growth
deliberations to continue being on the radar of the Central Bank and hence, a very hawkish approach
towards the monetary policy may not be on the cards yet.

Operational Highlights

The Bank is operating with paid up capital of Rs 2.39 billion since 2007. SME Bank has applied to
State Bank to grant exemption to meet the requirement of minimum paid up capital of Rs 10 billion.
Shareholders in their meeting on October 7, 2009, advised to recapitalize the bank by increasing
its paid-up capital and management has approached Ministry of Finance for the same. The Board
noted that in view of impending privatization of the bank, SBP’s constraints on business expansion,
and very narrow equity base of less than Rs 2 billion, it is a challenge to operate the bank on self
sustainable basis.
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In view of restrictions placed by State Bank of Pakistan there was no change in branch network during
the year 2020 and the Bank continued to operate with 13 commercial banking branches and five
recovery offices.

Interest Rate Scenario

SBP discount rate at the beginning of the year 2020 was 13.75 percent. At the end of the year 2020
discount rate reached at 8.00 percent with decrease of 5.75 percent, as SBP decrease discount rate to
counter the effect of COVID-19 on the economy.

Credit Rating

Bank was assigned a long term credit rating of CCC and short term rating of B (Single B) by PACRA
credit rating agency on November 22, 2018. The credit rating company has expressed that the bank’s
operational performance is significantly under pressure because of delay in capital injection by GoP.
Thus continuation of the bank’s operations going forward is dependent on either of the two factors:
(i) fresh capital injection by GoP or (ii) development on the privatization front, as growth in the
bank’s operations is restricted due to these two factors although the management is taking measures
to improve business functions, operational sustainability is dependent upon equity injection by the
primary sponsor.

Operational Results

In the backdrop of narrow equity base and shortage of funds, management has been able to meet day
to day liquidity needs and maintenance of statutory liquidity requirements (SLR) set by the State Bank
of Pakistan. Despite enormous pressure of liquidity crunch, SME loans and advances portfolio stood
at Rs 1,816 million. During the year under review income from SME lending operations decreased by
an amount of Rs 41.58 million. The cost of funds decreased by an amount of Rs 140.96 million due
to decrease in average cost of borrowings to 9.28% as compared to 12.23% in 2019.

The deposits of the bank has been increased by Rs. 101.55 million and stand at Rs 7,602.26 million as
on December 31, 2020 as compared to last year Rs. 7,500.71 million as on December 31, 2019.

During the year 2020, the bank reversed net provision of Rs 14.77 million against non-performing
loans as against charged net provision of Rs 0.63 million in 2019. Loans and advances on account of
the bank’s lending operation were Rs 1,816 million in 2020 compared to Rs 2,195 million in 2019.

The macro economic factors such as increase in inflation and interest rate seriously dampened the
business activities in the country and down the growth rate to a great extent, which in turn affected
the repayment capacity and behaviour of the bank’s borrowers but despite these hindrances the
management of the bank made persistent efforts to reduce the non-performing loans of the bank.
Non- performing loans of the bank on December 31, 2020 were Rs 485 million whereas on December
31, 2019 was Rs 506 million.

The Bank has investment of Rs 215.46 million in SME Leasing Limited (SMEL) which is carried in these
financial statements at Rs 80.75 million and has outstanding running finance exposure of Rs 142.16
million as at December 31, 2020. The company during the year has mainly focused on internal cash
generation through recoveries from its portfolio and investing these to build-in new quality business.
The company has managed to write fresh net leases worth Rs 27 million. Total recoveries aggregated to
Rs 79.5 million (including Rs 25.05 million from non-performing portfolio). The percentage of default
in new business written over last 3 years has been negligible. Market value of its share ranged between
Rs 1.61 to Rs 6.28 per share over last 52 weeks. The Bank periodically reviews its investment in SMEL
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for evidence of any impairment. The recoverable amount of investment in SMEL is determined with
reference to its value in use. The Bank uses present value techniques and financial projections of
SMEL to calculate its value in use.

The bank has booked loss before tax of Rs 1,147.12 million during the year 2020 as compared to loss
before tax of Rs 1,287.41 million in 2019, and Net loss of Rs 977.16 million as compared to Net loss
of Rs 1,072.31 million in 2019. The reason for incurring losses were due to pending privatization,
restructuring, limited outreach, inadequate level of equity and economic condition. In future, we expect
to decrease the losses by enhancing revenues and reducing volume of our non-performing loans.

With regard to the exposure granted to SME Leasing Limited, SME Bank applied for exemption
from single related party exposure limit to the SBP. The SBP granted relaxation to SME Bank Ltd in
single related party exposure limit under Prudential Regulation R-1 regarding the financing of Rs 150
million to SME Leasing Ltd for the petiod up to December 31, 2019 or completion of restructuring /
privatization, whichever is earlier.

Paid-up Capital

The Bank is operating with paid up capital of Rs 2.39 billion since 2007. In line with the SBP guidelines
banks are required to raise paid up capital to minimum capital requirements of Rs 10 billion. However,
SME Bank has applied to State Bank to grant exemption to meet the requirement of minimum paid
up capital of Rs 10 billion.

Financial Statements

Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards as
applicable in Pakistan, SBP Prudential Regulations and Companies Act 2017. The disclosures in notes
to financial statements correspond to the requirement of law and guidelines issued by the regulatory
authorities.

Internal Control over financial reporting

The board is fully committed to ensure the existence of an effective system of internal control in the
bank and continuously reviews and evaluates the adequacy and integrity of those systems. However,
the board recognizes that such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks identified
to acceptable levels. Therefore, the systems implemented can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against the occurrence of any material misstatement and loss.

Whilst the Board has overall responsibility for the bank’s system of internal controls, it has delegated
the implementation of these internal control systems to the management in order to identify risk and
take action to mitigate the risk. These internal control systems are subject to the board’s regular review
with a view towards appraising the effectiveness of these systems in the bank.

Deposits
Despite all the impediments, the deposits of the bank has been increased by Rs. 101.55 million and
stand at Rs 7,602.26 million as on December 31, 2020.

Disbursements

Liquidity constraints notwithstanding, the bank was able to achieve disbursement of Rs 262 million
during the year as compared to Rs 139 million in the previous year. The number of clients served
during the year was 198 and total number of outstanding borrowers stood at 1119 at the year end.
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Leasing Business

SME Leasing Limited, a subsidiary of the Bank incorporated in 2002, has posted a loss before tax of
Rs. 57.54 million as compared to loss of Rs. 35.69 million from last year. The increase in loss resulted
from maturing leases, as pace of new leases written was slow and increase in provision. Net equity of
the company is Rs 19.69 million (2019: Rs 77.11 million). PACRA has assigned the long-term rating of
B (2018: B+) and a short term rating of B (2018: B).

SME Leasing disbursed Rs 27 million (2019: Rs. 64.46 million) to 5 clients in 2020 (2019: 10).
Outstanding lease portfolio stands at Rs 343 million with 236 clients.

Customer Complaint Management

“The management believes in customer’s satisfaction through better service delivery from all aspects
and thus endeavour to promote a culture that values customer’s relationship and experience. A
dedicated Vigilance Department is functioning to ensure timely resolution of complaints in order to
foster customer confidence. It also coordinates with other functional divisions for improvement in
SOPs and mechanism for facilitating the customers at SME bank.

A comprehensive Complaint Resolution Mechanism has been designed and is in place. For effective
management and handling of complaints, a complaint management system (CMS) has been designed
and implemented in the bank. It provides more than one channels to the clients for lodging their
complaints to the bank. It outlines detail guidelines for receipt, recording, probing, resolving and
responding to the complainants. Most of the complaints have been propetly responded and ultimately
resolved timely. An assessment survey conducted every year in the bank in compliance of Conduct
Assessment Framework also reflects the encouraging response from the banks’ customers.”

Training & HR Development

For enhancement of skill/knowledge base of human capital available for specialised tasks, necessaty
training and skill development activities were carried out for the staff on the basis of training need
assessment.

Information Technology

SME Bank’s Management has taken multiple technological initiatives in line with its customer focus and
continual improvement strategy. SME Bank has replaced its proprietary Debit Cards with domestic
payment scheme cards, PayPak, that are widely accepted at ATM and POS across Pakistan. The Bank
has launched a high end IVR based solution for facilitating its Alternate Delivery Channel’s (ADC)
customers. The Bank has upgraded its ADC infrastructure to improve its product sets and offer reliable
and secure services to its customers.

To improve technology governance and risk management, the Bank has implemented various measures
including development of action plans and standard operating procedures; arranging trainings of
technological resources; conducting vulnerability assessment & penetration testing of its technological
infrastructure; enhancement of its Management & Executive Information Systems; and testing of the
resilience of its disaster recovery arrangements through regular drills.

Basel IT & III

In 2012, State Bank of Pakistan advised all banks to submit their information for Quantitative Impact
Study (QIS) — Basel I11. SME Bank has applied for exemption from submission of this statement on
the basis of already granted exemption from Basel II; Now State Bank has granted exemption to the
Bank from implementation of Basel IT & 111 till its Restructuting/Privatization due to large investment
required in software, human resource, training, etc.
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Capital Adequacy Return
Bank is required to maintain CAR ratio at 10%. However SME bank has applied to State Bank for
exemption from maintaining the CAR below benchmark.

Income Taxes
Tax Department served notices regarding Income Tax pertaining to tax years 2001-2002, 2002-2003,
2003, 2004, 2005, 2006, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2016, 2017 & 2019.

The Tax Department filed references in Islamabad High Court IHC) for the Tax Year 2001-02 &
2002-03 among which 2002-03 has been dismissed upon non-prosecution by the Tax Department on
December 17, 2018. Meanwhile Notice for hearing has been received from IHC for the Tax Year 2001-
02 which is being contested.

Whereas for the tax years 2003 and 2004 Tax Department has filed reference in The Islamabad High
Court against decisions of the Appellate Tribunal & for the tax year 2005 tax department has filed an
appeal with Appellate Tribunal against the decision.

The Bank has filed appeals with Appellate Tribunal for the Tax years 2008 & 2010 which were remanded
back to Assessing Officer for verification of evidences, meanwhile demand for the Tax Year 2008 is
reduced in lieu of rectification application which has been requested for adjustment against refunds
for the tax year 2009.

For the tax year 2012 appeal filed by the bank with the Commissioner (Appeals) who remanded the
case back to DCIR for fresh consideration, whereas Order under section 221/113 for the same year is
being contested in ATIR. Tax Year 2014 is assessed u/s 122(1) / 122(5) of the ITO, 2001. Tax Years
2016, 2017, 2018 & 2020 are deemed to be assessed u/s 120 of the ITO, 2001. Meanwhile notices
under section 161 read with 205 are also issued for the tax years 2013, 2016 & 2017 which are being
contested.

The Tax Department created tax demand U/S 161/205 for the Tax Years 2005, 2006, 2008, 2009,
2010, 2011 & 2013 which is being contested in ATIR.

The Tax Department show caused for amendment of the assessment of the Tax Year 2019, U/S
122(5A) by raising several questions pertaining to turnover amount, clarification for huge amount of
unabsorbed Tax Depreciation and Amortization for prior years, Sources of Investments etc. The case
is being contested at Assessing Officer level.

Sales Tax

Tax Department also served notices regarding FED/sales tax pertaining to Tax Periods Jan’2008 -
Dec’2008, Jan’2009-Dec’2009, Jan’2010-Dec’2010, Jul’2011-Jun’2012, Jan’2014-Dec’2014, Jan’2015-
Dec2015 and Jul’2015-Jun’2016. Bank replied these notices and contested the cases.

Resultantly Tax Periods Jan’2008 - Dec’2008 and Jan’2010-Dec’2010 have been remanded back for
fresh consideration of the cases, meanwhile the bank has filed appeals with the Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue for the Tax Periods Jan2009-Dec’2009 and Jul’2011-Jun’2012. Punjab Revenue
Authority (PRA) has also passed an order for short collection and payment of Sales Tax for the period
Jan’2016-Dec’2016.
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Risk Management Framework

Risk Management Division (RMD) is preforming risk functions relating to various risks; particularly
Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk, Interest Rate Risk & Operational Risk, compliance risk, regulatory risk and
reputation risk. The SBP guidelines issued time to time on Risk Management are being included in
risk management policies and procedures and the implementation of Basel-II for the bank has been
exempted by SBP till its privatization.

The Bank implements its risk strategy and undertakes controlled risk-taking activities within its risk
management framework. The Board of Directors at SME Bank Limited actively formulates the risk
management framework wherein it provides an active approach in dealing with factors that influence
the financial standing of the Bank. With the valuable guidance of BOD, the bank has a proactive
approach to generate earnings and to optimize shareholder’s value.

Liquidity Position and Good Quality of Credit Portfolio, remain a cornerstone to accomplish vision
of the bank and measuring, analysing, controlling and monitoring risk from the frontline risk takers
(i.e. business divisions) are ensured within the bank. In lines with RMC (Risk Management Committee)
and BRMC (Board Risk Management Committee) which is sub-committee of the Board of Directors,
the bank executes an effective risk strategy and continues to undertake controlled risk-taking activities
within the risk management framework, combining core policies, procedures and process design with
active portfolio management. Regular meetings of RMC and BRMC are convened to oversee the
risk exposures and their trends as a result of the various initiatives undertaken by the bank. The
committee reviews different aspects of the loan portfolio which, among others, include asset growth,
credit quality, credit concentration, lending business trend, treasury portfolio, liquidity position and
profitability analysis etc. Risk takers and Risk controllers have independent reporting lines, yet work
together to increase bank’s value via an efficient utilization of bank resources.

During the year 2020, the bank continued with the policy to remain selective in disbursing its loan
to low risk customers & maintained a fairly diversified loan portfolio. To manage adverse outcomes
in terms of unfavourable scenarios, multiple control factors in the lending structure of the bank
provide additional comfort and support. Such controls range from quality of eligible collateral, pre-
disbursement safety measures to post disbursement monitoring,

The bank tries an internal Operational/credit risks awareness program which is aimed at building
capacity and inculcating risk aware culture in the staff through workshops/trainings/refresher
courses and on-job awareness.

Green Banking

With a view to protect and safeguard against environmental risks emerging from Banks and DFIs
businesses and operations, State Bank of Pakistan issued Green Banking Guidelines on October 09,
2017. In pursuance to SBP Guidelines SME Bank has established Green Banking Division to help
policy initiatives of SBP for transforming country economy towards low carbon and climate resilient
economy.

The bank has put in place appropriate mechanism and functions in line with SBP Green Banking
Guidelines. Following measures/steps wete taken for supplementing governmental and SBP efforts

towards protection of environment:-

= Hstablishment of full-fledged Green Banking Division in line with SBP’s Green Banking
Guidelines and Bank Policy.
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=  Green Banking Policy along with Environmental Risk Management Framework was duly
approved by Board of Directors and circulated for the guidance/implementation of all
concerned offices/ branches.

* Inhouse /outside training session on Green Banking capacity building were held for officials
of the bank to provide awareness about the responsibility of financial sector in supporting
policy initiatives of government of Pakistan and State Bank of Pakistan.

* Reporting/monitoring and implementation status of Green Banking Guidelines to State Bank
of Pakistan on each quarter

" Regular sensitization of staff in branches and Head Office on Green Banking as part of
organization culture.

*  Review/customization of all lending products with a purpose to promote green banking
facilitation, environmental friendly practices and reduction in carbon footprint.

*  Approval of sending e-statements and notices/letters to the Customers for the promotion of
papertless environment.

*  Use of office stationery carrying Green Banking Logo for the awareness of General public /
staff.

" Green Banking awareness campaign among hundreds of customers and employees.

"  Necessary procedure for environmental risk management and checklist for environmental due
diligence have been adopted by the bank.

= Assigned resource consumption and impact reduction targets to the branches and Head office
level.

Privatization of Bank

Government of Pakistan (GOP) decided in their meeting held on November 19, 2018 to relaunch the
privatization transaction of the Bank through Privatization Commission (PC). Cabinet Committee on
Privatization (CCOP) approved the new privatization program of the Bank on March 06, 2019 to divest
the GOPs equity stake in the Bank along with management control to a strategic investor. Accordingly,
PC recommended the transaction structure for the privatization of the Bank to CCOP who approved
the referred transaction structure on November 15, 2019. Thereafter through a due process invitation
for expression of interest for acquisition of 93.88% shares of the Bank were advertised in newspapers
on December 13, 2019. The last date for submission of EOIs and Statement of Qualifications
(SOQs) was February 28, 2020. Five prospective investors have submitted their SOQs against the
advertisement, out of that four have been cleared by SBP. The buyers side due diligence is completed
on August 24, 2020 and the final draft of share purchase agreement (SPA) has been shared with three
pre-qualified bidders. Comments from pre-qualified bidders on instructions to bidders (ITB) and SPA
have been deliberated by the Transaction Committee and clarifications to this effect have been given
to pre-qualified bidders. A joint meeting of the Transaction Committee, SBP and pre-qualified bidders
held on December 29th, 2020 and December 30th, 2020 with reference to “Pre-Bid Conference” and
“Valuation Model” wherein the queries of pre-qualified potential bidders have been clarified and some
of them pertaining to license, merger and MCR have been forwarded to SBP for its clarification whose
response is awaited

Board of Directotrs

Board of Directors consists of seven members/directors nominated by the Federal Government;
one executive director (P&CEQ), four non-executive directors, and two independent directors. Board
meets frequently and ensures to meet at least every quarter.

(BoD) Board of Directors held five meetings during the year 2020. Attendance of which is given
below:
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Directors: Meetings Attended
Mrt. Dilshad Ali Ahmad 5

Mt. Niaz Muhammad Khan
Mr. Muhammad Waqas Azeem
Mr. Rauf Ahmad

Mzr. Hashim Raza

Mr. Omar Farooq

Mr. Enamullah Khan

A A~ OO U1 D0

Board has constituted five sub-committees namely (BAC) Board Audit Committee, (BRMC) Board Risk
Management Committee, (BHRC) Board Human Resource Committee, (BNC) Board Nomination
Committee & (BPC) Board Procurement Committee.

Board Audit Committee

This committee consists of two independent directors and one non-executive director and has been
formed to assist the Board in fulfilling its statutory and fiduciary responsibilities. This committee is
advisory in nature and does not perform any management function. It assists the Board in discharging
its responsibilities and in complying with good governance. During the year 2020, three meetings of
(BAC) Board Audit Committee were held. Attendance in these meetings was as follows:

Directors: Meetings Attended
Mzr. Omar Farooq 3
Mzr. Enamullah Khan 3
Mzt. Niaz Muhammad Khan 3

Board Risk Management Committee

This Committee consists of three non-executive directors and it assists the Board in measurement
and mitigation of different risks. During the year 2020, two meetings of (BRMC) Board Risk
Management Committee were held. Attendance in these meetings was as follows:

Directors Meetings Attended
Mzr. Niaz Muhammad Khan 2
Mr. Hashim Raza 2
Mr. Muhammad Waqas Azeem 2

Board Human Resource Committee

Board Human Resource Committee consists of one executive director, one non-executive director and
one independent director to assist the Board in all staff related matters, policies and benefits including
compensation. During the year 2020, two meetings of (BHRC) Board Human Resource Committee
were held. Attendance in these meetings was as follows:

Directors Meetings Attended
Mzr. Enamullah Khan 2
Mr. Rauf Ahmad 2
Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad 2

Board Procurement Committee
Board Procurement Committee comprising three directors (non-executive) has been formed to
prepare, review and recommend to the Board, Procurement related policies to ensure transparency in
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procurement transactions and in dealing with suppliers. During the year 2020, two meetings of (BPC)
Board Procurement Committee were held. Attendance in these meetings was as follows:

Directors Meetings Attended
Mr. Muhammad Waqas Azeem 2
Mzr. Hashim Raza 2
Mr. Rauf Ahmad 2

Board Nomination Committee

This Committee consists of one executive director, one non-executive director and one independent
director. It meets on need basis. No meeting was held of (BNC) Board Nomination Committee during
the year 2020.

Corporate Governance and Financial Reporting Framework

SME Bank is committed to observe good corporate governance and has adopted the recently
promulgated governance framework for public sector companies. The Directors have ensured that
adequate arrangements are made to meet the financial recording and reporting parameters and are
pleased to state that:

proper books of accounts as required by Companies Ordinance have been maintained,;

e applicable international financial reporting standards have been followed in preparation of annual
accounts;

e the accounts have been prepared on going concern basis and the Bank has adopted prudent
accounting policies and used sound accounting estimates;

e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates. Any departure has been adequately disclosed and explained;

e the financial statements prepared by the management of the Bank present fairly, state of affairs
of the Bank as at December 31, 2020, the results of its operations for the period then ended, cash
flow and changes in equity;

e the appointment of chairman and other members of board and the terms of their appointment
along with the fee/remuneration adopted are in the best interests of the Bank as well as in line
with the best practices.

e appropriate systems of internal control have been put in place for managing significant risks, with
adequate arrangements for its effective implementation, continuous review and monitoring;

e the Board of Directors is satisfied with Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern; on the basis
explained in note 0.2.

e there are no outstanding statutory payments on account of taxes, duties and levies as on December
31, 2020, except as disclosed in the financial statements;
the value of investments held for staff funds is reflected in note 34 of notes to the accounts;
Bank has complied with the provisions of Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules,
2013 and there has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance.

e Key Operating and financial data of last six years is available in annual Reports.

Shareholding Pattern
The statement showing pattern of shareholding as at December 31, 2020, as required under Code of
Corporate Governance is annexed.
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Loss per share
The basic and diluted after tax loss per share for the year 2020 is Rs. (4.08). (2019: Rs. (4.48)

Auditors
The existing auditors, M/s Grant Thornton Anjum Rehman, Chartered Accountants, will retire at
conclusion of 18" Annual General Meeting.

Appreciation

While the Board appreciates the efforts of the management and staff trying to steer the Bank out of
the current situation, it also highlights the need of more efforts for improving the recovery drive and
for enhancing disbursements. The Board would also like to thank State Bank of Pakistan and other
regulatory authorities for their continued support and guidance and the shareholders for the trust and

confidence reposed in us.

Chairman

(of the meeting)
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Shareholding Pattern

The pattern of shareholiding as at December 31, 2020 is given below ;

Sr. # Categories of Shareholders No. of Shares held | Percentage
Share holder
1 President of Pakistan 1 224,615,978 93.88
(on behalf of Federal Government)
2 National Bank of Pakistan 1 6,121,095 2.56
3 United Bank Limited 1 3,975,003 1.66
4 Habib Bank Limited 1 1,987,501 0.83
5 MCB Bank Limited 1 1,490,619 0.62
6 Allied Bank Limited 1 774,351 0.32
7 Industrial Development Bank Limited 1 286,146 0.12
Directors
8 Mzt. Dilshad Ali Ahmad 1 1 -
9 Mzt. Hashim Raza 1 1 -
10 |Mzt. Niaz Muhammad Khan 1 1 -
11 | Mr. Waqas Azeem 1 1 -
12 |Mzt. Ruaf Ahmad 1 1 -
13 |Mr. Omar Farooq 1 1 -
14 [Mr. Enamullah Khan 1 1 -
Total 14 239,250,700 100

Government of Pakistan is the only shareholder holding 10% or more voting interests.
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Statement of Compliance
with Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

For the year ended December 31, 2020

SCHEDULE I
[See paragraph 2(1)]

This statement is being presented to comply with Regulation G-1 of the Prudential Regulations

for Corporate/ Commercial Banking issued by the State Bank of Pakistan and the Public Sector
Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (hereinafter called “the Rules”) issued for the

purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a public sector company is
managed in compliance with the best practices of public sector governance.

SME Bank Ltd (the Bank) has complied with the provisions of the Rules in the following manner:

1 The independent directors meet the criteria of 2d) | v
" | independence, as defined under the Rules.
The Board has the requisite percentage of independent
directors. At present the board includes:
Independent | Mr. Omar Farooq 08-07-2020
Directors Mr. Enamullah Khan 08-07-2020
2. | | Executive Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad | 16-10-2018 32 | vV
Directors
Non- Mr. Hashim Raza 08-07-2020
Executive Mrt. Niaz Muhammad
Directors Khan
Mr. Waqas Azeem
Mt. Rauf Ahmad
The directors have confirmed that none of them is
3 serving as a director on more than five public sector 35) | v
" | companies and listed companies simultaneously, except
their subsidiaries.
The appointing authorities have applied the fit and All  the Directors are
proper criteria given in the Annexure in making nominee of GoP. SBP
4. | nominations of the persons for election as board 3(7) v has cleared their fit and
members under the provisions of the Act. propriety critetia.
As per MoF Letter #
ENo.8(1) IF-11/2019-554
dated July 16,2020 directed
5 The chairman of the board is working separately from 4(1) President/CEO to preside
" | the chief executive of the Bank. the meetings of the Board
under Section 11(3)(8) of
Bank (Nationalization)
Act,1974.
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The chairman has been elected by the Board of
directors except where Chairman of the Board has
been appointed by the Government.

44

As per MoF Letter #
FNo.8(1)IF-11/2019-554
dated July 16, 2020 that
President/CEO has been
advised to preside the
meetings of the Board
under Section 11(3)(8) of
Bank (Nationalization)
Act,1974.

The Board has evaluated the candidates for the
position of the chief executive on the basis of the fit
and proper criteria as well as the guidelines specified
by the Commission. (Not applicable where the chief
executive has been nominated by the Government)

5@

N/A

Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad
Appointed as President
&CEO vide Notification
No FNo.8(2)-1F-
11/2018-503 dated
June16,2020.

(a) The Bank has prepared a “Code of Conduct” to
ensure that professional standards and corporate
values are in place.

(b) The Board has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Bank
along with its supporting policies and procedures,
including posting the same on the Bank’s website.
(www.smebank.org)

(¢) The Board has set in place adequate systems
and controls for the identification and redressal of
grievances arising from unethical practices.

5(#)

The Boatd has established a system of sound internal
control, to ensure compliance with the fundamental
principles of probity and propriety; objectivity, integrity
and honesty; and relationship with the stakeholders, in
the manner prescribed in the Rules

50)

10.

The Board has developed and enforced an appropriate
conflict of interest policy to lay down circumstances
or considerations when a person may be deemed to
have actual or potential conflict of interests, and the
procedure for disclosing such interest.

5G)b)
(i)

11.

The Board has developed and implemented a policy
on anti-corruption to minimize actual or perceived
corruption in the Bank.

5G)b)
(vi)

12.

The Board has ensured equality of opportunity by
establishing open and fair procedures for making
and for
conditions of service.

appointments determining terms and

50)©
(i)

13.

The Board has ensured compliance with the law as well
as the Bank’s internal rules and procedures relating to
public procurement, tender regulations, and purchasing
and technical standards, when dealing with suppliers
of goods and services.

50)©
(i)
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14.

The Board has developed a vision or mission statement
and corporate strategy of the Bank.

5(0)

15

The Board has developed significant policies of the
Bank. A complete record of particulars of significant
policies along with the dates on which they were
approved or amended, has been maintained.

5(7)

16.

The board has quantified the outlay of any action
in respect of any service delivered or goods sold
by the Bank as a public service obligation, and have
submitted its request for appropriate compensation to
the Government for consideration.

N/A

17.

The Board has ensured compliance with policy
directions requirements received from the Government.

5(11)

18.

a) The board has met at least four times duting the
year.

b) Written notices of the board meetings, along with
agenda and working papers, were circulated at
least seven days before the meetings.

¢) The minutes of the meetings were appropriately
recorded and circulated.

o(l)

6(2)

6(3)

19.

The Board has

performance of senior management on annual/half-

monitored and assessed the
yeatly/quartetly basis* and held them accountable for
accomplishing objectives, goals and key performance
indicators set for this purpose.

*Strike out whichever is not applicable

82

As Board constituted on
July 8, 2020
performance of senior
shall  be
assessed in forthcoming
meeting of the Board in
March 2021

therefore

management

20.

The board has reviewed and approved the related party
transactions placed before it after recommendations
of the audit committee. A party wise record of
transactions entered into with the related parties during
the year has been maintained.

21.

(a) The Board has approved the profit and loss account
for, and balance sheet as at the end of, the first, second
and third quarter of the year as well as the financial
year end.

(b)In case of listed PSCs, the Board has prepared half
yearly accounts and undertaken limited scope review
by the auditors.

(c)The Board has placed the annual financial statements
on the Bank’s website.

10

N/A

22.

All the board members underwent an orientation
course arranged by the Bank to apprise them of the
material developments and information as specified in
the Rules.

11

As Board constituted on
July 8, 2020
Orientation Course will
be arranged in first half
of the year 2021 after
approval of the Board in

therefore

coming Board Meeting;
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23.

a) The board has formed the requisite
committees, as specified in the Rules.

b) The committees were provided with written
term of reference defining their duties,
authority and composition.

¢) The minutes of the meetings of the
committees were circulated to all the board
members.

d) The committees were chaired by the following
non-executive directors:

Audit Committee 3 Mr. Omar Frooq

Humag Resource 3 Mtr. Enamullah Khan
Committee

Procurement
Committee
Risk
Management 3
Committee

3 Mr. Wagas Azeem

Mr. Niaz Muhammad
Khan

Nomination No meeting was held
Committee during the year

12

24,

The Board has approved appointment of Chief
Financial ~Officer, Bank Secretary and Chief
Internal Auditor, by whatever name called, with
their remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment.

13

25.

The Chief Financial Officer and the Bank Secretary
have requisite qualification prescribed in the Rules

14

26.

The Bank has adopted International Financial
Reporting Standards notified by the Commission in
terms of sub-section (1) of section 225 of the Act.

16

27.

The directors’ report for this year has been prepared in
compliance with the requirements of the Act and the
Rules and fully describes the salient matters required
to be disclosed.

17

28.

The directors, CEO and executives, or their relatives,
are not, directly or indirectly, concerned or interested
in any contract or arrangement entered into by or on
behalf of the Bank except those disclosed to the Bank.

18
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29.

(a) A formal and transparent procedure for fixing the
remuneration packages of individual directors has
been set in place and no director is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.

(b) The annual report of the Bank contains criteria and
details of remuneration of each director.

19

30.

The financial statements of the Bank were duly
endorsed by the chief executive and chief financial
officer before consideration and approval of the audit
committee and the Board.

20

31.

The board has formed an audit committee, with
defined and written terms of reference, and having the
following members:

Mr. Omar Farooq Independent | Businessman

Mr. Enamullah Khan Independent | Businessman

Mr. Niaz Muhammad Non- SJS Ministry of
Khan Executive Industries &
Director Production

The chief executive and chairman of the Board are not
members of the audit committee.

21 (1)
and

21(2)

32

(a) The chief financial officer, the chief internal
auditor, and a representative of the external auditors
attended all meetings of the audit committee at which
issues relating to accounts and audit were discussed.
(b) The audit committee met the external auditors, at
least once a year, without the presence of the chief
financial officer, the chief internal auditor and other
executives.

(c) The audit committee met the chief internal auditor
and other members of the internal audit function,
at least once a year, without the presence of chief
financial officer and the external auditors.

21(3)

33.

(a) The Board has set up an effective internal audit
function, which has an audit charter, duly approved by
the audit committee.

(b) The chief internal auditor has requisite qualification
and experience presctibed in the Rules.

(c) The internal audit reports have been provided to
the external auditors for their review.

22

34.

The external auditors of the Bank have confirmed
that the firm and all its partners are in compliance
with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines on Code of Ethics as applicable in Pakistan.

23(4)

41
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The auditors have confirmed that they have observed
35.| applicable guidelines issued by IFAC with regard to | 23(5) | v
provision of non-audit services.

DS i3 oy

CEO Independent Director
Dilshad Ali Ahmad Omer Farooq
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Explanation for Non-Compliance

with Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013
For the year ended December 31, 2020

We confirm that all other material requirements envisaged in the Rules have been complied with except

for the following, toward which reasonable progress is being made by the Bank to seek compliance by

the end of next accounting year:

Sr.

No.

Rule/
sub-rule
no.

Reasons for non- compliance

Future course of action

1.

8(2)

The
the performance of senior management
on annual/half-yeatly/quattetly basis* and
held them accountable for accomplishing
objectives, goals
indicators set for this purpose.

*Strike out whichever is not applicable

Board has monitored and assessed

and key performance

As Board constituted on July
8, 2020 therefore performance
of senior management shall be
assessed in forthcoming meeting
of the Board in March 2021.

11

All the board members underwent an
orientation course arranged by the Bank to
apprise them of the material developments
and information as specified in the Rules.

As Board constituted on July 8,
2020 therefore Orientation Course
will be arranged in first half of the
year 2021 after approval of the
Board in coming Board Meeting,

e

CEO

Dilshad Ali Ahmad

Oy

Independent Director
Omer Farooq
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Statement of Internal Control
For the year ended December 31, 2020

The management of SME Bank recognizes its responsibility to establish and maintain a sound system
of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance to achieve the following objectives.

e Efficiency and effectiveness of operations
e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations
e  Reliability of financial reporting

The internal control system encompasses policies and procedures relating to all processes, products
and activities of the Bank’s operations. The internal control policies and procedures are being reviewed
by an independent internal audit function reporting directly to the Audit Committee of the Board of
Director.

In management’s assessment, these systems, policies and procedures provide reasonable assurance
as to the integrity and reliability of those controls and reports produced thereon. It recognizes the
fact that these system are designed to mitigate and manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives.

The boatd is fully committed to ensure the existence of an effective system of internal control and
risk management and continuously reviews and evaluates the adequacy and integrity of those systems.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting (ICFR) aims to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with the applicable financial reporting standards. We have endeavored to follow the
guidelines issued by State Bank of Pakistan on Internal Control.

State Bank of Pakistan has granted exemption to SME Bank Ltd from submitting Long Form Report
by its Statutory Auditors, with the condition that if any material gap on bank’s ICFR are reported by
its inspection team/or Board Audit Committee ,then this exemption will be revoked. The SBP also
advised to submit the Annual Assessment report on efficacy of ICFR through Board Audit committee
to OSED.

Moreover SBP also advised to apprise its Board of Directors to take ownership of ICFR and Board
Audit Committee to monitor progress and submit a detailed quarterly progress report regarding
bridging of gaps to SBP

The Bank has revised the internal control policy in the year 2015 which emphasis that Management of
the bank is responsible for maintaining a suitable system of ICEFR that provides reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting. The management should use a top down, risk-based
approach, including the entity level and activity level controls in assessing financial reporting risks and
the adequacy of controls

s .0

Chief Financial Officer
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Review Report to the Members on the Statement of Compliance

with the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (the Rules) prepared by the Board of
Directors (the Board) of SME Bank Limited (“the Bank”) for the year ended December 31, 2020
to comply with Regulation G-1 of the Prudential regulation for Corporate/Commercial Banking
issued by State Bank of Pakistan and the requirements of the provisions of Public Sector Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013.

The responsibility for compliance with the Rules is that of the Board of the Bank. Our responsibility
is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of
Compliance reflects the status of the Bank’s compliance with the provisions of the Rules and report
if it does not, and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Rules. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Bank’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by
the Bank to comply with the Rules.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board’s statement on internal control covers
all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Bank’s
corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Rules requires the Bank to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board for their review and approval of its related party
transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail
in arm’s length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm’s length price and recording
proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by
the Board upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures
to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.
Moreover, the Rules also requires the Board to ensure compliance with the law as well as the Bank’s
internal rules and procedures relating to public procurement, tender regulations, and purchasing
and technical standards, when dealing with suppliers of goods and services, in accordance with the
PPRA Rules. We have not carried out any procedures to verify the compliance with the above stated
requirements of PPRA Rules.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Bank’s compliance, in all material aspects with the
best practices contained in the Rules as applicable to the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Seoal ThoenYeaAgjum wl

GRANT THORNTON ANJUM RAHMAN
Chartered Accountants

Audit Engagement Partner: Hassan Riaz
Islamabad

Date: March 06, 2021
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SME BANK LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of SME Bank Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of SME Bank Limited (the Bank),
which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the
unconsolidated profit and loss account, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, along with unaudited certified returns received from the branches except for
nine branches which have been audited by us and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated profit and loss account and
the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes
in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the
information required by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Bank’s
affairs as at December 31, 2020 and of the loss and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a)  The Bank has investmentin SME Leasing Limited (SMEL) which is carried in these unconsolidated
financial statements at Rs. 80.748 million (net of provision of Rs. 134.709) and has outstanding
running finance exposure of Rs. 144.747 million at the reporting date. SMEL continues to operate
on a net loss basis and therefore the recoverability of investment and running finance exposure
is doubtful. Accordingly, we are unable to determine the extent of impairment that might be
necessary to be recorded against the current carrying values of investment and running finance
exposure and its possible effect on current year losses and accumulated losses of the Bank;

b) Deferred tax asset of Rs. 874.915 million has been recognized on the basis of expected profits
arising from future privatization of the Bank as described in Note 13 to the unconsolidated
financial statements which we have not been able to verify. Advance income tax includes refunds
aggregating to Rs. 232.599 million for tax years 2003 and 2004. These refunds were recorded on
the basis of an order of the Appellate Tribunal

Inland Revenue dated February 10, 2011 whereby provision for doubtful debts was allowed to be taken
as a deductible expense. The issue of allowing provision for doubtful debts as an expense, in the case
of another bank, was successfully challenged by tax department in the Islamabad High Court. The
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High Court rules in favor of the tax department through its order dated March 13, 2018 which has also
been upheld by the Supreme Court of Pakistan through its order dated June 05, 2018 due to which the
Bank has no legal basis to continue to recognize the receivable as an asset; and

c) Asexplained in Note 10.3, the loan portfolios of Small Business Finance Corporation (SBFC) and
Regional Development Finance Corporation (RDFC) were transferred to the National Bank of
Pakistan due to envisaged privatization of the Bank, however, the portfolio continues to appear
as an asset in the books of the Bank.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants” Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Material uncertainties relating to going concern

We draw attention to note 6.2 to the unconsolidated financial statements which describes that during
the current year the Bank incurred a net loss of Rs. 977.164 million (2019: Rs. 1,072.309 million)
resulting into accumulated losses of Rs. 5,761.702 million (2019: Rs. 4,811.162 million). As of
December 31, 2020, the reporting date, the total liabilities of the Bank have exceeded its total assets
by Rs. 3,160.083 million (2019: Rs. 2,512.445) indicating the negative equity and due to surplus of
current demand liabilities over its total unencumbered current liquid assets creating a negative working
capital of Rs. 4.684 billion (2019: Rs. 7.859 billion) though the situation is improved as compared
to last year but it still indicates the Bank’s inadequate capacity to ensure the timely repayments. Due
to cash inadequacy the Bank was unable to meet the statutory solvency requirements of minimum
capital (MCR) of Rs. 10,000 million and the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of 10%. Due to continued
stressed financial conditions the Bank’s credit rating fell from B negative (single B-) to CCC. Based on
the operational results SBP granted exemption from meeting the MCR and CAR up to December 31,
2019 or restructuring/ privatization, whichever is eatlier, subject to submission of a concrete plan from
the Ministry of Finance (MoF) to provide a firm commitment to inject the required amount of capital
funds in the Bank, if its privatization does not materialize by March 31, 2020. As stated in note 6.2,
these conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to note 14.3 to the unconsolidated financial statements, which describes in detail
the status of the possession of Bank’s property at Lahore. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Bank’s Annual Report, but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, on other information
obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the
requirements of Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and atre
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.
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*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial
statements of, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

)

b)

d)

propet books of account have been kept by the Bank/branches as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and the returns referred above from the branches have been found
adequate for the purpose of our audit;

the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated profit and loss account, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in
equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been
drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act,
2017(XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were in
accordance with the objects and powers of the Bank/ branches and the transactions of the Bank/
branches which have come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank/branches; and
zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was
deducted by the Bank and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that
Otrdinance.

We confirm that for the purpose of our audit we have covered more than sixty per cent of the total
loans and advances of the Bank.
Engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditot’s report is Hassaan Riaz

Seaa) ThombenAgjum wal

GRANT THORNTON ANJUM RAHMAN
Chartered Accountants

Islamabad

Dated: March 06, 2021
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at December 31, 2020

ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks
Lendings to financial institutions
Investments
Advances
Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets - net
Other assets

LIABILITIES
Bills payable
Borrowings
Deposits and other accounts
Liability against assets subject to finance lease
Sub-ordinated loans
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

NET LIABILITIES

REPRESENTED BY
Share capital
Reserves

Sutplus/(deficit) on revaluation of assets - net of tax

Unappropriated loss

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Note

10
11
12
13
14

15
16
17

18

20

21

2020

2019

Rupees in '000
P

668,727 650,565
2,123 4,537
5,828,353 5,739,975
1,530,344 1,907,995
472,184 532,112
1,756 1,331
874,915 752,294
562,685 563,192
9,941,087 10,152,001
99,986 51,543
4,127,613 3,654,771
7,602,262 7,500,708
1,271,309 1,457,424
13,101,170 12,664,446
(3,160,083) (2,512,445)
2,392,507 2,392,507
206,526 206,526
2,586 (300,316)
(5,761,702) (4,811,162)
(3,160,083) (2,512,445)

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 and annexure-1 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Coto Oty I

Omer Farooq
Director

Dilshad Ali Ahmad Sameena Gul

President/ CEO Chief Financial Officer

Hashim*Raza
Director
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Rauf Ahmad
Director
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UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended December 31, 2020

2020 2019

Note (Rupees in '000)
Mark-up/ return/ intetrest earned 22 738,948 776,306
Mark-up/ return/ interest expensed 23 1,008,663 1,149,619
Net mark-up/ interest loss (269,715) (373,313)
NON MARK-UP/ INTEREST INCOME
Fee and commission income 24 10,914 9,933
Dividend income 1,629 2,247
Foreign exchange income - -
Income / (loss) from derivatives - -
Gain/ (loss) on securities 25 815 7
Other income 26 1,576 980
Total non-markup/ interest income 14,934 13,167
Total loss (254,781) (360,1406)
NON MARK-UP/ INTEREST EXPENSES
Operating expenses 27 837,299 877,195
Workers Welfare Fund - .
Other charges 28 69,559 69,426
Total non-markup/ interest expenses 906,858 946,621
Loss before provisions (1,161,639) (1,306,767)
Provisions and write offs - net 29 (14,521) (19,358)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (1,147,118) (1,287,409)
Taxation 30 (169,954) (215,100)
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (977,164) (1,072,309)
Basic/diluted (loss) per share (rupees) 31 (4.08) (4.48)

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 and annexure-1 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Coto Oty I

Dilshad Ali Ahmad Sameena Gul Omer Farooq Hashim'Raza Rauf Ahmad
President/CEO Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended December 31, 2020

Net loss after taxation

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit and

loss account in subsequent periods

Movement in deficit on revaluation of investment
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and

loss account in subsequent periods

Remeasurement gain on defined benefit obligations - net

Total comprehensive loss

2020 2019

(Rupees in '000)
(977,164) (1,072,309)

302,902 135,489
26,624 118,237
(647,638) (818,583)

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 and annexure-1 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

i Ounluy M

Omer Farooq

Dilshad Ali Ahmad
President/ CEO

z{aza Rauf Ahmad
Director Director

Sameena Gul
Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended December 31, 2020

2020 2019
Note (Rupees in '000)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation (1,147,118) (1,287,409)
Less: Dividend income (1,629) (2,247)
(1,148,747) (1,289,656)
Adjustments:
Depreciation 72,445 70,687
Amortization 1,346 1,296
Provision and write-offs 29 (14,521) (19,358)
Loss/(gain) on sale of fixed assets (589) 32
Mark-up expense on leased liability against ROU assets 69,451 67,337
128,132 119,994
(1,020,615) (1,169,662)
(Increase)/ decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions - -
Held-for-trading securities - -
Advances 392,419 322,140
Other assets (excluding advance taxation) 35,049 20,407
427,468 342,547
Increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills payable 48,443 (67,245)
Borrowings from financial institutions 472,842 (1,085,124)
Deposits 101,554 1,779,700
Other liabilities (excluding current taxation) (147,477) 284,238
475,362 911,569
(117,785) 84,454
Income tax paid (2,515) (2,627)
Net cash flow generated (used in)/ from operating activities (120,300) 81,827
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net investment/disinvestment in available-for-sale securities 215,247 180,455
Net investment in held-to-maturity securities - -
Dividend received 1,629 2,247
Investment in operating fixed assets (3,065) (731)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 891 768
Net cash flow generated from investing activities 214,702 182,739
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of lease obligation (78,654) (69,541)
Net cash flow (used in) from financing activities (78,654) (69,541)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 15,748 195,025
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 655,102 460,077
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 32 670,850 655,102

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 and annexure-1 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

oo Ouney M

Dilshad Ali Ahmad Sameena Gul Omer Farooq Hashim'Raza Rauf Ahmad
President/CEO Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY
For the year ended December 31, 2020

Surplus/(deficit .
Share capital it::z::y on.t;l::vall/lition oz Unap I;;;)Spﬂated Total
investments
(Rupees in '000)

Balance as at January 01, 2019 2,392,507 206,526 (435,805) (3,857,090) (1,693,862)
Total comprehensive income for the

year ended December 31, 2019

Net loss after taxation - - - (1,072,309) (1,072,309)
Other comprehensive income - net of tax - - 135,489 118,237 253,726
Balance as at December 31, 2019 2,392,507 206,526 (300,316) (4,811,162) (2,512,445)
Total comprehensive income for the

year ended December 31, 2020

Net loss after taxation - - - (977,164) (977,164)
Other comprehensive income - net of tax - - 302,902 26,624 329,526
Balance as at December 31, 2020 2,392,507 206,526 2,586 (5,761,702) (3,160,083)

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 and annexure-1 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Cm%ggmg Donired 1y /7 /

Dilshad Ali Ahmad Sameena Gul Omer Farooq Hashim*Raza Rauf Ahmad
President/CEO Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2020

GENERAL INFORMATION
SME Bank Limited (the Bank) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan on

1

11

October 30, 2001 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 having its registered office
at 56-F, Nazim-ud-Din Road, F-6/1, Blue Area Islamabad. The Bank obtained its business
commencement certificate on April 16, 2005 which became effective from the date of its issue.
The Bank is a scheduled commercial bank engaged in the business of banking with the primary
objective to support and develop Small and Medium Enterprise (SME) sector in Pakistan by
providing necessary financial assistance and business support services on sustainable basis.
The Bank is operating through a network of 13 commercial banking branches. Based on the
latest credit rating report dated November 22, 2018 issued by Pakistan Credit Rating Agency

Limited (PACRA), credit rating of the Bank was “CCC” in the long term and “B” (Single B)
in the short term. Subsequent to above, the credit rating of Bank has not been updated.

In terms of Bank’s License No. BL-05 dated September 13, 2004 issued under section 27 of
the Banking Companies Ordinance 1962, the Bank is required to hold minimum paid-up-
capital (net of losses) of Rs. 1.0 billion at the time of issuance of said license, and at all times
thereafter during which the above capital is required to be raised to Rs. 1.5 billion by December
31, 2004 and to Rs. 2.0 billion by December 31, 2005 or any other amount prescribed by
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) from time to time. SBP granted exemption vide its letter No.
BPRD/BA&CPD/646/332/2020 dated January 06, 2020 from meeting the minimum capital
requirement (MCR) till December 31, 2019 ot completion of restructuring/ptivatization of
the Bank, whichever is earlier. Although further relaxation of MCR has not been granted but
SBP has not objected the non-compliance of MCR as it is fully aware about the progress of

the privatization of the Bank.
1.2 Amalgamation of defunct RDFC and SBFC
The Federal Government promulgated the Regional Development Finance Corporation
(RDFC) and Small Business Finance Corporation (SBFC) Amalgamation and Conversion

Otrdinance, 2001 (the Ordinance 2001) setting forth the mechanism of amalgamation of

defunct RDFC and SBFFC. Both these entities were Development Financial Institutions (DFIs).
In pursuance of the Ordinance 2001, Finance Division, Ministry of Finance (MoF) issued an

Otder (SRO (1) 2001) dated December 29, 2001 setting forth the scheme of amalgamation

of RDFC and SBFC with the Bank effective January 1, 2002. Pursuant to this scheme entire
assets and liabilities of defunct RDFC and SBFC as at December 31, 2001 were transferred

to the Bank at fair value. These two institutions stand dissolved and ceased to exist effective
January 1, 2002. The Bank allotted its shates to the share holders of defunct RDFC and SBFC

in proportion to their shareholding therein based on the fair value of net assets of defunct
RDFC and SBFC on December 31, 2001.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
These unconsolidated financial statements have been presented in accordance with the format
prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan vide BPRD Circular No. 02 of 2018 dated January

2

2.1
25, 2018.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020

2.2 These unconsolidated financial statements are separate financial statements of the Bank in
which the investment in subsidiary is stated at cost and has not been accounted for on the
basis of reported results and net assets of the investee which is done in consolidated financial
statements.

2.3 The unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Bank’s
functional currency. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees, unless
otherwise stated.

3 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

3.1 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the
Companies Act, 2017, provisions of and the directives issued under the Banking Companies
Otrdinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and directives issued by SBP and the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Whenever the requirements of the Banking
Companies Ordinance, 1962, Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by SBP and SECP
differ with the requirements of IFRS, requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance,
1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives shall prevail.

The SBP, vide BPRD circular no. 4, dated October 23, 2019, has deferred the applicability
of IFRS 9, Financial Instruments until January 01, 2021. International Accounting Standard
39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” (before its replacement by
IFRS 9), International Accounting Standard 40, “Investment Property” and International
Financial Reporting Standard 7,”Financial Instruments: Disclosure” are not applicable to
banking companies in Pakistan. Accordingly, the requirements of these Standards have not
been considered in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements prescribed
by the SBP through various circulars.

SECP vide its notification SRO 633 (I)/2014 dated July 10, 2014, adopted IFRS-10,
Consolidated Financial Statements, effective from the periods starting from June 30, 2014.
However, vide its notification SRO 56(1)/2016 dated January 28, 2016, it has been notified
that the requirements of IFRS-10 and section 228 of the Companies Act, 2017 will not be
applicable with respect to the investment in mutual funds established under Trust structure.

3.2 Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published accounting and reporting
standards that are not yet effective in the current year
Following standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), which are yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) for the purpose of their applicability in Pakistan:
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020

3.3

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)

IFRS 1 |First-Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting January 01, 2009
Standards (Amendments)

IFRS 17 |Insurance Contracts January 01, 2022

Following standards and amendments to published accounting standards will be effective in
future periods and have not been early adopted by the Bank.

IFRS 7 &|Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 — Amendments to|January 01, 2021
IFRS 9 |IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

IFRS 9 |Financial Instruments January 1, 2021

IFRS 4 |Insurance Contracts (Amendments January 1, 2021

IFRS 3 |Business Combinations (Amendments January 1, 2022

IAS 16  |Property, plant and equipment (Amendments) January 1, 2022

IAS 37 | Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets January 1, 2022
(Amendments)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments) January 1, 2023

IFRS 10 |Consolidated Financial Statements & Investment in Associates|Not yet finalized

& IAS 28|and Joint Ventures (Amendments)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting
standards that are effective in the current year

There are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are
mandatory for the Bank’s accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 but are
considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Bank’ operations
and are therefore not detailed in these unconsolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

4.1

4.2
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These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention as modified for certain investments which are carried at fair value, obligations in
respect of defined benefit schemes and lease liability under IFRS 16 at their present values.

Use of critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Bank’s
accounting policies. The Bank uses estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimate will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020

the circumstances. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are as follow:

) Classification of investments (note 5.2)

1i) Provision/impairment against investments, advances and other assets (note 5.7)

i) Valuation and impairment of available for sale securities (note 5.7)

iv) Useful life and residual value of property and equipment and intangible assets (note 5.5)
V) Taxation (note 5.9)

vi) Staff retirement benefits (note 5.10)

Vvit) Leases (note 5.06)

5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial
statements are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and balances with treasury banks, balances with
other banks and call money lending’s.

5.2 Investments

Investments other than those categorized as held-for-trading are initially recognised at fair
value which includes transactions costs associated with the investments. Investments classified
as held-for-trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in
the unconsolidated profit and loss account.

All regular way purchases/sales of investment are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date the
Bank commits to purchase/sell the investments. Regular way purchases or sales of investment
require delivery of securities within the time frame generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

The Bank has classified its investment portfolio, except for investments in subsidiary into
‘held-for-trading’, ‘held-to-maturity’ and ‘available-for-sale’ as follows:

Held for Trading

These are securities which are acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantage of
short-term market/interest rate movements and are to be sold within 90 days. These are
carried at market value, with the related unrealized gain/(loss) on revaluation being taken to
profit and loss account.

Held to Maturity

These represent investments acquired by the Bank with the intention and ability to hold them
upto maturity. These are carried at amortized cost less impairment if any. Impairment in debt
securities is determined in accordance with the requirements of Prudential Regulations issued

by SBP.
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Available for sale

These are investments that do not fall under the held-for-trading or held-to-maturity categories.
These are carried at market value except in case of unquoted securities where market value
is not available, which are carried at the lower of cost and break-up value less provision for
diminution in value, if any. Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation is taken to ‘surplus/(deficit) on
revaluation of assets’ account shown as part of equity. On derecognition or impairment
in quoted available-for-sale investments, the cumulative gain or loss previously reported as
‘surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of assets’ below equity is included in the unconsolidated
profit and loss account for the year.

Provision for diminution in values of securities (other than term finance certificates) is made
after considering impairment if any in their values, where the decline in prices of available
for sale equity securities is significant or prolonged, it is considered impaired and included in
unconsolidated profit and loss account. Provision for diminution in the value of term finance
certificates is made as per Prudential Regulations issued by SBP.

Held-for-trading and quoted available-for-sale securities are marked to market with reference
to ready quotes on Reuters page (PKRV) or MUFAP or the Stock Exchanges, as the case may
be.

Investment in subsidiary
Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost less impairment, if any. The investment in subsidiary
is not marked to market as per prudential regulations issued by SBP.

Agreements for sale and purchase of securities (repo and reverse repo)

Securities sold under repurchase agreement (repo) are retained in the unconsolidated financial
statements as investments and a liability for consideration received is included in borrowings.
The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as mark-up expense and recognized
over the period of contract.

Securities purchased under agreement to resell (reverse repo) are included in lendings to
financial institutions. The difference between purchase and resale price is treated as mark-up
income and recognized over the period of the contract.

Advances

Advances are stated net off specific and general provisions. Provisions are made in accordance
with the requirements of Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP and charged to the
unconsolidated profit and loss account. These regulations prescribe an age based criteria for
classification of non-performing loans and advances and computing provision/allowance
there against. Such regulations also require the Bank to maintain general provision/allowance
against its Small Entity (SE) advances portfolio at specified percentage of such portfolio.

Advances are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
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5.5

5.6

Capital work-in progress, operating fixed assets, intangibles, depreciation and
amortization

Capital work-in-progress
Capital-work-in progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. These are
transferred to operating fixed assets as and when the assets are available for use.

Operating fixed assets-owned
These are stated at cost less impairment loss and accumulated depreciation except for freechold/
leasehold land. Land is stated at cost less impairment, if any.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to unconsolidated profit and loss account as and
when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged on straight line method at the rates given in note 11.1 commencing
from the month in which the asset is available for use. No depreciation is charged in the
month of disposal of the asset. The residual value, useful life and depreciation method is
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Gains or losses on disposal of property and equipment are taken to the unconsolidated profit
and loss account.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognized only if it is identifiable, the Bank has control over the asset,
it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably.

All intangible assets that meet the recognition criteria are initially measured at cost and are
amortized on a straight line basis at the rate given in note 12 commencing from the month
when these assets are available for use. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses, if any. The residual value, useful life and amortization
method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Bank as a lessee
The Bank recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying asset.

Right-of-use (RoU) assets

At the commencement date of the lease, the right-of-use asset is initially measured
at the present value of lease liability. Subsequently, RoU assets are measured at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. RoU assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.
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Lease liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognizes lease liability measured at the
present value of the consideration (lease payments) to be made over the lease term and is
adjusted for lease prepayments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, unless it is not readily determinable, in which case the lessee may use the
incremental rate of borrowing. After the commencement date, the carrying amount of lease
liability is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made.

Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with renewal and termination
options (Bank as a lessee)

The Bank determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised,
or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Bank has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Bank
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.

Incremental borrowing rate (IBR)

The IBR is the rate of markup that the Bank would have to pay to borrow over a similar term,
and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-
of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The Bank estimates the IBR using observable
inputs such as market interest rates.

Impairment

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment,
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets
may not be recoverable. If such indication exists, and where the carrying value exceeds
the estimated recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amount.
The resulting impairment loss is taken to the unconsolidated profit and loss account. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying value that would have been determined net of depreciation/amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized.

The available for sale equity investments are impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the value below its cost. Impairment loss is recognized in unconsolidated
profit & loss account.
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5.8

5.9

5.10

Deposits

Deposits are recorded at the nominal values of proceeds received. Markup accrued on deposits
is recognised separately as part of other liabilities and is charged to unconsolidated profit and
loss account on a time proportion basis.

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognised in the unconsolidated profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it
is recognised in other comprehensive income or below equity.

Current

Provision for current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year using
tax rates applicable at the date of unconsolidated statement of financial position and any
adjustment to tax payable for previous years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheetliability method in respect of all temporary
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the unconsolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit
at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on
the tax rates that have been enacted. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax asset is reduced to
the extent it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized.

The Bank also recognizes deferred tax asset/liability on deficit/surplus on revaluation of
investments which is adjusted against the related deficit/surplus in accordance with the
requirements of International Accounting Standard on ‘Income Taxes” (IAS 12).

The Bank takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation
authorities. Instances where the Bank’s views differ from the views taken by the income tax
department at the assessment stage and where the Bank considers that its view on items of
material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Staff retirement and other benefits
The Bank operates following staff retirement and other benefit schemes for its employees:

Defined benefit plan - pension and gratuity scheme

Fully funded defined benefit pension and gratuity scheme for eligible employees. Contributions
are made in accordance with the actuarial valuation which is carried out periodically using
‘Projected Unit Credit Method’. All actuarial gains and losses ate recognized immediately
through other comprehensive income.
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5.11.2

5.11.3

Annual Report 2020 66

Defined benefit funded gratuity scheme

The Bank operates a defined benefit funded gratuity scheme for its contractual employees.
The obligation under the defined benefit unfunded gratuity scheme is recognized on the basis
of actuarial valuation using the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method’.

Benevolent fund

The Bank also operates a contributory benevolent fund for all its eligible employees (defined
benefit scheme). Contributions to this fund were made equally by the Bank and employees till
March 2002. Thereafter it is wholly contributed by the Bank at the rate of 2% of basic salary
with a ceiling of Rs. 200 per month per employee. Annual contribution towards the defined

benefit scheme are made on the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

Compensated absences

The Bank provides compensated absences, an unfunded scheme, as per entitlement to all its
permanent and contractual employees. For its eligible employees, related provision is made in
accordance with actuarial valuation. Provision for the year is charged to unconsolidated profit
and loss account. The amount recognized in unconsolidated statement of financial position
represents present value of defined benefit obligation.

Defined benefit plans are provided to employees of the Bank. Calculations in this respect
require assumptions to be made of future outcomes, the principal ones being in respect of
increase in remuneration, the expected long-term return on plan assets and the discount rate
used to convert future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the
undetlying assumptions.

Revenue recognition
Advances

Advances disbursed by SME Bank Limited:

Markup/interest on performing advances is recognized on a time proportion basis over the
term of loan and advances. Markup/interest/penal markup recoverable on non petforming
advances is recognized on receipt basis. Mark-up/interest on rescheduled/restructured
advances and investments is recognised as permitted by the regulations of the SBP.

Return on investments

Return on investments is recognized on a time proportion basis except on classified investment
which is recognized on receipt basis. Any premium paid or discount received on purchase of
securities is amortized through unconsolidated profit and loss account over the remaining
period of maturity on time apportionment basis.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Bank’s right to receive the dividend is established.
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5.11.4

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

Interest, fee, brokerage and commission

Interest, fee, brokerage and commission, profit on other investments, bank deposits and
staff loans is recognized on accrual basis. Income on non-funded facilities (fee, commission,
documentation charges etc.) is recognized on receipt basis except commission on bank
guarantees which is recognized on accrual basis.

Off setting

Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset are capitalized. Other borrowing costs are
recognized as an expense in the period in which it incurs.

Provisions

Provisions are recorded when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of obligation. Provision for guarantee claims and other off balance sheet obligations is
recognized when intimated and reasonable certainty exists to settle the obligations. Expected
recoveties are recognized by debiting customer accounts. Charge to unconsolidated profit and
loss account is stated net off expected recoveries.

Financial assets and liabilities

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Bank becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset is derecognised where
(a) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or (b) the Bank has transferred
its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (i) the Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (i) the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. A financial liability is derecognised when
the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities is taken to income currently.

Segment reporting

A segment is the distinguishable component of the Bank that is subject to risks and rewards
that are different from those of other segments. A business segment is one that is engaged
cither in providing certain products or services, whereas a geographical segment is one engaged
in providing products and services within a particular economic environment. Segment
information is presented as per the Bank’s functional structure and the guidance of the State
Bank of Pakistan. The Bank’s primary format of reporting is based on business segments:
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5.16.1 Business segments
Trading and sales
This segment undertakes the Bank’s treasury, money market and capital market activities.
Commercial banking
It includes loans, deposits and other transactions with individuals/staff, small and medium
enterprises and corporate customers.

5.16.2 Geographical segments
The Bank operates only in Pakistan.

5.17  Appropriation to reserves
Dividend and appropriation to reserves (except appropriation required by law) after the
balance sheet date are recognized as liability in the Bank’s financial statement in the year in
which these are approved.

5.18  IFRS 13 - ‘Fair Value Measurement’
It consolidates the guidance on how to measure fair value into one comprehensive standard. It
introduces the use of an exact price, as well as extensive disclosure requirements, particularly
the inclusion of non financial instruments into the fair value hierarchy. The application of
IFRS 13 does not have an impact on the unconsolidated financial statements of the Company
except for certain disclosures as mentioned in note 37.

6 FINANCIAL RESTRUCTURING AND GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION

6.1 Current Status of Privatization of SME Bank

Annual Report 2020 68

Government of Pakistan (GOP) decided in their meeting held on November 19, 2018 to
relaunch the privatization transaction of the Bank through Privatization Commission (PC).
Cabinet Committee on Privatization (CCOP) approved the new privatization program of the
Bank on March 006, 2019 to divest the GOPs equity stake in the Bank along with management
control to a strategic investor. Accordingly, PC recommended the transaction structure for
the privatization of the Bank to CCOP who approved the referred transaction structure on
November 15, 2019. Thereafter through a due process invitation for expression of interest
for acquisition of 93.88% shares of the Bank were advertised in newspapers on December
13, 2019. The last date for submission of EOIs and Statement of Qualifications (SOQs)
was Pebruary 28, 2020. Five prospective investors have submitted their SOQs against the
advertisement, out of that four have been cleared by SBP. The buyers side due diligence
is completed on August 24, 2020 and the final draft of share purchase agreement (SPA)
has been shared with three pre-qualified bidders. Comments from pre-qualified bidders on
instructions to bidders (ITB) and SPA have been deliberated by the Transaction Committee
and clarifications to this effect have been given to pre-qualified bidders. A joint meeting of
the Transaction Committee, SBP and pre-qualified bidders held on December 29th, 2020
and December 30th, 2020 with reference to “Pre-Bid Conference” and “Valuation Model”
wherein the queries of pre-qualified potential bidders have been clarified and some of them
pertaining to license, merger and MCR have been forwarded to SBP for its clarification whose
response is awaited.
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6.2 Going concern assumption and minimum capital requirement

During the current year the Bank incurred a netloss of Rs. 977.164 million (2019: Rs. 1,072.309
million) resulting into accumulated losses of Rs. 5,761.702 million (2019: Rs. 4,811.162 million).
As of December 31, 2020, the reporting date, the total liabilities of the Bank have exceeded
its total assets by Rs. 3,160.083 million (2019: Rs. 2,512.445) indicating the negative equity
and due to surplus of current demand liabilities over its total unencumbered current liquid
assets creating a negative working capital of Rs. 4.684 billion (2019: Rs. 7.859 billion) though
the situation is improved as compare to last year but it still indicates the Bank’s inadequate
capacity to ensure the timely repayments. Due to cash inadequacy the Bank was unable to
meet the statutory solvency requirements of minimum capital (MCR) of Rs. 10,000 million
and the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of 10%. Due to continued stressed financial conditions
the Bank’s credit rating fell from B negative (single B-) to CCC. Based on the operational
results SBP granted exemption from meeting the MCR and CAR up to December 31, 2019 or
restructuring/privatization, whichever is eatliet, subject to submission of a concrete plan from
the Ministry of Finance (MoF) to provide a firm commitment to inject the required amount
of capital funds in the Bank, if its privatization does not materialize by March 31, 2020.
These conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainty that may cast a significant
doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as going concern and therefore it may not be able to
realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the ordinary course of business. To overcome
the same, the Government of Pakistan (GoP) being the majority shareholder with 93.88%
shareholding in the Bank has initiated the process of privatization of the Bank. The MoF
through its letter No. E3(27)IF-111/2005-185 dated February 26, 2020 has informed SBP that
the privatization process is likely to be completed within the period of three to four months
and requested SBP for extension of relaxation of regulatory requirements till June 30, 2021.
Thereafter, the Bank also vide its latest letter No. SMEBL: HO: CFO&CS: 01:2021/1609/430
dated January 18, 2021 has requested SBP to allow exemption from MCR till June 30, 2021 or
privatization of the Bank whichever is earlier. MoI’ and management of the Bank are hopeful
of a favorable response as SBP has not objected the non-compliance of MCR. Moreover, the
process of privatization of the Bank is at the advance stage as five prospective investors have
submitted their Statement of Qualifications (SOQs), out of which four have been cleared by
SBP. The buyers side due diligence is completed on August 24, 2020 and the final draft of
share purchase agreement (SPA) has been shared with three pre-qualified bidders. Comments
from pre-qualified bidders on instructions to bidders I'TB) and SPA have been deliberated by
the Transaction Committee and clarifications to this effect have been given to pre-qualified
bidders. A joint meeting of the Transaction Committee, SBP and pre-qualified bidders held on
December 29 & 30 2020 and December 30, 2020 with reference to “Pre-Bid Conference” and
“Valuation Model” wherein the queries of pre-qualified potential bidders have been clarified
and some of them pertaining to license, merger and MCR have been forwarded to SBP for
its clarification whose response is awaited. Considering the current stage of the privatization
process the management of the Bank strongly believes that the privatization of the Bank
shall be completed soon and will result into injection of fresh equity enabling the Bank to
expand and finance its operations while MoF is committed to provide all necessary financial
assistance to the Bank to support its operations till the privatization. In view of above the
management of the Bank believes that the use of going concern assumption in preparation
of these unconsolidated financial statements is appropriate and, therefore, have prepared the
same on a going concern basis.
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2020 2019
7. CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS Note (Rupees in '000)
In hand
Local currency 175,571 123,638
In transit - local currency - -
With State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) in:
Local currency current accounts 7.1 419,782 468,270
With National Bank of Pakistan in:
Local currency current accounts 73,334 58,486
40 171
668,727 650,565

Prize bonds
Deposits with the State Bank of Pakistan are maintained to comply with the statutory requirements issued

71
from time to time.
2020 2019
8. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS Note (Rupees in '000)
In Pakistan:
On current accounts 500 500
On deposit accounts 11,623 14,037
Provision for doubtful balance with a bank 8.1 (10,000) (10,000)
2,123 4,537
8.1 Particulars of provision for doubtful placement with a bank
Opening balance (10,000) (10,000)
Charge for the year - R
(10,000) (10,000)

Reversals

Closing balance
Provision for doubtful balance is in respect of deposit of Rs. 10 million (2019: Rs. 10 million) with Indus

Bank Limited which is under liquidation.
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2020 2019
9.3 Provision for diminution in value of investments (Rupees in '000)
Opening balance 151,241 171,241
Charge / reversals
Charge for the year - -
Reversal for the year - -
Reversal on disposals - (20,000)
- (20,000)
Transfers - net - -
Amount written off - -
Closing balance 151,241 151,241
9.3.1 Particulars of provision against debt securities category of classification
2020 2019
Domestic NPI | Provision NPI | Provision

(Rupees '000)

Other assets especially mentioned

Substandard - - - -
Doubtful - - - -
Loss 762 762 762 762
762 762 762 762
9.4 Quality of Available-for-sale Secutities 2020 2019

| Cost/Amortised cost |
(Rupees '000)

Federal Government Securities - Government guaranteed

Market Treasury Bill 2,820,478 1,061,452
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2,859,507 4,833,780
5,679,985 5,895,232
Shares 2020 2019
| Cost |
Listed Companies (Rupees '000)
- Chemicals 810 810
- Investment banks/companies 13,236 13,236
- Synthetic and Rayon 336 336
- Technology and communication 587 587
- Textile composite 30 30
14,999 14,999
2020 2019
Unlisted / delisted Companies Cost |Breakup value Cost | Breakup value
Note (Rupees '000)
- ISE Towers REIT Management Company Limited 9.4.1 18,000 46,885 18,000 43,971
- LSE Financial Services Limited 9.4.1 8,440 19,606 8,440 19,369
- News-v/s Credit Information Services (Pvt) Limited. 100 30 100 30
- Companies delisted from stock exchange 9.42 1,003 - 1,003 -
27,543 66,521 27,543 63,370

9.4.1  Break up value per share is based on the latest available audited financial statements of investees.
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42 Particulars of investments in shares of companies delisted from stock exchange and are currently under liquidation was as under.
Numberof ~ COS/Paid i paid up
shares held up value per value

share
(Rupees '000)
- Mohib Exports Company Limited 4,600 23.81 109
- Sunflow Citrus Limited 100,000 4.22 422
- Tawakal Garments Company Limited 4,000 38.38 154
- Tristar Shipping Lines Limited 5,000 23.56 118
- Zahoor Textile Mills Limited 15,200 13.16 200
1,003
2020 2019
Mutual Funds | Cost
(Rupees '000)
- HBL investment fund - Class A 654 654
- HBL investment fund - Class B 1,216 1,216
1,870 1,870
9.5 Particulars relating to Held to Maturity securities are as follows: 2020 2019
| Cost

Non Government Debt Securities
(Rupees '000)

Unlisted
-A/A1 35,000 35,000
- Unrated 762 762
35,762 35,762
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10.3 Non-Performing Loan (NPL) portfolios of defunct SBFC & RDFC

The Board through its resolution by circular No.10/circ/33 dated March 08, 2010 duly endorsed by the members
in their meeting dated May 20, 2010 has approved the transfer and assignment of fully non- performing loan
portfolios of defunct SBFC & RDFC to NBP on the basis of deferred transfer price. Subsequently transfer and
assighment agreement was executed between the Bank and National Bank of Pakistan at Karachi on July 01,
2010 (Effective date). According to the agreement, the transferor (SME) and the acquirer (NBP) acknowledge,
declare and confirm the transfer, assignment and vesting of all rights, interests, privileges, title, powers and
remedies in favor of the acquirer with respect to:

a) the non-performing loans, collateral and the debtors;

b) all agreements, deeds, instruments and other documents relating to the non-performing loans, debtors and
collateral and to which the transferor is, or legally deemed to be, a party or a beneficiary;

9) all legal proceedings by and against the transferor with respect to the non-performing loans, the debtors and
collateral, which may be pending before any court, tribunal, arbitrator or authority, without being subject to any
liabilities of the transferor to any person.

The agreed transfer price was amount equal to 50% of net recoveries.

Under the above referred arrangements, portfolio of defunct SBFC & RDFC outstanding as on June 30, 2010
(Except outstanding loans of RDFC where facility of Equity Participation Fund had also been extended) were
transferred to NBP.

On request of the Bank’s management the decision to transfer and assignment of the portfolio was revisited
by the BoD in its 65th meeting held on July 13, 2011 and resolved that the agreement of assignment of the old
portfolio to NBP should be cancelled and Board’s pronouncement for revocation of agreement to Ministry of
Finance to arrange retrieval/restoration of old portfolio to the Bank in the interest of recovery of public funds.

In the meeting held on March 04, 2013 the Board of Directors reconsidered the position taken eatlier on this
matter on grounds of related cost of recovery and infrastructure on request of then management and decided
that since the Bank is still on the privatization list, BoD would be able to decide on portfolio after Bank’s
delisting from privatization.

The incumbent management has again reviewed the situation and noted that no comparative analysis/study
pertaining to transfer of portfolio was conducted which could justify the decision of assigning old portfolio to
NBP.

In view of the above, foregoing Board was requested in its 83rd meeting, held on August 30, 2014 and the
management of the Bank was allowed to proceed further in pursuance of resolution / direction passed regarding
the subject matter in 64th and 65th Meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 16, 2011 and July 13, 2011
respectively by overruling to verdict of the Board of Directors given on the issue in 75th Meeting of Board of
Directors held on March 04, 2013.

Cabinet Committee on Privatization (CCOP) in its meeting held on January 27, 2017 has approved the
transaction structure of the Bank’s privatization. The transaction structure has excluded the above portfolios
from the privatization transaction and the CCOP in above referred meeting has directed the Bank to transfer
the said portfolios to NBP and that all recoveries made by NBP from the loan portfolio shall be deposited in
the Federal Consolidated Fund (FCF), a related party as being managed by Ministry of Finance (MoF).

Pursuant to above, being directed by MoF the management of the Bank has obtained an independent legal advice
for defining the legal procedures for the implementation of the requirement of MoF. The legal advice proposed
that the Bank may via a tri party novation agreement between SME, NBP and GoP through MoF, transfer and
surrender any rights, obligations and liabilities on the remaining receivable assets in the loan portfolio to FCF
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against any consideration amount. The Novation agreement will further allow for any recoveries made by NBP
in relation to the loan portfolio to be deposited directly in FCF as the recoveries will no longer be an asset of
the Bank.

In line with the steps proposed by the legal advisor the board of directors of the Bank in its meeting held on
December 31, 2017 has approved the transfer of non-performing loan portfolios of defunct SBFC & RDFC
to MoF and NBP via a tri party novation agreement between SME, NBP and GoP through MoF at a value
of Rs.100 as a sale consideration. Thereafter, the shareholders of the Bank in their meeting held on January
22, 2018 through their special resolution have also authorized the transfer of the portfolios as approved by
the board of directors of the Bank, however, the Allied Bank Limited carrying 0.33% holding in the Bank has
opposed the resolution and required the sale of the portfolio at a fair market value (FMV). According to above
majority decision of the shareholders both the portfolios have been transferred to the FCF and NBP against an
aggregate sale consideration of Rs. 100 under a tri-party agreement (the Agreement) executed on February 23,
2018 between the Bank, NBP and FCE. As of the date of the tri-party Agreement the Bank has transferred and
surrendered all the recoveries, rights, obligation, claims and liabilities of the referred loan portfolios in favor of
the FCE.

The management of the Bank continues to show these loan portfolios in its book of accounts pending
confirmation of recording by NBP in its books of accounts to ensure that the above loans are duly accounted
by NBP in compliance to the terms of the agreement dated Feb 23, 2018. The Bank has requested with various
intervals to share the details of the road map prepared by NBP for smooth transfer of accounting record related
to the legacy loan portfolio from books of the Bank to books of NBP but NBP did not respond.
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10.4  Advances include Rs. 5,373.260 million (2019: Rs. 5,395.139 million) which have been placed under non-performing status as

detailed below:
2020 2019
Non Non
Performing Provision Performing Provision

Category of Classification Loans Loans

Note (Rupees in '000)
Domestic
Other Assets Especially Mentioned 1,397 41 6,613 2
Substandard 21,498 91 10,763 36
Doubtful 15,333 1,258 43,808 326
Loss 5,335,032 5,231,335 5,333,955 5,256,686

10.4.1 5,373,260 5,232,725 5,395,139 5,257,050

10.4.1 This include non performing loans and provision of Rs: 484.794 million and Rs: 344.317 million respectively (2019: Rs. 505.657
million & Rs. 367.670 million) relating to SME portfolio.
10.5  Particulars of provision against advances
2020 2019
Specific General Total Specific General Total
(Rupees in '000)

Opening balance 5,257,050 8 5,257,058 5,257,662 25 5,257,687
Charge/(Reversal)
Charge for the year 22,631 8,587 31,218 24874 - 24,874
Reversal for the year (45,984) (2) (45,986) (24,229) (17) (24,240)
(23,353) 8,585 (14,768) 645 17) 628
Amounts written off - - - - - -
Reversal of provision of transferred portfolio 972) - 972) (1,257) - (1,257)
Closing balance 5,232,725 8,593 5,241,318 5,257,050 8 5,257,058

10.5.1 General provision has been recorded at the rate of 1% (2019: 1%) of unsecured performing small enterprises portfolio plus a buffer
which approximates to 4.5% (2019: Nil) of covid affected borrowers who availed SBP enabled deferment.

10.5.2 The FSV benefit availed in last years has been increased by Rs. 13.327 million, which has resulted decrease in charge for specific
provision for the year by the same amount. The FSV benefit is not available for cash or stock dividend / bonus to employees. Had the
FSV benefit not recognized, loss before and after tax for the period would have been increased by Rs. 13.327 million (2019: increased
by Rs. 26.044 million). As of the current reporting date the effect of FSV benefit taken against provision is aggregated to Rs. 115.490
million (2019: Rs. 102.163 million).

2020 2019
10.5.3 Particulars of provisions against advances Specific General Total Specific General Total
(Rupees in '000)
In local currency 5,232,725 8,593 5,241,318 5,257,050 8 5257058
In foreign currencies - - - - - -
5,232,725 8,593 5,241,318 5,257,050 8 5257058
2020 2019

10.6 Particulars of Write Off:

(Rupees in '000)

10.6.1 Against provisions
Directly charged to Profit & Loss account

10.6.2 Write Offs of Rs. 500,000 and above
Write Offs of below Rs. 500,000 -

10.7 Details of Loan Write Off of Rs. 500,000 and above
In terms of sub-section(3) of Section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 the Statement in respect of written-off loans or
any other financial relief of rupees five hundred thousand or above allowed to a person(s) during the year ended December 31, 2020 is

given at Annexure-1.
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11. FIXED ASSETS 2020 2019
Note (Rupees in '000)

Property and equipment 11.1 16,940 34,519

Right of use assets 11.2 455,244 497,593

472184 532,112

2020
Building Furniture Electrical
111 Property and Equipment Freehold [ Leasehold on ) Lease hold and office and Vehicles Total
Land Land Freehold | improvement computer
Land fixture equipment
At January 01, 2020 (Rupees '000)
Cost - 450 15,600 38,810 9,346 179,015 42,860 286,081
Accumulated depreciation/impairment - - 10,985 36,653 8,971 155,927 39,026 251,562
Net book value - 450 4,615 2,157 375 23,088 3,834 34,519
Year ended December 2020
Opening net book value - 450 4,615 2,157 375 23,088 3,834 34,519
Additions - - - 56 - 1,238 - 1,294
Disposals - - - - - - (302) (302)
Depreciation charge - - (780) (2,077) (279) (12,353) (3,082)  (18,571)
Closing net book value - 450 3,835 136 96 11,973 450 16,940
At December 31, 2020
Cost - 450 15,600 38,866 9,346 180,253 38,568 283,083
Accumulated depreciation/impairment - - 11,765 38,730 9,250 168,280 38,118 266,143
Net book value - 450 3,835 136 96 11,973 450 16,940
Rate of depreciation (percentage) - - 5 33.33 20 15 & 33.33 20 -
2019
Freehold Leasehold B\fﬂdmg on Lease hold Furniture Blectrical office .
Land Land Freehold improvement |and fixture and c_omputcr Vehicles Total
Land equipment
At January 01, 2019 (Rupees '000)
Cost - 450 15,600 38,771 9,334 178,561 44,780 287,496
Accumulated depreciation/impairment - - 10,205 34,029 8,518 143,222 36,146 232,120
Net book value B 450 5,395 4,742 816 35,339 8,634 55376
Year ended December 2019
Opening net book value - 450 5,395 4,742 816 35,339 8,634 55,376
Additions - - - 39 12 454 - 505
Disposals - - - - - - (800) (800)
Depreciation charge - - (780) (2,624) (453) (12,705) (4,000)  (20,562)
Closing net book value - 450 4,615 2,157 375 23,088 3,834 34,519
At December 31, 2019
Cost - 450 15,600 38,810 9,346 179,015 42,860 286,081
Accumulated depreciation/impairment - - 10,985 36,653 8,971 155,927 39,026 251,562
Net book value - 450 4,615 2,157 375 23,088 3,834 34,519
Rate of depreciation (percentage) - - 5 33.33 20 15 & 33.33 20 -
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11.2

11.3

11.4

12
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Right of use assets

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)

Opening net book value 497,593 547,718
Additions 11,525 -
Depreciation (53,874) (50,125)
Closing net book value 455,244 497,593
Details of disposal of fixed assets :
. Accumulated Gain/ (loss)
Particulars of Cost depreciation Book Sale onsale of  Mode of disposal  Particulars of buyers
assets . . value proceeds
/impairment fixed assets
(Rupees '000)
Vehicles
Suzuki Bolan 393 393 - 300 300 Insurance claim United Insurance Co.
Toyota Corolla 2,014 1,712 302 403 101 As per Bank policy ~ Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad
Toyota Corolla 1,885 1,885 - 188 188 As per Bank policy ~ Mr. Sohail Ishtiaq Khan
2020 4,292 3,990 302 891 589
2019 1,920 1,120 800 768 (32)

Gross carrying amount of fully depreciated assets that are still in use was Rs. 197.521 million (2019: Rs. 177.157 million).

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At January 1

Cost

Accumulated amortization and impairment
Net book value

Year ended December 31
Opening net book value
Additions:

- developed internally

- directly purchased

Disposals
Amortization charge
Closing net book value

As December 31

Cost

Accumulated amortization and impairment
Net book value

Rate of amortization (percentage)
Useful life

2020 2019
Computer software Computer software
(Rupees in '000)

30,787 30,561
29,456 28,160
1,331 2,401
1,331 2,401
1,771 226
1,771 2,627
1,346 1,296
1,756 1,331
32,558 30,787
30,802 29,456
1,756 1,331

33.33 33.33

3 years 3 years

Gross carrying amount of fully depreciated intangible assets that are still in use was Rs. 28.103 million (2019: Rs. 26.946 million).
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14.

141

14.2

14.3
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2020 2019

OTHER ASSETS Note (Rupees in '000)
Income/mark-up accrued in local currency - net of provision 14.1 130,491 168,490
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 21,891 24,279
Advance taxation - net 14.2 243,077 208,288
Non banking asset acquired in satisfaction of claims 14.3 147,066 147,066
Due from benevolent fund- unsecured 35.2 5,552 5,412
Receivable from NBP 2,966 1,853
Receivable from subsidiary company 4,157 2,212
Receivable from Equity Participation Fund 1,760 611
Trading right entitlement certificate 21,560 21,560
Receivable from Speedway Fondmetall Pakistan Limited 19,640 19,640
Receivable against factorized portfolio 5,148 5,148
Others 76,731 75,742

680,039 680,301
Less: Provision held against other assets 14.4 117,354 117,109
Other assets (net of provision) 562,685 563,192

The balance has been arrived at after adjusting interest in suspense of Rs. 4,053.680 million (2019: Rs.
4,066.115 million) which includes Rs: 261.192 million (2019: Rs. 273.869 million) relating to SME portfolio.

This includes the effect of refunds aggregating to Rs. 232.599 million (2019: Rs. 232.599 million) due
from government. In respect of tax years 2003 and 2004 the tax authorities disallowed the Bank’s claims
for provisions for bad debts and SBP’s share in profits of the Bank. Subsequently, the Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue (ATIR) through its order dated February 10, 2011 has ruled in favor of the Bank which
results in creation of refunds of Rs. 80.059 million and Rs. 152.54 million for tax years 2003 and 2004
respectively. Thereafter, against the referred judgement of ATIR the tax authorities filed references before
the Islamabad High Court which are pending adjudication to date. The management of the Bank is of the

firm view that the Bank will be successful in the said references.

This include Rs. 138.6 million (2019: Rs. 138.6 million) being the successful bid made by SME Bank for
acquiting Bungalow No. 45, Block-C/3, Gulberg III, Lahote (the Property) mortgaged with the Bank as
a security in a defaulted loan and Rs. 8.47 million pertaining stamps/stamps duties for registration of sale
certificate issued by the High Court to SME Bank/Auction Purchaser of the Property. The auction was
carried out on 30 June 2015 and subsequently the Honorable Lahore High Court through its decision
dated 14 July 2015 allowed the Bank to adjust the bid price against its outstanding dues from the borrower
against the finance facilities extended to the borrower, suspended mark-up and cost of funds. Thereafter
the auction was also confirmed by the High Court on April 19, 2016 after hearing objection raised by the
counter party. The sale certificate was issued by the High Court on June 30, 2016 and the same has been
registered with concerned registrar on July 28, 2016. On November 24, 2016, ownership of the Property
in the record of Excise and Taxation Department has been transferred in name of SME Bank Ltd. The
Bank applied for possession of the acquired Property, which has been accepted by the court after hearing
both the parties. The court has repeatedly issued orders to bailiff for taking possession of the Property

to handover the Bank, however, due to non- availability of police force to the bailiff, the possession of
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the Property could not be handed over to the Bank. On 24 June 2019 the sponsor of the case was died
and thereafter on 20 August 2019 the legal heirs of the judgement debtor submitted an objection petition
for release of the Property. During argument the request of the legal heirs has been turned down by the
honorable judge as the transaction is past and closed and advised the council to discuss only the issue of
remaining cost of funds. The next date of hearing of the case is fixed on April 04, 2021. As per latest
valuation report dated January 20, 2021, the market value of the Property was Rs. 232.573 million.

14.4  Provision held against other assets 2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
Advances, deposits, advance rent & other prepayments 2,705 2,706
Receivable from Speedway Fondmetall Pakistan Limited 19,640 19,640
Receivable against factorized portfolio 5,148 5,148
Other receivables - SME Portfolio 43,709 43,461
Legal charges recoverable from borrowers - SBFC & RDFC 22,659 22,661
Trading right entitlement certificate - TREC 21,560 21,560
Others 1,933 1,933
117,354 117,109

14.4.1 Movement in provision held against other assets

Opening balance 117,109 117,095
Charge for the year 2,929 3,054
Reversals for the year (2,682) (3,040)
247 14
Transferred to NBP (2) -
Closing balance 117,354 117,109
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15. BILLS PAYABLE

In Pakistan
Outside Pakistan

16. BORROWINGS

Secured

Repurchase agreement borrowings

State Bank of Pakistan

Financial Institutions

Unsecured

Borrowing from State Bank of Pakistan

Financing facility for storage of agricultural produce

16.1  Particulars of borrowings with respect to Cutrencies

In local currency

In foreign currencies

2020 2019
Note (Rupees in '000)

99,986 51,543

99,986 51,543

16.2 3,941,151 1,137,846
16.2 74,596 2,442,609
4,015,747 3,580,455

16.3 111,866 74,316
4,127,613 3,654,771

4,127,613 3,654,771

4,127,613 3,654,771

16.2  These represent transactions with financial institutions for sale of Government Securities under re-purchase agreement (REPO) in the
inter bank money market at mark-up rates ranging from 7.18% to 7.40% (2019: 13.38% to 13.75%) per annum for period upto seven

days (2019: upto two months). REPO transactions are secured against investment of the Bank in Government securities.

16.3  This represents financing facility obtained from State Bank of Pakistan under the scheme "Financing Facility For Storage of Agri
Produce (FFSAP). These carry mark up rate's ranging from 2.0% to 3.25% per annum and is repayable in quarterly instalments.

17. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Customers

Current accounts
Savings deposits
Term deposits

Margin accounts

Financial Institutions

Cutrent accounts
Savings deposits
Term deposits

Margin accounts

171  Composition of deposits
Individuals

Government (Federal and Provincial)

Public Sector Entities
Banking Companies

Non-Banking Financial Institutions

Private Sector

2020 2019
In Local In Foreign Total In Local In Foreign Total
Currency Currency Currency Cutrency
(Rupees in '000)

1,195,828 - 1,195,828 499,200 - 499,200
3,357,871 - 3,357,871 3,153,652 - 3,153,652
2,405,940 - 2,405,940 3,207,339 - 3,207,339
80,594 - 80,594 112,398 - 112,398
7,040,233 - 7,040,233 6,972,589 - 6,972,589
24 - 24 24 - 24
502,005 - 502,005 471,695 - 471,695
60,000 - 60,000 56,400 - 56,400
562,029 - 562,029 528,119 - 528,119
7,602,262 - 7,602,262 7,500,708 - 7,500,708

2020 2019

(Rupees in '000)

1,560,869 1,149,907
956,673 721,679
53,509 46,543
562,029 528,119
4,469,182 5,054,460
7,602,262 7,500,708

17.2  Total deposits include eligible deposits of Rs. 2,489.865 million (2019: Rs. 2,349.577 million) as required by the Deposit Protection

Corporation’s (a subsidiary of SBP) Circular No. 4 of 2018 dated June 22, 2018.
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2020 2019
18. OTHER LIABILITIES Note (Rupees in "000)
Mark-up/ return/ interest payable in local currency 108,779 218,915
Unearned commission on guarantees 2,799 1,875
Accrued expenses 10,077 11,819
Sundry creditors 18.1 161,757 172,039
Branch adjustment account 1,386 586
Payable against employees' benefit plans
Defined benefit pension 34.7 337,993 370,155
Defined benefit funded gratuity scheme 34.7 4,833 14,172
Unfunded compensated absences 34,7 68,328 95,297
Security deposits against lease 280 280
Leased liability against right of use assets 18.2 541,078 538,756
Employees' VSS payments withheld 12,603 12,603
Income tax withheld payable 19,603 19,311
Others 1,793 1,616
1,271,309 1,457,424
18.1 This include Rs. 90.615 million (2019: Rs. 90.615 million) payable to SBP/MoF representing the leftover
funds after settlement of VSS-2009 payments and amount of stale bills payable Rs. 59.287 million (2019: Rs.
72.847 million).
18.2 'This represents lease liability under IFRS 16 : 2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
Opening net book value 538,756 540,961
- Additions 11,525 -
- Interest 69,451 67,337
- Payment (78,654) (69,542)
Closing net book value 541,078 538,756
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19. SHARE CAPITAL
19.1 Authorized Capital

2020 2019 2020 2019
Number of Shares (Rupees in '000)
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 10,000,000 10,000,000
19.2 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
2020 2019 Ordinary shares 2020 2019
Number of Shares (Rupees in '000)
152,853,153 152,853,153  Fully paid in cash 1,528,532 1,528,532
50,000,000 50,000,000 Issued as bonus shares 500,000 500,000
36,397,547 36,397,547 Issued for consideration other than cash 363,975 363,975
239,250,700 239,250,700 2,392,507 2,392,507
Number of
19.3 Break-up of share capital is as follows: shares Percentage
Federal Government 224,615,978 93.89 2,246,160 2,246,160
National Bank of Pakistan 6,121,095 2.56 61,211 61,211
United Bank Limited 3,975,003 1.66 39,750 39,750
Habib Bank Limited 1,987,501 0.83 19,875 19,875
MCB Bank Limited 1,490,619 0.62 14,906 14,906
Allied Bank Limited 774,351 0.32 7,744 7,744
Industrial Development Bank Limited 286,146 0.12 2,861 2,861
Directors 7 - - -

239,250,700 100 2,392,507 2,392,507

2020 2019

20. SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS

Note
Surplus/ (deficit) on revaluation of
Available-for-sale securities
- Federal Government securities 9.1

- Listed companies/mutual funds

Deferred tax on surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of available-for-sale securities
- Federal Government securities
- Listed companies/mutual funds

(Rupees in '000)

750 (301,559)
3,228 1,912
3,978 (299,647)

(263) -
(1,129) (669)
2,586 (300,316)
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21.

211

21.11

21.2

21.2.1

21.2.2

21.2.3

21.3

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS Note
- Guarantees 211

- Commitments 21.2

- Other contingent liabilities 213

Guarantees

Financial guarantees

Performance guarantees 21.1.1

Other guarantees

2020

2019

(Rupees in '000)

229,498 261,582
4,278,596 3,842,670
1,192,987 1,157,757
5,701,081 5,262,009
229,498 261,582
229,498 261,582

This include expired letter of guarantees/petformance aggregating to Rs. 69.690 million (2019: Rs

which formalities for return of original documents are in process.

Note
Commitments
Commitments in respect of:
- forward government securities transactions 21.21
- forward lending 2122
Commitments for acquisition of:
- operating fixed assets
- intangible assets
Other commitments 21.2.3

Commitments in respect of forward government securities transactions

Sale and repurchase agreements

Commitments in respect of forward lending

Undrawn facilities

Commitments to extend credit

Other commitments

Bills for collection

Payable in Pakistan

Other contingent liabilities

a)

Claims not acknowledged as debt from various borrowers of defunct
RDEFC.

b) Tax demands of Rs. 612.707 million raised by the Income Tax Authorities

related to VSS staff cost (tax year-2005) which has been decided in favor of
the Bank. However tax authorities have filed appeal before ATIR against
the decision of the Commissioner Income Tax (Appeals) which is pending
adjudication. The management of the Bank strongly believes and expects
favorable outcome and therefore no provision has been made for these
effect in the unconsolidated financial statements.

2020

34.142 million) for

2019

(Rupees in '000)

4,017,519 3,560,826
259,813 280,608
1,264 987
- 249
4,278,596 3,842,670
4,017,519 3,560,826
202,613 174,708
57,200 105,900
259,813 280,608
1,192,987 1,157,757
53,686 53,686
612,707 612,707
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9

d)

©)

h)

Annual Report 2020 {8

The Bank and the income tax department have filed cross appeals against
the appellate order of the Commissioner (Appeals), who had partly set aside
the order of the taxation officer, resulting in taxable income of Rs. 151.234
million and tax liability of Rs. 52.932 (payable amounting Rs. 6.163 million
after adjustment of credit for taxes paid/ suffered at source amounting Rs.
46.768 million) against the declared tax loss of Rs. 23,489 thousand and tax
liability of Rs. 4.249 million for the tax year 2008. Without prejudice to the
appeal, the Bank has offered adjustment of said demand against refunds
available for tax year 2009. However no provision has been made in these
unconsolidated financial statements as the management is confident of a
favorable outcome.

DCIR raised tax demand for the tax year 2010 for Rs. 211.716 million
which was again amended to Rs.198, 528,541/- vide Order # 11/40 dated
22-May-2013 u/s 221, stay against from Islamabad High Court was
obtained and also appeal was filed with CIRA-II who partly accepted the
Bank's plea in the case and remanded it back to DCIR for vetification of
evidences and opportunity of hearing the Bank for certain issues vide his
order in Appeal # 968/2013 dated 07-Jan-2014. Parallel to that Bank has
filed 2nd appeal in ATIR on 27-Feb-2014 and rectification application was
also submitted with CIRA on 24-Feb-2014 no decision has been made yet.
The tax department has also filed an appeal with the ATIR through
Commissioner (Legal) vide their letter # 249 dated 7-Mar-2014. Based on
the facts revealed by the consultants vide letter # IT/1156/2015 dated
March 03, 2015, the management strongly believes for favorable outcome in
the case and therefore no provision in this respect has been recorded in
these unconsolidated financial statements.

The taxation officer created aggregate demand of Rs.53.674 million for
withheld amount of Rs.17.598 million from VSS payment of employees for
the Tax Years 2003-2004 -2005-2006-2008-2009-2010-2011-2013 which was
not deposited upon advice of the legal advisor due to stay order of Supreme
Court of Pakistan. The case is pending before Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue and the provision of default surcharge Rs. 36.076 million was not
made ipso facto.

The Officer Inland Revenue, LTU, Islamabad created demand for Rs.
21.171 million for tax year 2016 under section 161/205 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. After rejection of the first appeal by CIRA the Bank has
submitted second appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue along
with stay application to keep the recovery proceedings in abeyance. The
referred second appeal has not yet been fixed for hearing.

The Officer Inland Revenue, I.TU, Islamabad issued an order u/s 161/205
for the tax year 2013. The Bank filed an appeal before the Commissioner
(Appeals), who has remanded the case back to assessing officer, notice to
fresh proceeding have been replied no further action on the response.

The Officer Inland Revenue, LTU, Islamabad issued an order u/s 161/205
for the tax year 2017 without serving proper notices. An appeal against this
impugned order has been filed before the Commissioner (Appeals), which
is pending for fixation. Without prejudice, the tax department has been
requested to adjust the tax demand with the available income tax refunds.

2020 2019

Rupees in '000
p

6,163

198,529

36,076

21,171

18,663

38,723

6,163

198,529

36,076

21,171

18,663

38,723
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)

k)

The Officer Inland Revenue, L'TU, Islamabad made an assessment for the
year 2001-2002 vide order dated June 20, 2005 of Rs. 590.667 million and a
tax demand of Rs. 118.721 million which was contested in ATIR which
ordered the appeal in Bank's favor vide Order no. ITA No.857/IB/2006
dated April 05, 2007. Tax department has filed income tax reference with
the Islamabad High Court having no. I.T.R. 48 of 2007.

Back benefits and claims of staff/employees under litigation.

Sales Demands of Rs. 0.791 million and Rs. 17.098 million were created for
the year 2008 & 2010 respectively during proceedings of sales audit. Against
the said demands advance payments of Rs. 0.299 million and Rs. 3.743
million respectively were made to avail stay against recovery of entire
amount. Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue has remanded both cases back
to the Commissioner for fresh proceedings, which have not been initiated
yet. Furthermore, sales demands amounting Rs. 1.708 million & Rs. 1.045
million were created for the year 2009 and 2012 respectively during
proceedings of sales audit. Against the said demands advance payments of
Rs. 0.577 million & Rs.1.045 million respectively were made to avail stay
against recovery of entire amount. Both appeals are pending before
Appellate  Tribunal Inland Revenue for fixation of hearing. The
management strongly believes for favorable outcome in the said cases.

2020

2019

(Rupees in '000)

118,721
67,550

20,998

118,721
32,320

20,998

89

Annual Report 2020



SME Bank 14

smallbusiness - Big opportunities

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2020

22. MARK-UP/ RETURN/ INTEREST EARNED

On loans and advances to Customers
Extended by:

Defunct RDFC & SBFC

SME Bank Limited

Employees

Financial Institution - SME Leasing Limited - a subsidiary company

On investments in

Available for sale securities
Held to maturity securities

On deposits with financial institutions

Lendings to financial institutions

23. MARK-UP/ RETURN/ INTEREST EXPENSED

On deposits

On securities sold under repurchase agreements

On SBP Refinance Scheme
Brokerage and commission

Bank charges

24. FEE & COMMISSION INCOME

Branch banking customer fees
Card related fees

Credit related fees
Commission on guarantees
Commission on remittances

Others

25. GAIN / (LOSS) ON SECURITIES

Realised
Unrealised - held for trading

25.1  Federal Government Securities - net
Shares

26. OTHER INCOME

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets - net
Fee on fund managed by the Bank -EPF

Claim against stolen vehicle
Others

Note

25.1

2020 2019

(Rupees in '000)

249,305 289,673
249,305 289,673
3,548 3,914
19,555 20,400
272,408 313,987
460,667 454,326
4,293 3,595
464,960 457,921
288 405
1,292 3,993
738,948 776,306
632,225 596,499
372,606 550,778
2,023 1,029
1,566 1,081
243 232
1,008,663 1,149,619
3,002 2,155
435 431
2,403 2,709
4,995 4,526
59 95
20 17
10,914 9,933
815 7
815 7
815 7
815 7

289 .
974 974

300 .
13 6
1,576 980
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2020 2019
27. OPERATING EXPENSES Note (Rupees in '000)

Total compensation expense 271 631,765 664,192
Property expense
Rent & taxes 4,563 7,553
Insurance 1,202 1,343
Utilities cost 19,642 21,136
Security (including guards) 16,124 15,480
Repair & maintenance 6,490 5,948
Depreciation 54,654 50,905
Others - -

102,675 102,365
Information technology expenses
Software maintenance 4,616 4,466
Hardware maintenance 1,668 1,953
Depreciation 4,923 5,106
Amorttization 1,346 1,296
Network charges 13,463 14,253
Others 277 807

26,293 27,881
Other operating expenses
Directors' fees, allowances and other expenses 2,659 -
Legal and professional charges 4,463 4,732
Outsourced services costs 26,589 26,630
Travelling and conveyance 1,698 5,260
NIFT clearing charges 2,049 1,837
Depreciation 12,868 14,676
Training & development 1,191 1,679
Postage & courier charges 711 853
Communications 4,492 4,755
Stationery and printing 4,572 5,170
Marketing, advertisement & publicity 1,163 1,148
Donations - -
Auditors' remuneration 27.3 1,358 1,068
Vehicle running and maintenance 3,727 4,512
Entertainment 2,253 2,478
Subscription, books and newspapers 3,532 2,962
Deposits premium 2,713 3,617
Loss on sale of operating fixed assets - net - 32
Others 528 1,348
76,566 82,757
837,299 877,195
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27.1 Total compensation expense

Managerial Remuneration

- Fixed

- Variable

Cash award

Charge for defined benefit plans

- pension fund and gratuity

- funded gratuity scheme

- unfunded compensated absences
Contribution to defined contribution plan - benevolent fund
Rent & house maintenance
Utilities
Medical
Conveyance
Telephone
Uniform allowance
Child education allowance
Group insurance
Overtime
Adhoc relief
Leave absence
Leave fare assistance
Rental in lieu of vehicle
Reimbursement of vehicle running & maintenance
Staff welfare benefits

Note

34.7
34.7
34.7

2020 2019

(Rupees in '000)
291,206 280,133
298 165
100,775 115,434
11,389 10,541
(25,528) 15,050
256 429
95,804 90,429
29,874 27,767
40,966 38,399
14,909 14,035
4,115 3,937
1,133 1,167
7,254 7,159
1,202 1,215
1,302 1,442
2,163 1,221
6,798 5,927
13,615 13,839
6,272 6,538
25,961 28,609
2,001 756
631,765 664,192

27.2 Total cost for the year included in other operating expenses relating to outsourced activities is Rs 26.589 million (2019: Rs
26.630 million) related to companies incorporated in Pakistan. Material outsourcing arrangements include the services of

messengers, drivers and electronic financial transaction (EFT).

27.3 Auditors' remuneration

28.

29.
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Audit fee

Fee for other statutory certifications
Fee for audit of employees funds
Special review

Out-of-pocket expenses

OTHER CHARGES

Penalties imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan
Right of use assets - unwinding of present value

PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS - NET

Provisions against lending to financial institutions
Provisions/ (teversal of provision) for diminution in value of investment
Provisions/ (reversal of provision) against loans & advances
Other provisions / written off directly:
- against other assets
Bad debts written off directly

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
928 928
116 116
24 24
290 -
1,358 1,068
108 2,089
69,451 67,337
69,559 69,426
- (20,000)
(14,768) 628
247 14
(14,521) (19,358)
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30. TAXATION

Note
Current 30.2
Prior years 30.3

Deferred

30.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting loss

Loss before tax

Applicable tax rate

Tax on loss

Deferred tax asset recognised during the year
Tax effect of income taxed at lower rate
Minimum tax

Other permanent differences

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
11,624 11,285
(43,898) -
(137,680) (226,385)
(169,954) (215,100)
(1,147,118) (1,287,409)
35% 35%
2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
(401,491) (450,593)
(137,680) (226,385)
36 28
11,588 11,257
357,593 450,593
(169,954) (215,100)

30.2 Provision for current year tax expense is charged on minimum tax rate of 1.50% of the turnover due to tax losses of the

Bank for the year ended December 31, 2020.

30.3 This represents the effect which reconciles the balance of advance tax with the tax position of the Bank as per tax returns

and assessment orders pertaining to assessment years/ tax years 2001-2020.

31. BASIC/ DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE

Net loss after tax for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Basic/ diluted loss per share

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earning per share of the Bank.

32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Note
Cash and balances with treasury banks 7
Balances with other banks 8

33. STAFF STRENGTH

Permanent

On contract

Average number of employees

Permanent

On contract

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
(977,164) (1,072,309)
Number of shares
239,250,700 239,250,700
Rupees
(4.08) (4.48)
2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
668,727 650,565
2,123 4,537
670,850 655,102
2020 2019
Numbers
163 170
196 203
359 373
167 173
200 196
367 369

33.1 Inaddition to the above, 109 (2019: 107) employees of outsourcing services companies were assigned to the Bank.
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36. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
36.1 Total Compensation Expense
2020 2019
Non.- President / R Nonf President / .
Items Executives Executives Executives Executives
. CEO . CEO
Directors Directors
(Rupees '000)
Fees and allowances etc. 1,480 - - - - -
Managerial remuneration
i) Fixed - 5,465 115,659 . 2,444 107,622
ii) Total variable - - - - - -
Charge for defined benefit plan - 1,456 43,545 - 1,764 44,033
Rent & house maintenance - 4,049 33,843 - 1,344 30,597
Utilities - 1,247 11,539 - 244 10,424
Medical - 726 11,432 - 367 10,346
Conveyance - - 789 - - 566
Motor car running & maintenance - - 26,717 - 500 26,265
Others 1,179 1,193 24,883 - 731 22,929
Total 2,659 14,136 268,407 - 7,394 252,782
Number of Persons 6 1 70 - 1 64
Executives mean employees, other than the chief executive and directors, whose basic salary exceeds twelve hundred thousand rupees in
a financial year.
36.2 Remuneration paid to directors for participation in board and committee meetings
2020
Meeting fees and allowances paid
For Board Committees
St. .
Ni) Name of Director For Board Board Risk Human Board
’ Meetings Audit Management | Resource | Procurement Total
Committee | Committee | Committee | Committee
(Rupees in '000)
1 [Mr. Niaz Muhammad Khan 175 55 40 25 - 295
2 |Mr. Muhammad Waqas Azeem 150 - 25 - 25 200
3 [Mr. Rauf Ahmad 175 - - 40 40 255
4 [Mr. Enamullah Khan 150 55 - 90 - 295
5 |Mr. Hashim Raza 175 - 40 - 40 255
6 |Mr. Omar Farooq 125 55 - - - 180
Total amount paid 950 165 105 155 105 1,480
2019
Meeting fees and allowances paid
For Board Committees
Sr. .
Name of Director For Board . Risk Human Board
No. . Board Audit .
Meetings . Management Resource | Remuneration Total
Committee . . .
Committee | Committee Committee
(Rupees in '000)
Total amount paid - - - - - -
36.3 The President/CEO and certain executives were also provided with free use of Bank's owned and maintained cars in accordance with
their terms of employment.
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38. SEGMENT INFORMATION
38.1 Segment details with respect to business activities

The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follows:

December 31, 2020
Trading & Commercial Total
Sales Banking
(Rupees in '000)
Profit & Loss
Net mark-up/return/profit 466,252 272,696 738,948
Inter segment revenue - net - 256,154 256,154
Non mark-up/return/interest income 2,444 12,490 14,934
Total income 468,696 541,340 1,010,036
Segment direct expenses 394,016 1,521,505 1,915,521
Inter segment expenses allocation 256,154 - 256,154
Total expenses 650,170 1,521,505 2,171,675
Provisions - (14,521) (14,521)
Loss before tax (181,474) (965,644) (1,147,118)
Trading & Commercial Total
Sales Banking
(Rupees in '000)

Balance Sheet
Cash & bank balances 378,678 292,172 670,850
Investments 5,828,353 - 5,828,353
Net inter segment lending 2,307,691 2,307,691
Lending to financial institutions - - -
Advances - Petforming - 1,389,809 1,389,809

- Non-performing - 140,535 140,535
Others 764,707 1,146,833 1,911,540
Total Assets 6,971,738 5,277,040 12,248,778
Borrowings 4,015,747 111,866 4,127,613
Deposits & other accounts - 7,602,262 7,602,262
Net inter segment borrowing 2,307,691 - 2,307,691
Others 367,719 1,003,576 1,371,295
Total Liabilities 6,691,157 8,717,704 15,408,861
Equity 280,581 (3,440,664) (3,160,083)
Total Equity & liabilities 6,971,738 5,277,040 12,248,778
Contingencies & Commitments 4,017,519 1,683,562 5,701,081
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December 31, 2019

Trading & Commercial Total
Sales Banking

(Rupees in '000)
Profit & Loss

Net mark-up/return/profit 461,914 314,392 776,306
Inter segment revenue - net - 237,196 237,196
Non mark-up/return/interest income 2,254 10,913 13,167
Total income 464,168 562,501 1,026,669
Segment direct expenses 571,657 1,524,583 2,096,240
Inter segment expenses allocation 237,196 - 237,196
Total expenses 808,853 1,524,583 2,333,436
Provisions (20,000) 642 (19,358)
Loss before tax (324,685) (962,724) (1,287,409)
Trading & Commercial Total
Sales Banking

(Rupees in '000)
Balance Sheet

Cash & Bank balances 432,679 222,423 655,102
Investments 5,739,975 - 5,739,975
Net inter segment lending 3,182,440 3,182,440
Lending to financial institutions - - -
Advances - Performing - 1,769,906 1,769,906
- Non-performing - 138,089 138,089
Others 663,285 1,185,644 1,848,929
Total Assets 6,835,939 6,498,502 13,334,441
Borrowings 3,580,455 74,316 3,654,771
Deposits & other accounts - 7,500,708 7,500,708
Net inter segment borrowing 3,182,440 - 3,182,440
Others 415,993 1,092,974 1,508,967
Total Liabilities 7,178,888 8,067,998 15,846,886
Equity (342,949) (2,169,496) (2,512,445)
Total Equity & liabilities 6,835,939 6,498,502 13,334,441
Contingencies & Commitments 3,560,826 1,680,185 5,241,011

Assumptions used:
- Unallocatable assets representing 7.41% (December 31, 2019: 6.19%) of the gross assets have been allocated to

segments based on their respective incomes.
- Unallocatable liabilities representing 4.48% (December 31, 2019: 5.26%) of the gross liabilities have been allocated
to segments based on their respective incomes.
38.2 Segment details with respect to geographical locations

Presently the Bank does not deal outside Pakistan
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40. CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The risk weighted assets to capital ratio, calculated in accordance with the State Bank's guidelines on capital adequacy is as

follows:
2020 2019
Regulatory capital base (Rupees in '000)
Tier I capital
Shareholders capital/assigned capital 2,392,507 2,392,507
Reserves 206,526 206,526
Unappropriated/unremitted profits (net of losses) (5,761,702) (4,811,162)

(3,162,669)  (2,212,129)

Less: Adjustments

Goodwill/intangible Assets 1,756 1,331
Investment in equity of subsidiary 80,748 80,748
Deficit on revaluation of available for sale investments - 300,316
82,504 382,395
Total tier I capital (3,245,173) (2,594,524)
Tier 11 capital 8,593 8
Eligible tier 111 capital - -
Total regulatory capital (@) (3,236,580) (2,594,516)
Risk-weighted exposures 2020 2019
Book value Risk adjusted Book value Risk adjusted
value value
Credit risk (Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)
Balance sheet items:
Cash and other liquid assets 670,850 425 655,102 907
Investments/ lending to financial institutions 5,828,353 66,870 5,739,975 65,554
Loans and advances 1,530,344 906,226 1,907,995 1,150,542
Fixed assets 472,184 472,184 532,112 532,112
Deferred tax assets 874,915 874,915 752,294 752,294
Other assets 562,685 271,708 563,192 278,432
9,939,331 2,592,328 10,150,670 2,779,841
Off balance sheet items
Weighted Non-funded exposures 191,773 95,887 206,700 103,350
191,773 95,887 206,700 103,350
Credit risk-weighted exposures ®) 10,131,104 2,688,215 10,357,370 2,883,191
Market risk 310,065 728,771
Market risk-weighted exposures - 310,065 - 728,771
Total risk-weighted exposures (©) 2,998,280 3,611,962
Capital adequacy ratio credit risk [ (a) / (b) x 100 ] T 120.40% T .89.99%
Total capital adequacy ratio | ) / (c) x 100 ] T 107.95% T 7183%

State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has granted exemption to the Bank vide letter No. BSD/SU-21/220/1624/2007 dated June
08, 2007 from computing capital adequacy ratio under BASEL II il restructuring/privatization and has granted exemption
from implementation of Basel III Capital Instructions till restructuring/privatizaton vide SBP letter #
BPRD/BA&CPD/646/000886/16 dated January 12, 2016. Accordingly, the Bank computes capital adequacy ratio under
BASEL I and SBP has allowed exemption in meeting the minimum CAR requirements of 10% till December 31, 2019 or
completion of restructuring/ privatizaton of the Bank, whichever is eatlier vide SBP letter No.
BPRD/BA&CPD/646/332/20 dated January 6, 2020.
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41. RISK MANAGEMENT
411 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter parties failed
completely to perform as contracted. The Bank is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk. Written procedures
for credit and risk management functions have been developed and implemented. Credit evaluation system comprise of
well designed loan approval and review responsibilities and it is ensured that Bank's credit-granting activities conform to
the established strategy, prudential regulations and SBP instructions are strictly followed. To ensure that credit granting
activities are adequately diversified, besides fixing limits on individual credit, it is ascertained that there is no concentration
in a particular industry or economic sector, geographical region and specific product. Special attention is placed on such
non-performing loans and a Special Assets Management Division follows up and recovers all such loans.

41.1.1 Advances

Credit risk by industry sector

Chemical and pharmaceuticals
Agticulture, forestry,

hunting and fishing

Mining & quarrying

Textile

Cement

Footwear and leather garments
Automobile and transportation
equipment

Financial

Insurance

Electronics and electrical
appliances

Construction

Power (electricity), gas, water
and sanitary

Wholesale and trade
Transport, storage, and
communication

Individuals

Services

Government
Others

41.1.2 Segment by sector

Public/ Government

Private
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Gross Advances

Non-performing advances

Provision held

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
111,411 143,223 97,163 97,069 95,790 93,852
232,240 232,496 201,808 201,927 201,808 201,927
9,053 9,053 9,053 9,053 9,053 9,053
384,761 374,198 336,914 337,056 336,103 336,233
66,622 63,968 61,449 59,850 58,111 58,115
40,059 50,024 23,060 20,324 20,798 19,379
184,343 189,942 - - - -
51,819 54,999 13,693 15,307 10,484 10,582
214,008 300,148 72,297 67,420 67,271 67,316
61,804 76,089 6,775 7,255 3,606 3,956
1,709,199 1,811,169 1,516,354 1,524,041 1,488,007 1,488,633
100,225 99,016 20,597 20,841 7,515 3,398
1,117,892 1,136,643 1,050,826 1,050,840 1,050,826 1,050,840
271,260 348,358 140,416 140,796 101,519 100,039
2,216,966 2,269,727 1,822,855 1,843,360 1,781,834 1,813,727
6,771,662 7,165,053 5,373,260 5395139 5,232,725 5,257,050
6,771,662 7,165,053 5,373,260 5395139 5,232,725 5,257,050
6,771,662 7,165,053 5,373,260 5395,139 5,232,725 5,257,050




SME Bank 1

smallbusiness - Big opportunities

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020

41.1.3 Contingencies and Commitments

Credit risk by industry sector 2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
Chemical and pharmaceuticals 137 379
Agriculture, forestry, hunting and fishing 73 4
Mining & quarrying - -
Textile 4,968 6,556
Cement - -
Sugar - -
Footwear and leather garments - -
Automobile and transportation equipment 20,767 10,002
Financial 4,041,976 3,568,670
Insurance - -
Electronics and electrical appliances 7,386 7,253
Construction 232,467 266,385
Power (electricity), gas, water and sanitary 24,200 25,403
Wholesale and trade 60,943 89,761
Exports/ Imports - -
Transpott, storage and communication - 18,000
Individuals 67,550 34,620
Services 71,955 11,294
Government 1,071,751 1,071,751
Others 96,908 151,931
5,701,081 5,262,009

Credit risk by public/ptivate sector

Public/ Government 1,071,751 1,071,751
Private 4,629,330 4,190,258
5,701,081 5,262,009

41.1.4 Concentration of Advances

The bank top 10 exposures on the basis of total (funded and non-funded exposure's) aggregated to Rs. 681.998 million
(2019: Rs. 795.836 million) are as following

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
Funded 526,337 618,945
Non funded 155,661 176,891
Total exposure 681,998 795,836

The sanctioned limits against these top 10 exposure's aggregated to Rs 833.938 million (2019: Rs. 901.404 million)

Total funded classified therein 2020 2019
Amount Provision Amount .
held Provision held
(Rupees in '000)

OAEM - - - -
Substandard - - - -
Doubtful - - - -
Loss - - - -
Total - - - -

109 Annual Report 2020



SME Bank 14

smallbusiness - Big opportunities

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020

41.1.5

41.1.6

41.2
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Advances - Province/Region-wise Disbursement & Utilization

2020
Utilization
. . Disbursements KPK AJK including
Province/region Punjab Sindh including | Balochistan | Islamabad Gilgit-
FATA Baltistan
(Rupees in '000)

Punjab 395,460 395,460 - - - - -
Sindh 341,600 - 341,600 - - - -
KPK including FATA 38,400 - - 38,400 - - -
Balochistan 138,950 - - - 138,950 - -
Islamabad 206,500 120,300 - 25,200 - 61,000 -
AJK including Gilgit-Baltistan -
Total 1,120,910 515,760 341,600 63,600 138,950 61,000 -

Advances - Province/Region-wise Disbursement & Utilization

2019
Utilization

. KPK . .

Province/Region Disbursements Punjab Sindh including Balochistan Islamabad A.JK, mclu@ng

FATA Gilgit-Baltistan

(Rupees in '000)

Punjab 499,382 499,382 - - - - -
Sindh 220,229 - 220,229 - - - -
KPK including FATA 80,600 - - 80,600 - - -
Balochistan 273,400 - - - 273,400 - -
Islamabad 304,100 156,900 - 112,200 - 35,000 -
AJK including Gilgit-Baltistan - -
Total 1,377,711 656,282 220,229 192,800 273,400 35,000 -

IMPACT OF COVID- 19

The outbreak of coronavirus has severely affected national and global economies. Various businesses are facing different issues with a certain
degree of losses. Particularly, businesses are facing problems such as a decrease in demand, supply chain disruptions, raw material shortage, and
transportation disruptions, among others. Regulators and governments across the globe have introduced fiscal and economic stimulus measures
to mitigate Covid-19 impact.

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has responded to the crisis by cutting the policy rate by 625 basis points to 7 percent and by introducing
regulatory measures to maintain banking system soundness and to sustain economic activity. These include (i) reducing the capital conservation
buffer by 100 basis points to 1.5 percent; (ii) increasing the regulatory limit for retail asset classification by 44 percent to Rs.180 million, thus
resulting in reduced risk weighted assets; (iii) relaxing the debt burden ratio for consumer loans from 50 percent to 60 percent; (iv) allowing banks
to defer clients' payment of principal on loan obligations by one year; (v) relaxing regulatory criteria for restructured/rescheduled loans for
borrowers who require relief beyond the extension of principal repayment for one year; and(vi) control unemployment, offered refinance
facilities to customers for meeting their salary expense. COVID 19 has also impacted the banks in Pakistan from various facets which include
increase in credit risk pertaining to loans and advances portfolio, reduced fee income due to slowdown in economic activity, operational issues
such as operations of branches and managing investment banking activities including arrangement of syndicate loans, debt and capital advisory
services etc.

As the current economic crisis unfolds against the backdrop of a public health emergency, the disruption to economic activity put strain on the
solvency of customers and certain distressed customers sought help for financial hardships. Around 95 Covid affected borrowers of the Bank
have availed the SBP enabled deferment/restructuring and rescheduling relief. The full potential effect of the economic stress is difficult to
predict given the uncertain economic environment, however, the management of the Bank is closely monitoring the performance of its borrowers
specially those how availed the SBP enabled deferment facility. In view of above the Bank has also increased its vigilance in respect of its credit
review procedures. Given the uncertainty that may prevail until the pandemic is over the management of the Bank believes that it is prudent to
maintain a general provision at the rate of 4.5% (approximately) in respect of borrowers who have availed the SBP enabled packages. Had this
additional provision of Rs.8.582 million not been made, advances and the loss after tax for year ended would have been higher by Rs. 8.582
million and Rs. 5.57 million respectively.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of on and off-balance sheet positions of the Bank will be adversely affected by movements in interest rates,
foreign exchange rates and equity prices resulting in a loss to earnings and capital. The Bank's interest rates exposure comprises those originating
from investing and lending activities. The Asset and Liability Committee of the Bank monitors and manages the interest rate risk with the
objective of limiting the potential adverse effect on the profitability of the Bank.
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41.2.1  Balance sheet split by trading and banking books

2020 2019
B;‘;‘;‘Eg T:;‘Z‘I‘:g Total B;T:Eg Trading book | Total
(Rupees in '000)
Cash and balances with treasury banks 668,727 - 668,727 650,565 - 650,565
Balances with other banks 2,123 - 2,123 4,537 - 4,537
Lendings to financial institutions - - - - - -
Investments 147,618 5,680,735 5,828,353 146,302 5,593,673 5,739,975
Advances 1,530,344 - 1,530,344 1,907,995 - 1,907,995
Fixed assets 472,184 - 472,184 532,112 - 532,112
Intangible assets 1,756 - 1,756 1,331 - 1,331
Deferred tax assets 874,915 - 874,915 752,294 - 752,294
Other assets 562,685 - 562,685 563,192 - 563,192

4,260,352 5,680,735 9,941,087 4,558,328 5,593,673 10,152,001

41.2.2  Foreign exchange risk
Presently the Bank does not deal in foreign exchange.

41.2.3  Equity position risk

The Bank's exposure in equity market is classified in available for sale category with the intent to earn profit based on fundamentals.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020

42. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Bank on March 06, 2021.

Cm%- s 6.9 GonseSany /M

Dilshad Ali Ahmad Sameena Gul Omer Farooq Hashimz{aza Rauf Ahmad
President/CEO Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director
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SMEBL: HO: CFO&CS: 2021/

To

NOTICE OF 18" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

All Members of the Bank
M/s Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

Notice is hereby given that 18" Annual General Meeting of SME Bank Limited will be held on
Tuesday, March 30, 2021 at 03:30 pm at Registered Office, SME Bank Ltd., 56-F, Nazimuddin Road,
Blue Area, F-6/1, Islamabad to transact the following:

Ordinary Business:

1. To confirm the minutes of 12th Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of shareholders of the
Company held on October 29, 2020.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Bank and Consolidated
Statements for the year ended 31st December 2020 , together with notes thereto, along with
Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports to the shareholders, Statement of Compliance with Public
Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules and Review Report thereon by the Auditors.

3. Review of Contents of Annual Report 2020.

4. 'To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration for the year ending December 31, 2021.

5. To approve the Board Remuneration Policy of the Bank, recommended by the Board of
Directors for Shareholders” approval on post facto basis.

6. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board
Islamabad Sameena Gul
Dated: March 9, 2021 Acting CFO &Company Secretary
(Cell # 0300-5070570)
Notes:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote for him/her at the meeting. A proxy must be a member of the company. However,
an association (whether body corporate or not) being a member of the Company may appoint
as its proxy one of its officers though not a member of the Company. (Form of Proxy is
attached)

2. An instrument of the proxy and the Power of Attorney or other Authority (if any) under

Annual Report 2020 120

which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of such Power of Attorney or Authority in
order to be valid must be duly signed and deposited at registered office of the Company not
less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.
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Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

@ Grant Thornton

An instinct for growth”

302 B, 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex ~ T: +92 5122719086, 2274665
Aga Khan Road, F-5/1 F: +92 51 2273874
Islamabad Pakistan www.gtpak.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of SME Bank Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of SME Bank Limited (the Bank)
and its subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at December 31, 2020 and the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of
our report, consolidated financial statements give true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at December 31, 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a)  Deferred tax asset of Rs. 874.915 million has been recognized on the basis of expected profits
arising from future privatization of the Bank as described in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements which we have not been able to verify. Advance income tax includes refunds
aggregating to Rs. 232.599 million for tax years 2003 and 2004. These refunds were recorded
on the basis of an order of the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue dated February 10, 2011
whereby provision for doubtful debts was allowed to be taken as a deductible expense. The
issue of allowing provision for doubtful debts as an expense, in the case of another bank, was
successfully challenged by tax department in the Islamabad High Court. The high court rules in
favor of the tax department through its order dated March 13, 2018 which has also been upheld
by the Supreme Court of Pakistan through its order dated June 05, 2018 due to which the Bank
has no legal basis to continue to recognize the receivable as an asset; and

b)  As explained in Note 11.3, the loan portfolios of Small Business Finance Corporation (SBFC)
and Regional Development Finance Corporation (RDFC) was transferred to National Bank of
Pakistan due to envisaged privatization of the Bank, however, the portfolio continues to appear
as an asset in the books of the Bank.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditot’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Chartered Accountants 123 Annual Report 2020
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Material uncertainties relating to Going Concern

1

1.

We draw attention to note 7.2.1 to the consolidated financial statements which describes that
during the current year the Bank incurred a net loss of Rs. 977.164 million (2019: Rs. 1,072.309
million) resulting into accumulated losses of Rs. 5,761.702 million (2019: Rs. 4,811.162 million). As
of December 31, 2020, the reporting date, the total liabilities of the Bank have exceeded its total
assets by Rs. 3,160.083 million (2019: Rs. 2,512.445 million) indicating the negative equity and due
to surplus of current demand liabilities over its total unencumbered current liquid assets creating
a negative working capital of Rs. 4.684 billion (2019: Rs. 7.859 billion) though the situation is
improved as compared to last year but it still indicates the Bank’s inadequate capacity to ensure the
timely repayments. Due to cash inadequacy the Bank was unable to meet the statutory solvency
requirements of minimum capital (MCR) of Rs. 10,000 million and the Capital Adequacy Ratio
(CAR) of 10%. Due to continued stressed financial conditions the Bank’s credit rating fell from
B negative (single B-) to CCC. Based on the operational results SBP granted exemption from
meeting the MCR and CAR up to December 31, 2019 or restructuring/privatization, whichever is
earlier, subject to submission of a concrete plan from the Ministry of Finance (MoF) to provide
a firm commitment to inject the required amount of capital funds in the Bank, if its privatization
does not materialize by March 31, 2020. As stated in note 7.2.1, these conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Note 7.2.2 to the consolidated financial statements, which indicates that SME Leasing Limited
has incurred loss of Rs. 57.676 million (2019: Rs. 35.694 million) for the year ended December
31, 2020, resulting in accumulated loss of Rs. 348.905 million (2019: Rs. 291.358 million) as at
balance sheet date and as of that date the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets
by Rs. 67.288 million (2019: Rs. 54.805 million). These conditions, along with other matters as
set forth in the above referred note; indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.

Emphasis of matters

1

1.

We draw attention to note 1.1.3 to the consolidated financial statements which states the status of
non-compliance with the Regulation 4 of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities
Regulation, 2008. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

We draw attention to note 15.3 to the consolidated financial statements, which describes in detail
the status of possession of property at Lahore.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Group’ Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements

and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. 1f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
of to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditot’s
report thatincludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis nota guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Bvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’ ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Hassaan Riaz

Seoal ThoenYeaAgjum wl

GRANT THORNTON ANJUM RAHMAN
Chartered Accountants

Islamabad

Date: March 06, 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at December 31, 2020

2020

2019

Note (Rupees in '000)
ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 8 668,793 650,638
Balances with other banks 9 3,683 5,252
Lendings to financial institutions - -
Investments 10 5,747,605 5,659,227
Advances 11 1,770,540 2,224,724
Fixed assets 12 483,858 548,676
Intangible assets 13 1,756 1,331
Deferred tax assets - net 14 874,915 752,294
Other assets 15 557,699 558,296
10,108,849 10,400,438
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 16 99,986 51,543
Borrowings 17 4,127,986 3,655,144
Deposits and other accounts 18 7,602,262 7,500,708
Liability against assets subject to finance lease - -
Sub-ordinated loans - -
Deferred tax liabilities - -
Other liabilities 20 1,499,886 1,709,128
13,330,120 12,916,523
NET LIABILITIES (3,221,271) (2,516,085)
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital 21 2,392,507 2,392,507
Reserves 234,660 234,660
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of assets - net of tax 22 2,586 (300,3106)
Unappropriated loss (5,862,189) (4,869,557)
(3,232,436) (2,542,7006)
Non-controlling interest 11,165 26,621
(3,221,271) (2,516,085)
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24
The annexed notes from 1 to 45 and annexure-1 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
fl ’
(_!;, oG ékg M a"‘V 2
Dilshad Ali Ahmad Sameena Gul Omer Farooq Hashim'Raza Rauf Ahmad
President/CEO Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended December 31, 2020

2020 2019
Note (Rupees in '000)

Matk-up/ return/ interest earned 25 741,043 782,461
Matk-up/ return/ interest expensed 26 1,008,842 1,149,641
Net mark-up/ interest loss (267,799) (367,180)
NON MARK-UP/ INTEREST INCOME
Fee and commission income 27 10,914 9,933
Dividend income 1,629 2,247
Foreign exchange income - -
Income / (loss) from derivatives - -
Gain/(loss) on securities 28 815 7
Other income 29 1,881 1,000
Total non-markup/ interest income 15,239 13,187
Total loss (252,560) (353,993)
NON MARK-UP/ INTEREST EXPENSES
Operating expenses 30 880,981 921,426
Workers Welfare Fund - -
Other charges 31 71,395 71,463
Total non-markup/ interest expenses 952,376 992,889
Loss before provisions (1,204,936) (1,346,882)
Provisions and write offs - net 32 (465) (24,089)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (1,204,471) (1,322,793)
Taxation 33 (169,630) (214,790)
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (1,034,841) (1,108,003)
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank (1,019,350) (1,098,416)

Non-controlling interest (15,491) (9,587)
Loss available for appropriation (1,034,841) (1,108,003)
Basic/diluted (loss) per share (rupees) 34 (4.26) (4.59)
The annexed notes from 1 to 45 and annexure-1 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(_!;, oG é ap M a—uV 2
Dilshad Ali Ahmad Sameena Gul Omer Farooq Hashim*Raza Rauf Ahmad
President/CEO Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2020

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)

Net loss after taxation (1,034,841) (1,108,003)
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit and
loss account in subsequent periods
Movement in deficit on revaluation of investment - net 302,902 135,489
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and
loss account in subsequent periods
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit obligations - net 26,753 119,357
Total comprehensive loss (705,186) (853,157)
Attributable to :
Equity holders of the Bank (689,730) (843,871)
Non-controlling interest (15,456) (9,2806)

(705,186) (853,157)

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 and annexure-1 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

s 6.9 P oy /Mz

Dilshad Ali Ahmad Sameena Gul Omer Farooq Hashim*Raza Rauf Ahmad
President/CEO Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended December 31, 2020

2020 2019
Note (Rupees in '000)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation (1,204,471) (1,322,793)
Less: Dividend income (1,629) (2,247)
(1,206,100) (1,325,040)
Adjustments:
Depreciation 76,025 74,127
Amortization 1,346 1,374
Provision and write-offs 32 (465) (24,089)
Loss/(gain) on sale of fixed assets (899) 29
Mark-up expense on leased liability against ROU assets 71,287 69,374
147,294 120,815
(1,058,806) (1,204,225)
(Increase)/ decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions - -
Held-for-trading securities - -
Advances 454,896 360,998
Other assets (excluding advance taxation) 35,103 21,280
489,999 382,278
Increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills payable 48,443 (67,245)
Borrowings from financial institutions 472,842 (1,085,124)
Deposits 101,554 1,781,262
Other liabilities (excluding current taxation) (167,643) 278,187
455,196 907,080
(113,611) 85,133
Income tax paid (2,803) (2,978)
Net cash flow generated from/(used in) operating activities (116,414) 82,155
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net investment/disinvestment in available-for-sale securities 215,247 180,455
Net investment in held-to-maturity securities - -
Dividend received 1,629 2,247
Investment in operating fixed assets (3,211) (1,003)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1,201 771
Net cash flow (used in)/generated from investing activities 214,866 182,470
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of lease obligation (81,866) (73,380)
Net cash flow (used in)/generated from financing activities (81,866) (73,380)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 16,586 191,245
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 655,890 464,645
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 35 672,476 655,890

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 and annexure-1 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

i Qe M

Dilshad Ali Ahmad Sameena Gul Omer Farooq Hashim'Raza Rauf Ahmad
President/CEO Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 The Group

1.1.1  The Group comprises of SME Bank Limited (the Bank) and SME Leasing Limited (SMEL).
1.1.2 SME Bank Limited (the Bank) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan on
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October 30, 2001 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 having its registered
office at 56-F, Nazim-ud-Din Road, F-6/1, Blue Area Islamabad. The Bank obtained its
business commencement certificate on April 16, 2005 which became effective from the date
of its issue. The Bank is a scheduled commercial bank engaged in the business of banking
with the primary objective to support and develop Small and Medium Enterprise (SME)
sector in Pakistan by providing necessary financial assistance and business support services
on sustainable basis. The Bank is operating through a network of 13 commercial banking
branches. Based on the latest credit rating report dated November 22, 2018 issued by Pakistan
Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA), credit rating of the Bank was “CCC” in the long
term and “B” (Single B) in the short term. Subsequent to above, the credit rating of Bank has
not been updated.

In terms of Bank’s License No. BL-05 dated September 13, 2004 issued under section 27 of
the Banking Companies Ordinance 1962, the Bank is required to hold minimum paid-up-
capital (net of losses) of Rs. 1.0 billion at the time of issuance of said license, and at all times
thereafter during which the above capital is required to be raised to Rs. 1.5 billion by December
31, 2004 and to Rs. 2.0 billion by December 31, 2005 or any other amount prescribed by
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) from time to time. SBP granted exemption vide its letter No.
BPRD/BA&CPD/646/332/2020 dated January 06, 2020 from meeting the minimum capital
requirement (MCR) till December 31, 2019 or completion of restructuring/ptivatization of
the Bank, whichever is eatlier. Although further relaxation of MCR has not been granted but
SBP has not objected the non-compliance of MCR as it is fully aware about the progress of
the privatization of the Bank.

Amalgamation of defunct RDFC and SBFC

The Federal Government promulgated the Regional Development Finance Corporation
(RDFC) and Small Business Finance Corporation (SBFC) Amalgamation and Conversion
Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance 2001) setting forth the mechanism of amalgamation of
defunct RDFC and SBFFC. Both these entities were Development Financial Institutions (DFIs).
In pursuance of the Ordinance 2001, Finance Division, Ministry of Finance (MoF) issued an
Order (SRO (1) 2001) dated December 29, 2001 setting forth the scheme of amalgamation
of RDFC and SBFC with the Bank effective January 1, 2002. Pursuant to this scheme entire
assets and liabilities of defunct RDFC and SBFC as at December 31, 2001 were transferred
to the Bank at fair value. These two institutions stand dissolved and ceased to exist effective
January 1, 2002. The Bank allotted its shates to the share holders of defunct RDFC and SBFC
in proportion to their shareholding therein based on the fair value of net assets of defunct
RDFC and SBFC on December 31, 2001.
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1.1.3 SME Leasing Limited

SME Leasing Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on July 12, 2002 as an
unlisted public company and acquired the status of a listed company on December 13, 20006.
The Company is a subsidiary of SME Bank Limited (the Holding Company), who holds
73.14% (2019: 73.14%) of the Company’s shares. At the time of incorporation, the Company
was a wholly owned subsidiary of SME Bank Limited, whereby under an arrangement the
assets and liabilities of the leasing division of SME Bank Limited were transferred to the
Company on January 28, 2003. The Company is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange and its
registered office is situated at 56-F, Nazim-ul-Din Road F-6/1, Blue Area, Islamabad. The core
objective of the Company is to extend lease and working capital financing facilities to small
and medium enterprises of the country. The PACRA Credit Rating Agency has assigned a
long term rating of B (2019: B) and a short-term rating of B (2019: B) to the Company in the
month of April 2020.

The license of the company to operate as a leasing company expired on May 20, 2019.
Thereafter, the Company applied via application reference # SMEL/MO/2019 dated April
16, 2019 for its renewal in the manner so required by the NBFC rules, 2003. However, renewal
of license was in progress till the year end.

The Company obtained license of non deposit taking NBFC and as per section 4 (Schedule
I) of NBFC Regulations 2008, a non deposit taking NBFC shall have minimum equity of
Rs 50 million. The Company being non deposit taking NBFC has not complied with said
requirement of NBFC Regulations 2008 of maintaining minimum capital requirement.

2. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and
SMEL (collectively referred to as “ the Group”).

The assets and liabilities of the SMEL have been consolidated on a line by line basis and the
carrying value of investment held by the Bank is eliminated against the SMEL’s equity held by
the Bank in the consolidated financial statements.

Non-controlling interest is that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of
SMEL attributable to the interest which are not owned by the Bank. Non controlling interest

is presented as separate item in these consolidated financial statements.

Intra-group balances and transactions have been eliminated.

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

3.1 These consolidated financial statements have been presented in accordance with the format
prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan vide BPRD Circular No. 02 of 2018 dated January
25,2018.
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3.2 Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Bank operates. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Bank’s functional currency. Figures
have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees, unless otherwise stated.

4. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

4.1 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies
Act, 2017, provisions of and the directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance,
1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and directives issued by SBP and the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962, Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by SBP and SECP differ with
the requirements of IFRS, requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the
Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives shall prevail.

The SBP, vide BPRD circular no. 4, dated October 23, 2019, has deferred the applicability
of IFRS 9, Financial Instruments until January 01, 2021. International Accounting Standard
39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” (before its replacement by
IFRS 9), International Accounting Standard 40, “Investment Property” and International
Financial Reporting Standard 7,”Financial Instruments: Disclosure” are not applicable to
banking companies in Pakistan. Accordingly, the requirements of these Standards have not
been considered in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements prescribed
by the SBP through various circulars.

SECP vide its notification SRO 633 (I)/2014 dated July 10, 2014, adopted IFRS-10,
Consolidated Financial Statements, effective from the periods starting from June 30, 2014.
However, vide its notification SRO 56(1)/2016 dated January 28, 2016, it has been notified
that the requirements of IFRS-10 and section 228 of the Companies Act, 2017 will not be
applicable with respect to the investment in mutual funds established under Trust structure.

4.2 Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published accounting and reporting
standards that are not yet effective in the current year
Following standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), which are yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) for the purpose of their applicability in Pakistan:
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4.3

Standard Effective date
(accounting
periods beginning
on or after)

IFRS 1 First Time adoption of International Financial July 01, 2009
Reporting Standards (amendments)
IFRS 17 | Insurance Contracts January 01, 2022

Following standards and amendments to published accounting standards will be

effective in future periods and have not been early adopted by the group

Standard Effective date
(accounting

periods beginning
on or after)

IFRS 7 & | Interest Rate Benchmark Reform—Phase 2— January 01, 2021

IFRS9 | Amendments to Financial Instruments

IFRS 4 | Insurance Contracts (Amendments January 01, 2021

IFRS 3 | Business Combinations (Amendments January 01, 2022

IAS 16 | Property, plant and equipment (Amendments) January 01, 2022

IAS 37 | Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent January 01, 2022
Assets (Amendments)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments) | January 01, 2023

IFRS 10 | Consolidated Financial Statements & Investment in Not ye finalized

& IAS 28 | Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting
standards that are effective in the current year

There are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 but are
considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Group’ operations
and are therefore not detailed in these consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

5.1

5.2

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention as modified for certain investments which are carried at fair value, obligations in
respect of defined benefit schemes and lease liabilities under IFRS 16 at their present values.

Use of critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Bank’s
accounting policies. The Bank uses estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
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resulting accounting estimate will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are as
follow:

1) Classification of investments (note 10.2)

i) Provision/impairment against investments (note 10.2), advances (note 11.4) and
other assets (note 15.4)

1) Valuation and impairment of available for sale securities (note 5.2)

iv) Useful life and residual value of property and equipment and intangible assets (note 5.5)

V) Taxation (note 5.10)

vi) Staff retitement benefits (note 5.11)

Vii) Leases (note 5.5)

Vviii) Classification and provision of net investment in finance lease (note 6.10, 6.10.1)

6 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are consistent with those of the previous financial year. Significant accounting policies are
enumerated as follows:

6.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and balances with treasury banks, balances with
other banks and call money lending’s.

6.2 Investments

Annual Report 2020 136

Investments other than those categorized as held-for-trading are initially recognised at fair
value which includes transactions costs associated with the investments. Investments classified
as held-for-trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in
the profit and loss account.

All regular way purchases/sales of investment are recognised on the trade date, i.c., the date the
Bank commits to purchase/sell the investments. Regular way purchases or sales of investment
require delivery of securities within the time frame generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

The Bank has classified its investment portfolio, except for investments in subsidiary into
‘held-for-trading’, ‘held-to-maturity’ and ‘available-for-sale’ as follows:

Held for trading

These are securities which are acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantage of
short-term market/interest rate movements and are to be sold within 90 days. These ate
carried at market value, with the related unrealized gain/(loss) on revaluation being taken to
profit and loss account.
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6.3

6.4

Held to maturity
These represent investments acquired by the Bank with the intention and ability to hold them
upto maturity. These are carried at amortized cost less impairment if any. Impairment in debt

securities is determined in accordance with the requirements of Prudential Regulations issued
by SBP.

Available for sale

These are investments that do not fall under the held-for-trading or held-to-maturity categories.
These are carried at market value except in case of unquoted securities where market value
is not available, which are carried at the lower of cost and break-up value less provision for
diminution in value, if any. Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation is taken to ‘surplus/(deficit) on
revaluation of assets’ account shown as part of equity. On derecognition or impairment
in quoted available-for-sale investments, the cumulative gain or loss previously reported as
‘surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of assets’ below equity is included in the profit and loss
account for the year.

Provision for diminution in values of securities (other than term finance certificates) is made
after considering impairment if any in their values, where the decline in prices of available
for sale equity securities is significant or prolonged, it is considered impaired and included in
consolidated profit and loss account. Provision for diminution in the value of term finance
certificates is made as per Prudential Regulations issued by SBP.

Held-for-trading and quoted available-for-sale securities are marked to market with reference
to ready quotes on Reuters page (PKRV) or MUFAP or the Stock Exchanges, as the case may
be.

Investment in subsidiary
Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost less impairment, if any. However the investment in
subsidiary is not marked to market as per prudential regulations issued by SBP.

Agreements for sale and purchase of securities (repo and reverse repo)

Securities sold under repurchase agreement (repo) are retained in the consolidated financial
statements as investments and a liability for consideration received is included in borrowings.
The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as mark-up expense and recognized
over the period of contract.

Securities purchased under agreement to resell (reverse repo) are included in lendings to
financial institutions. The difference between purchase and resale price is treated as mark-up
income and recognized over the period of the contract.

Advances

Advances are stated net off specific and general provisions. Provisions are made in accordance
with the requirements of Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP and charged to the profit
and loss account. These regulations prescribe an age based criteria for classification of non-
petforming loans and advances and computing provision/allowance there against. Such
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regulations also require the Bank to maintain general provision/allowance against its Small
Entity (SE) advances portfolio at specified percentage of such portfolio.

Advances are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

6.5 Capital work-in progress, operating fixed assets, intangibles, depreciation and
amortization

Capital work-in-progress
Capital-work-in progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. These are
transferred to operating fixed assets as and when the assets are available for use.

Operating fixed assets-owned
These are stated at cost less impairment loss and accumulated depreciation except for leasehold
land. Land is stated at cost less impairment, if any.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to consolidated profit and loss account as and
when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged on straight line method at the rates given in note 12.1 commencing
from the month in which the asset is available for use. No depreciation is charged in the
month of disposal of the asset. The residual value, useful life and depreciation method is
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Gains or losses on disposal of property and equipment are taken to the consolidated profit
and loss account.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognized only if it is identifiable, the Bank has control over the asset,
it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably.

All intangible assets that meet the recognition criteria are initially measured at cost and are
amortized on a straight line basis at the rate given in note 13 commencing from the month
when these assets are available for use. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses, if any. The residual value, useful life and amortization
method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Right-of-use (RoU) assets

At the commencement date of the lease, the right-of-use asset is initially measured
at the present value of lease liability. Subsequently, RoU assets are measured at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. RoU assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.
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6.6

6.7

Lease liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognizes lease liability measured at the
present value of the consideration (lease payments) to be made over the lease term and is
adjusted for lease prepayments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, unless it is not readily determinable, in which case the lessee may use the
incremental rate of borrowing. After the commencement date, the carrying amount of lease
liability is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made.

Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with renewal and termination
options (Bank as a lessee)

The Bank determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised,
or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Bank has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Bank
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.

Incremental borrowing rate (IBR)

The IBR is the rate of markup that the Bank would have to pay to borrow over a similar term,
and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-
of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The Bank estimates the IBR using observable
inputs such as market interest rates.

Impairment

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment,
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets
may not be recoverable. If such indication exists, and where the carrying value exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amount. The
resulting impairment loss is taken to the consolidated profit and loss account. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
value that would have been determined net of depreciation/amortization, if no impairment
loss had been recognized.

The available for sale equity investments are impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the value below its cost. Impairment loss is recognized in consolidated
profit & loss account.

Deposits

Deposits are recorded at the nominal values of proceeds received. Markup accrued on deposits
is recognised separately as part of other liabilities and is charged to consolidated profit and
loss account on a time proportion basis.
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6.8

6.9
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Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is
recognised in other comprehensive income or below equity.

Current

Provision for current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year using tax
rates applicable at the date of consolidated statement of financial position and any adjustment
to tax payable for previous years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheetliability method in respect of all temporary
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit at the rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on the tax rates that
have been enacted. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefits will be realized.

The Bank also recognizes deferred tax asset/liability on deficit/surplus on revaluation of
investments which is adjusted against the related deficit/surplus in accordance with the
requirements of International Accounting Standard on ‘Income Taxes” (IAS 12).

The Bank takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation
authorities. Instances where the Bank’s views differ from the views taken by the income tax
department at the assessment stage and where the Bank considers that its view on items of
material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Staff retirement and other benefits
The Group operates following staff retirement and other benefit schemes for its employees:

Defined benefit plan- Pension and gratuity scheme

Fully funded defined benefit pension and gratuity scheme for eligible employees. Contributions
are made in accordance with the actuarial valuation which is carried out periodically using
‘Projected Unit Credit Method’. All actuarial gains and losses ate recognized immediately
through other comprehensive income.

Defined benefit funded gratuity scheme

The Bank operates a defined benefit funded gratuity scheme for its contractual employees.
The obligation under the defined benefit unfunded gratuity scheme is recognized on the basis
of actuarial valuation using the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method’.
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6.10

Benevolent fund

The Bank also operates a contributory benevolent fund for all its eligible employees (defined
benefit scheme). Contributions to this fund were made equally by the Bank and employees till
March 2002. Thereafter it is wholly contributed by the Bank at the rate of 2% of basic salary
with a ceiling of Rs. 200 per month per employee. Annual contribution towards the defined
benefit scheme are made on the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

Compensated absences

The Bank

The Bank provides compensated absences, an unfunded scheme, as per entitlement to all its
permanent and contractual employees. For its eligible employees, related provision is made in
accordance with actuarial valuation. Provision for the year is charged to consolidated profit
and loss account. The amount recognized in consolidated statement of financial position
represents present value of defined benefit obligation.

Defined benefit plans are provided to employees of the Bank. Calculations in this respect
require assumptions to be made of future outcomes, the principal ones being in respect of
increase in remuneration, the expected long-term return on plan assets and the discount rate
used to convert future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the
underlying assumptions.

SMEL
SMEL accounts for its laibility towards accumulating compensated absences, when the
employees render services that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences.

Defined contribution plan

SMEL operates an approved defined contributory provident fund for all its permanent
employees at the rate of 8% of basic salary. The contribution are recognized as employee
benefit expense when they become due.

Staff retirement are payable to employees on completion of the prescribed qualifying period
of services under the scheme.

Net investment in lease finance
Leases where the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the leased assets to the lessees, are classified as finance leases.

The leased asset is derecognized and the present value of the lease receivable is recognized on
the statement of financial position date. The difference between the gross lease receivables
and the present value of the lease receivables is recognized as unearned finance income.
A receivable is recognized at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease
payments under the lease agreements, including guaranteed residual value, if any.
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6.10.1

6.11

6.11.1

6.11.2

6.11.3

6.11.4

6.11.5
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Each lease payment received is applied against the gross investment in the finance lease
receivable to reduce both the principal and the unearned finance income. The finance income
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss account on a basis account that reflects a
constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in the finance lease.

Initial direct costs incurred by the Company in negotiating and arranging finance leases ate
added to finance lease receivables and are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit
or loss account over the lease term on the same basis as the finance lease income.

Provision for potential lease losses and doubtful loans and receivables

Specific provision for potential lease losses and doubtful loans and receivables are made
based in the appraisal of each lease or loan on the basis of the requirements of the NBFC
Regulations.

Revenue recognition
Advances

Advances disbursed by SME Bank Limited:

Markup/interest on performing advances is recognized on a time proportion basis over the
term of loan and advances. Markup/interest/penal markup recoverable on non performing
advances is trecognized on receipt basis. Mark-up/interest on rescheduled/restructured
advances and investments is recognised as permitted by the regulations of the SBP.

Return on investments

Return on investments is recognized on a time proportion basis except on classified investment
which is recognized on receipt basis. Any premium paid or discount received on purchase of
securities is amortized through consolidated profit and loss account over the remaining period
of maturity on time apportionment basis.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the dividend is established.

Interest, fee, brokerage and commission

Interest, fee, brokerage and commission, profit on other investments, bank deposits and
staff loans is recognized on accrual basis. Income on non-funded facilities (fee, commission,
documentation charges etc.) is recognized on receipt basis except commission on bank
guarantees which is recognized on accrual basis.

Leasing income

SMEL follows the finance lease method in accounting for the recognition of lease income.
Under this method, the unearned lease income i.e. the excess of gross lease rentals and the
estimated residual value over the cost of the leased assets is deferred and taken to income
over the term of the lease contract, so as to produce a systematic return on the net investment
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6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

in finance lease. Unrealized lease income is held in suspense account, where necessaty, in
accordance with the requirements of the NBFC Regulations.

Front-end fees and documentation charges are taken to income when realized.

Unrealized lease income and unrealized income on loans and finances is held in suspense
account, where necessary, in accordance with requirements of the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (NBFC Regulations).

Off setting

Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is alegally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset are capitalized. Other borrowing costs are
recognized as an expense in the period in which it incurs.

Provisions

Provisions are recorded when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. Provision for guarantee claims and other off balance sheet obligations is recognized
when intimated and reasonable certainty exists to settle the obligations. Expected recoveries
are recognized by debiting customer accounts. Charge to consolidated profit and loss account
is stated net off expected recoveries.

Financial assets and liabilities

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Bank becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset is derecognised where
(a) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or (b) the Bank has transferred
its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (i) the Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (i) the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. A financial liability is derecognised when
the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities is taken to income currently.

Segment reporting
A segment is the distinguishable component of the Bank that is subject to risks and rewards
that are different from those of other segments. A business segment is one that is engaged
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cither in providing certain products or services, whereas a geographical segment is one engaged
in providing products and services within a particular economic environment. Segment
information is presented as per the Bank’s functional structure and the guidance of the State
Bank of Pakistan. The Bank’s primary format of reporting is based on business segments:

6.16.1 Business segments

Trading and sales
This segment undertakes the Group’s treasury, money market and capital market activities.

Commercial banking
It includes loans, deposits and other transactions with individuals/staff, small and medium
enterprises and corporate customers.

Other leasing operations
This segment includes the Group’s leasing activities

6.16.2 Geographical segments
The Group operates only in Pakistan.

6.17  Appropriation to reserves
Dividend and appropriation to reserves (except appropriation required by law) after the
balance sheet date are recognized as liability in the Bank’s financial statement in the year in
which these are approved.

6.18  IFRS 13 - ‘Fair Value Measurement’
It consolidates the guidance on how to measure fair value into one comprehensive standard. It
introduces the use of an exact price, as well as extensive disclosure requirements, particularly
the inclusion of non financial instruments into the fair value hierarchy. The application of
IFRS 13 does not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company
except for certain disclosures as mentioned in note 37.

7 FINANCIAL RESTRUCTURING AND GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION

7.1 Current Status of Privatization of SME Bank
Government of Pakistan (GOP) decided in their meeting held on November 19, 2018 to
relaunch the privatization transaction of the Bank through Privatization Commission (PC).
Cabinet Committee on Privatization (CCOP) approved the new privatization program of the
Bank on March 06, 2019 to divest the GOPs equity stake in the Bank along with management
control to a strategic investor. Accordingly, PC recommended the transaction structure for
the privatization of the Bank to CCOP who approved the referred transaction structure on
November 15, 2019. Thereafter through a due process invitation for expression of interest
for acquisition of 93.88% shares of the Bank were advertised in newspapers on December
13, 2019. The last date for submission of EOIs and Statement of Qualifications (SOQs)
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7.21

was February 28, 2020. Five prospective investors have submitted their SOQs against the
advertisement, out of that four have been cleared by SBP. The buyers side due diligence
is completed on August 24, 2020 and the final draft of share purchase agreement (SPA)
has been shared with three pre-qualified bidders. Comments from pre-qualified bidders on
instructions to bidders (ITB) and SPA have been deliberated by the Transaction Committee
and clarifications to this effect have been given to pre-qualified bidders. A joint meeting of
the Transaction Committee, SBP and pre-qualified bidders held on December 29th, 2020
and December 30th, 2020 with reference to “Pre-Bid Conference” and “Valuation Model”
wherein the queries of pre-qualified potential bidders have been clarified and some of them
pertaining to license, merger and MCR have been forwarded to SBP for its clarification whose
response is awaited.

Going concern assumption and minimum capital requirement

The Bank

During the current year the Bank incurred a net loss of Rs. 977.164 million (2019: Rs. 1,072.309
million) resulting into accumulated losses of Rs. 5,761.702 million (2019: Rs. 4,811.162 million).
As of December 31, 2020, the reporting date, the total liabilities of the Bank have exceeded
its total assets by Rs. 3,160.083 million (2019: Rs. 2,512.445) indicating the negative equity
and due to surplus of current demand liabilities over its total unencumbered current liquid
assets creating a negative working capital of Rs. 4.684 billion (2019: Rs. 7.859 billion) though
the situation is improved as compare to last year but it still indicates the Bank’s inadequate
capacity to ensure the timely repayments. Due to cash inadequacy the Bank was unable to
meet the statutory solvency requitements of minimum capital (MCR) of Rs. 10,000 million
and the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of 10%. Due to continued stressed financial conditions
the Bank’s credit rating fell from B negative (single B-) to CCC. Based on the operational
results SBP granted exemption from meeting the MCR and CAR up to December 31, 2019 or
restructuting/privatization, whichever is eatlier, subject to submission of a concrete plan from
the Ministry of Finance (MoF) to provide a firm commitment to inject the required amount
of capital funds in the Bank, if its privatization does not materialize by March 31, 2020.
These conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainty that may cast a significant
doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as going concern and therefore it may not be able to
realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the ordinary course of business. To overcome
the same, the Government of Pakistan (GoP) being the majority shareholder with 93.88%
shareholding in the Bank has initiated the process of privatization of the Bank. The MoF
through its letter No. F3(27)IF-111/2005-185 dated February 26, 2020 has informed SBP that
the privatization process is likely to be completed within the period of three to four months
and requested SBP for extension of relaxation of regulatory requirements till June 30, 2021.
Thereafter, the Bank also vide its latest letter No. SMEBL: HO: CFO&CS: 01:2021/1609/430
dated January 18, 2021 has requested SBP to allow exemption from MCR till June 30, 2021 or
privatization of the Bank whichever is earlier. MoIF and management of the Bank are hopeful
of a favorable response as SBP has not objected the non-compliance of MCR. Moreover, the
process of privatization of the Bank is at the advance stage as five prospective investors have
submitted their Statement of Qualifications (SOQs), out of which four have been cleared by
SBP. The buyers side due diligence is completed on August 24, 2020 and the final draft of
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share purchase agreement (SPA) has been shared with three pre-qualified bidders. Comments
from pre-qualified bidders on instructions to bidders (ITB) and SPA have been deliberated by
the Transaction Committee and clarifications to this effect have been given to pre-qualified
bidders. A joint meeting of the Transaction Committee, SBP and pre-qualified bidders held on
December 29 & 30 2020 and December 30, 2020 with reference to “Pre-Bid Conference” and
“Valuation Model” wherein the queries of pre-qualified potential bidders have been clarified
and some of them pertaining to license, merger and MCR have been forwarded to SBP for
its clarification whose response is awaited. Considering the current stage of the privatization
process the management of the Bank strongly believes that the privatization of the Bank
shall be completed soon and will result into injection of fresh equity enabling the Bank to
expand and finance its operations while MoI' is committed to provide all necessary financial
assistance to the Bank to support its operations till the privatization. In view of above the
management of the Bank believes that the use of going concern assumption in preparation
of these unconsolidated financial statements is appropriate and, therefore, have prepared the
same on a going concern basis.

SME Leasing limited (SMEL) - Subsidiary Company

SMEL has been incurring losses since year ended December 31, 2009 which has resulted in
erosion of equity. During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company has incurred
loss of Rs. 57.676 million (2019: Rs. 35.694 million) for the year ended December 31, 2020,
resulting in accumulated loss of Rs. 348.905 (2019: Rs. 291.358 million) as at balance sheet
date and as of that date the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 67.288
million (2019: Rs. 54.805 million).

Further SMEL is dependent on the running finance facility granted by the holding company.
The revised prudential regulation of State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) applicable from June 2015
has restricted the exposure by bank to a related party to the extent of 7.5% of its equity.
However, the relaxation provided by State Bank of Pakistan, to SME Bank has been expired
on June 2018 and the holding company has applied for relaxation of the aforesaid requirement
in respect of its financing to the Company to the State Bank of Pakistan.

The above factors indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt on SMEL’s ability to continue as a going concern and SMEL may not be able to realize
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. However, the financial
statements of SMEL for current year consolidated in these consolidated financial statement
have been prepared on going concern basis considering the factors mentioned below:

- The Holding Company (the Bank) has granted a short term running finance facility
to SMEL amounting to Rs. 150 million out of which Rs. 144.747 million has been
utilized as at December 31, 2020 (2019: Rs. 142.156 million). The said facility can be
extended to the extent of Rs. 300 million as per the stand-by agreement for finance
facility. The Bank has obtained relaxation from the State Bank of Pakistan from the
requirements of related party exposure limits in order to continue its support towards
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SMEL. Further, the Bank has been in the list of privatization by Government of
Pakistan. Upon successful completion of privatization of the Bank, the majority
shareholding in SMEL will be taken over by the acquirer of the Bank.

- The management of SMEL has prepared cash flow projections which reflect that
based on financial support by the parent company SMEL will be able to continue its
business on going concern basis in the foreseeable future.

- Concerted efforts are being made for the recovery of non-performing leases and
loans and finances and in this respect during the year Rs. 20.714 million (2019: Rs.
17.612 million) has been recovered.

- Efforts are also being made by the management to reduce the overall cost of the
Company.
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2020 2019
8. CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS Note (Rupees in '000)
In hand
Local currency 175,637 123,705
In transit - local currency - -
With State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) in:
Local currency current accounts 8.1 419,782 468,276
With National Bank of Pakistan in:
Local currency current accounts 73,334 58,486
40 171
668,793 650,638

Prize bonds
Deposits with the State Bank of Pakistan are maintained to comply with the statutory requirements issued

8.1
from time to time.
2020 2019
9. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS Note (Rupees in '000)
In Pakistan:
On current accounts 1,966 1,133
On deposit accounts 11,717 14,119
Provision for doubtful balance with a bank 9.1 (10,000) (10,000)
3,683 5,252
9.1 Particulars of provision for doubtful placement with a bank
Opening balance (10,000) (10,000)
Charge for the year - -
Reversals - -
(10,000) (10,000)

Closing balance
Provision for doubtful balance is in respect of deposit of Rs. 10 million (2019: 10 million) with Indus Bank

Limited which is under liquidation.
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10.

10.1

10.2

INVESTMENTS

Investment by type

Note
Available-for-sale securities
Federal Government Securities 10.2.1

Shares

Mutual Funds

Held-to-maturity securities

Non Government Debt Securities
- Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs) *
- Certificates of Investments (COIs)

Total Investment

*TDR of Rs. 35 million (2019: Rs. 35 million) was under lien at year end.

Investment by segment:

Federal Government Securities
Market Treasury Bills (MTBs)
Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)

Shares
Listed companies

Unlisted companies

Mutual Funds
Open end
Close end - Listed

Non Government Debt Securities
- Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs)

- Certificates of Investments (COls)

Total Investment

10.2.1 Investment given as collateral

10.2.2 These represent market value of securities at reporting date.

Market Treasury Bills (MTBs)
Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)

2020 2019
Cost / .. . Cost / .
. Provision for | Surplus / Carrying ." . |Provision for|  Surplus / )
Amortized | "y inution | (Deficit) value Amortized |y inution | (Deficie | CATTYing value
cost cost
(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)
5,679,985 - 750 5,680,735 5,895,232 - (301,559) 5,593,673
42,542 (15,770) 3,370 30,142 42,542 (15,770) 1,847 28,619
1,870 - (142) 1,728 1,870 - 65 1,935
5,724,397 (15,770) 3,978 5,712,605  5939,644 (15,770) (299,647) 5,624,227
35,000 - - 35,000 35,000 - - 35,000
762 (762) - - 762 (762) - -
35,762 (762) - 35,000 35,762 (762) - 35,000
5,760,159 (16,532) 3978 5,747,605 5975406 (16,532) (299,647) 5,659,227
2020 2019
Cost / - . Cost / L
Amortized Pr.ovl.slotf for Surpluf / Carrying Amortized Prf>Xr1.s1()r% for Surplus / Carrying Value
diminution (Deficit) Value diminution (Deficit) ’
Cost Cost
(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)
2,820,478 B 499) 2,819,979 |[ 1,061,452 B (634) 1,060,818
2,859,507 - 1,249 2,860,756 || 4,833,780 B (300,925) 4,532,855
5,679,985 B 750 5,680,735 5895232 B (301,559) 5,593,673
14,999 (14,697) 3,370 3,672 14,999 (14,697) 1,847 2,149
27,543 (1,073) - 26,470 27,543 (1,073) 5 26,470
42,542 (15,770) 3,370 30,142 42,542 (15,770) 1,847 28,619
1,216 - 76 1,292 1,216 - 154 1,370
654 - (218) 436 654 - (89) 565
1,870 B (142) 1,728 1870 B 65 1,935
35,000 B B 35,000 35,000 B 35,000
762 (762) - - 762 (762) - -
35,762 (762) - 35,000 35,762 (762) - 35,000
5,760,159 (16,532) 3,978 547,605 5975406 (16,532) (299,647) 5,659,227
2020 2019
Note (Rupees in '000)
1022 1,560,528 .
1022 2,456,991 3,560,826
4,017,519 3,560,826
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10.3 Provision for diminution in value of investments

2020

2019

(Rupees in '000)

Opening balance 16,532 36,532
Chatge / reversals
Charge for the year - -
Reversal for the year - -
Reversal on disposals - (20,000)
- (20,000)
Transfers - net - -
Amount written off - ,
Closing balance 16,532 16,532
10.3.1 Particulars of provision against debt securities category of classification
2020 2019
Domestic NPI Provision NPI Provision
Other assets especially mentioned
Substandard - - - -
Doubtful - - - -
Loss 762 762 762 762
762 762 762 762
10.4  Quality of Available-for-sale Securities 2020 2019
| Cost/Amortised cost |
(Rupees '000)
Federal Government Securities - Government guaranteed
Market Treasury Bill 2,820,478 1,061,452
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2,859,507 4,833,780
5,679,985 5,895,232
Shares 2020 2019
Cost
Listed Companies (Rupees '000)
- Chemicals 810 810
- Investment banks/companies 13,236 13,236
- Synthetic and Rayon 336 336
- Technology and communication 587 587
- Textile composite 30 30
14,999 14,999
2020 2019
Unlisted / delisted Companies Cost Breakup value Cost | Breakup value
Note (Rupees '000)
- ISE Towers REIT Management Company Limited ~ 10.4.1 18,000 46,885 18,000 43,971
- LSE Financial Services Limited 10.4.1 8,440 19,606 8,440 19,369
- News-v/s Credit Information Services (Pvt) Limited. 100 30 100 30
- Companies delisted from stock exchange 10.4.2 1,003 - 1,003 -
27,543 66,521 27,543 63,370

10.4.1 Break up value per share is based on the latest audited financial statements of investees.
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10.4.2 Particulars of investments in shares of companies delisted from stock exchange and ate currently under liquidation was as under.

- Mohib Exports Company Limited

- Sunflow Citrus Limited

- Tawakal Garments Company Limited
- Tristar Shipping Lines Limited

- Zahoor Textile Mills Limited

Mutual Funds

- HBL investment fund - Class A
- HBL investment fund - Class B

10.5 Particulars relating to Held to Maturity secutrities ate as follows:

Non Government Debt Securities
Unlisted

-A/AA1
- Unrated

Number of Cost/Paid- Total paid up
shares held up value per value
share
(Rupees)  (Rupees in '000)
4,600 23.81 109
100,000 4.22 422
4,000 38.38 154
5,000 23.56 118
15,200 13.16 200
1,003
2020 2019
I Cost |
(Rupees '000)
654 654
1,216 1,216
1,870 1,870
2020 2019
| Cost |
(Rupees '000)
35,000 35,000
762 762
35,762 35,762
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11.3 Non-Performing Loan (NPL) portfolios of defunct SBFC & RDFC to National Bank of Pakistan

(NBP)

The Boatd through its resolution by circular No.10/circ/33 dated March 08, 2010 duly endorsed by the
members in their meeting dated May 20, 2010 has approved the transfer and assignment of fully non-
performing loan portfolios of defunct SBFC & RDFC to NBP on the basis of deferred transfer price.
Subsequently transfer and assignment agreement was executed between the Bank and National Bank of
Pakistan at Karachi on July 01, 2010 (Effective date). According to the agreement, the transferor (SME)
and the acquirer (NBP) acknowledge, declare and confirm the transfer, assignment and vesting of all rights,
interests, privileges, title, powers and remedies in favor of the acquirer with respect to:

the non-performing loans, collateral and the debtors;

all agreements, deeds, instruments and other documents relating to the non-performing loans, debtors and
collateral and to which the transferor is, or legally deemed to be, a party or a beneficiary;

all legal proceedings by and against the transferor with respect to the non-performing loans, the debtors and
collateral, which may be pending before any court, tribunal, arbitrator or authority, without being subject to
any liabilities of the transferor to any person.

The agreed transfer price was amount equal to 50% of net recoveries.

Under the above referred arrangements, portfolio of defunct SBFC & RDFC outstanding as on June
30, 2010 (Except outstanding loans of RDFC where facility of Equity Participation Fund had also been
extended) were transferred to NBP.

On request of the Bank’s management the decision to transfer and assignment of the portfolio was revisited
by the BoD in its 65th meeting held on July 13, 2011 and resolved that the agreement of assignment of
the old portfolio to NBP should be cancelled and Board’s pronouncement for revocation of agreement to
Ministry of Finance to arrange retrieval/restoration of old portfolio to the Bank in the intetest of recovery
of public funds.

In the meeting held on March 04, 2013 the Board of Directors reconsidered the position taken earlier on
this matter on grounds of related cost of recovery and infrastructure on request of then management and
decided that since the Bank is still on the privatization list, BoD would be able to decide on portfolio after
Bank’s delisting from privatization.

The incumbent Management has again reviewed the situation and noted that no comparative analysis/study
pertaining to transfer of portfolio was conducted which could justify the decision of assigning old portfolio
to NBP.

In view of the above, foregoing Board was requested in its 83rd meeting, held on August 30, 2014 and the
management of the Bank was allowed to proceed further in pursuance of resolution / direction passed
regarding the subject matter in 64th and 65th Meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 16, 2011
and July 13, 2011 respectively by overruling to verdict of the Board of Directors given on the issue in 75th
Meeting of Board of Directors held on March 04, 2013.

Cabinet Committee on Privatization (CCOP) in its meeting held on January 27, 2017 has approved
the transaction structure of the Bank’s privatization. The transaction structure has excluded the above
portfolios from the privatization transaction and the CCOP in above referred meeting has directed the
Bank to transfer the said portfolios to NBP and that all recoveries made by NBP from the loan portfolio
shall be deposited in the Federal Consolidated Fund (FCF), a related party as being managed by Ministry of
Finance (MoF).
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Pursuant to above, being directed by MoF the management of the Bank has obtained an independent
legal advice for defining the legal procedures for the implementation of the requirement of MoE The
legal advice proposed that the Bank may via a tri party novation agreement between SME, NBP and GoP
through MoF, transfer and surrender any rights, obligations and liabilities on the remaining receivable assets
in the loan portfolio to FCF against any consideration amount. The Novation agreement will further allow
for any recoveries made by NBP in relation to the loan portfolio to be deposited directly in FCF as the
recoveries will no longer be an asset of the Bank.

In line with the steps proposed by the legal advisor the board of directors of the Bank in its meeting held on
December 31, 2017 has approved the transferred of fully non-performing loan portfolios of defunct SBFC
& RDFC to Mol" and NBP via a tri party novation agreement between SME, NBP and GoP through MoF
at a value of Rs.100 as a sale consideration. Thereafter, the shareholders of the Bank in their meeting held
on January 22, 2018 through their special resolution have also authorized the transferred of the portfolios
as approved by the board of directors of the Bank, however, the Allied Bank Limited carrying 0.33%
holding in the Bank has opposed the resolution and required the sale of the portfolio at a fair market value
(FMV). According to above majority decision of the shareholders both the portfolios have been transferred
to the FCF and NBP against an aggregate sale consideration of Rs. 100 under a tri-party agreement (the
Agreement) executed on February 23, 2018 between the Bank, NBP and FCE As of the date of the tri-
party Agreement the Bank has transferred and surrendered all the recoveries, rights, obligation, claims and
liabilities of the referred loan portfolios in favor of the FCE.

The management of the Bank continues to show these loan portfolios in its book of accounts pending
confirmation of recording by NBP in its books of accounts to ensure that the above loans are duly
accounted by NBP in compliance to the terms of the agreement dated February 23, 2018. The Bank has
requested with vatious intervals to shate the details of the road map prepared by NBP for smooth transfer
of accounting record related to the legacy loan portfolio from books of the Bank to books of NBP but
NBP did not respond.
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11.4  Advances include Rs. 5,636.894 million (2019: Rs. 5,665.665 million) which have been placed under non-performing

status as detailed below:
2020 2019
Non Non
Performing Provision Performing Provision

Category of Classification Loans Loans

Note (Rupees in '000)
Domestic
Other Assets Especially Mentioned 1,572 41 9,260 2
Substandard 23,836 676 10,763 36
Doubtful 15,333 1,258 44,116 326
Loss 5,596,153 5,390,652 5,601,526 5,402,532

11.4.1 5,636,894 5,392,627 5,665,065 5,402,896

11.4.1 This include non performing loans and provision of Rs: 484.794 million and Rs: 344.317 million respectively (2019: Rs. 505.657
million & Rs. 367.670 million) relating to SME portfolio.

11.5  Particulars of provision against advances

2020 2019
Specific General Total Specific General Total
Note (Rupees in '000)
Opening balance 5,402,896 8 5,402,904 5,408,239 25 5,408,204
Charge/(Reversal)
Charge for the year 57,402 8,587 65,989 37,866 - 37,866
Reversal for the year (66,699) ) (66,701) (41,952) 17 (41,969)
(9,297) 8,585 (712) (4,086) 17) (4,103)
Amounts written off 11.6 - - - - - -
Reversal of provision of transferred portfolio 972) - 972) (1,257) - (1,257)
Closing balance 5,392,627 8,593 5,401,220 5,402,896 8 5,402,904

11.5.1 General provision has been recorded at the rate of 1% (2019: 1%) of unsecured performing small enterprises portfolio plus a
buffer which approximates to 4.5% (2019: Nil) of covid affected borrowers who availed SBP enabled deferment.

11.5.2 The FSV benefit availed in last years has been increased by Rs. 13.327 million (2019: increased by Rs. 26.044 million) and
reduced by 18.244 million (2019: Rs. reduced by 6.122 million) for the Bank and SMEL respectively (net of FSV benefit availed
during the yeat), which has resulted in net decreased charge for specific provision for the year ended by the same amount. The
FSV benefit is not available for cash or stock dividend/bonus to employees. Had the FSV benefit not recognized, Group's loss
before and after tax for the year ended would have been lower by Rs. 4.917 million (2019: higher by Rs. 19.922 million). As of
the current reporting date the effect of FSV benefit taken against provision is aggregated to Rs. 219.047 million (2019: Rs.
223.964 million).

2020 2019
11.5.3 Particulars of provisions against advances  Specific General Total Specific General Total
(Rupees in '000)
In local currency 5,392,627 8,593 5,401,220 5,402,896 8 5,402,904
In foreign currencies - - - - - -
5,392,627 8,593 5,401,220 5,402,896 8 5,402,904
11.6  Particulars of Write Off: 2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)

11.6.1 Against provisions - -
Directly charged to Profit & Loss account - -

11.6.2  Write Offs of Rs. 500,000 and above - -
Write Offs of below Rs. 500,000 - -

11.7  Details of Loan Write Off of Rs. 500,000 and above

In terms of sub-section(3) of Section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 the Statement in respect of written-off
loans or any other financial relief of rupees five hundred thousand or above allowed to a person(s) during the year ended

December 31, 2020 is given at Annexure-1.
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12.

12.1

FIXED ASSETS

Property and equipment
Right of use assets

Property and Equipment

At January 01, 2020

Cost

Accumulated depreciation/impairment
Net book value

Year ended December 2020
Opening net book value

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge

Closing net book value

At December 31, 2020

Cost

Accumulated depreciation/impairment
Net book value

Rate of depreciation (percentage)

At January 01, 2019

Cost

Accumulated depreciation/impairment
Net book value

Year ended December 2019
Opening net book value
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge

Closing net book value

At December 31, 2019
Cost
Accumulated depreciation/impairment

Net book value

Rate of depreciation (percentage)
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2020 2019
Note (Rupees in '000)
12.1 20,844 39,029
122 463,014 509,647
483,858 548,676
2020
Freehold Leasehold Building on Lease hold Furniture Blectrical office .
Freehold ) and computer Vehicles Total
Land Land improvement | and fixture .
Land equipment
(Rupees '000)
- 450 25,114 39,561 10,942 181,964 47,407 305,438
- - 16,674 37,404 10,328 158,431 43,572 266,409
- 450 8,440 2,157 614 23,533 3,835 39,029
- 450 8,440 2,157 614 23,533 3,835 39,029
- - - 56 7 1,377 - 1,440
- - - - - - (302) (302)
- - (1,256) (2,077) (409) (12,499) (3,082) (19,323)
- 450 7,184 136 212 12,411 451 20,844
- 450 25,114 39,617 10,949 183,323 43,115 302,568
- - 17,930 39,481 10,737 170,912 42,664 281,724
- 450 7,184 136 212 12,411 451 20,844
5 33.33 20 15 & 33.33 20
2019
Freehold Leaschold Building on Lease hold | Furniture and k;‘l:(c{t?;;i oficre Vehicles Total
Land Land Freehold Land| improvement fixture ompu ’
cqulpmcnt
(Rupees '000)
- 450 25,114 39,522 10,930 181,257 49,327 306,600
- - 15,418 34,780 9,737 145,613 40,677 246,225
- 450 9,696 4,742 1,193 35,644 8,650 60,375
- 450 9,696 4,742 1,193 35,644 8,650 60,375
- - - 39 12 726 - 777
. . - B - - (800) (800)
- - (1,256) (2,624) (591) (12,837) (4,015) (21,323)
- 450 8,440 2,157 614 23,533 3,835 39,029
- 450 25,114 39,561 10,942 181,964 47,407 305,438
- - 16,674 37,404 10,328 158,431 43,572 266,409
- 450 8,440 2,157 614 23,533 3,835 39,029
5 33.33 20 15 & 33.33 20
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12.2

12.3

12.4

13

13.1

Right of use assets

Opening net book value
Additions

Deletion

Depreciation

Closing net book value

Details of disposal of fixed assets :

2020

2019

Rupees in '000
P

Particulars of Accuml.lla.ted Book Sale Gain/ (loss)
Cost depreciation on sale of
assets . . value proceeds
/impairment fixed assets
(Rupees in '000)

Vehicles
Suzuki Bolan 393 393 - 300 300
Toyota Corolla 2,014 1,712 302 403 101
Toyota Corolla 1,885 1,885 - 188 188
2020 4,292 3,990 302 891 589
2019 1,920 (1,120) 800 (768) 32

509,647 562,451
11,525 -
(1,456)

(56,702) (52,804)

463,014 509,647

Mode of Particulars of
disposal buyers
United

Insurance claim

As per Bank
policy
As per Bank
policy

Insurance Co.
Mr. Dilshad Ali
Ahmad

Mzt. Sohail
Ishtiaq Khan

Gross carrying amount of fully depreciated assets that are still in use was Rs. 207.577 million (2019: Rs. 185.471 million).

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At January 1

Cost

Accumulated amortization and impairment
Net book value

Year ended December 31
Opening net book value
Additions:

- developed internally

- directly purchased

Disposals
Amortization chatge
Closing net book value

As December 31
Cost
Accumulated amortization and impairment

Net book value

Rate of amortization (percentage)
Useful life

2020

2019

Computer software |

Rupees in '000
P

32,294 32,068
30,963 29,589
1,331 2,479
1,331 2,479
1,771 226
3,102 2,705
1,346 1,374
1,756 1,331
34,065 32,294
32,309 30,963
1,756 1,331

33.33 33.33

3 years 3 years

Gross carrying amount of fully depreciated intangible assets that are still in use was Rs. 29.610 million (2019: Rs. 28.453

million).
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15.

15.1

15.2

15.3

2020 2019

OTHER ASSETS Note (Rupees in '000)
Income/matk-up accrued in local cutrency - net of provision 15.1 131,142 168,537
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 28,615 29,716
Advance taxation - net 15.2 234,873 200,120
Non banking asset acquired in satisfaction of claims 153 147,066 147,066
Due from benevolent fund- unsecured 5,552 5,412
Receivable from NBP 2,966 1,853
Receivable from subsidiary company - -
Receivable from Equity Participation Fund 1,760 611
Trading right entitlement certificate 21,560 21,560
Receivable from Speedway Fondmetall Pakistan Limited 19,640 19,640
Receivable against factorized portfolio 5,148 5,148
Others 76,731 75,742

675,053 675,405
Less: Provision held against other assets 15.4 117,354 117,109
Other assets (net of provision) 557,699 558,296

The balance has been arrived at after adjusting interest in suspense of Rs. 4,053.680 million (2019: Rs.
4,066.115 million) which includes Rs: 261.192 million (2019: Rs. 273.869 million) relating to SME portfolio.

This includes the effect of refunds aggregating to Rs. 232.599 million (2019: Rs. 232.599 million) due
from government. In respect of tax years 2003 and 2004 the tax authorities disallowed the Bank’s claims
for provisions for bad debts and SBP’s share in profits of the Bank. Subsequently, the Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue (ATIR) through its order dated February 10, 2011 has ruled in favor of the Bank which
results in creation of refunds of Rs. 80.059 million and Rs. 152.54 million for tax years 2003 and 2004
respectively. Thereafter, against the referred judgement of ATIR the tax authorities filed references before
the Islamabad High Court which are pending adjudication to date. The management of the Bank is of the
firm view that the Bank will be successful in the said references.

This include Rs. 138.6 million (2019: Rs. 138.6 million) being the successful bid made by SME Bank for
acquiring Bungalow No. 45, Block-C/3, Gulberg III, Lahore (the Property) mortgaged with the Bank as
a secutity in a defaulted loan and Rs. 8.47 million pertaining stamps/stamps duties for registration of sale
certificate issued by the High Court to SME Bank/Auction Purchaser of the Property. The auction was
carried out on 30 June 2015 and subsequently the Honorable Lahore High Court through its decision
dated 14 July 2015 allowed the Bank to adjust the bid price against its outstanding dues from the borrower
against the finance facilities extended to the borrower, suspended mark-up and cost of funds. Thereafter
the auction was also confirmed by the High Court on April 19, 2016 after hearing objection raised by the
counter party. The sale certificate was issued by the High Court on June 30, 2016 and the same has been
registered with concerned registrar on July 28, 2016. On November 24, 2016, ownership of the Property
in the record of Excise and Taxation Department has been transferred in name of SME Bank Ltd. The
Bank applied for possession of the acquired Property, which has been accepted by the court after hearing
both the parties. The court has repeatedly issued orders to bailiff for taking possession of the Property
to handover the Bank, however, due to non- availability of police force to the bailiff, the possession of
the Property could not be handed over to the Bank. On 24 June 2019 the sponsor of the case was died
and thereafter on 20 August 2019 the legal heirs of the judgement debtor submitted an objection petition
for release of the Property. During argument the request of the legal heirs has been turned down by the
honorable judge as the transaction is past and closed and advised the council to discuss only the issue of
remaining cost of funds. The next date of hearing of the case is fixed on April 04, 2021. As per latest
valuation report dated January 20, 2021, the market value of the Property was Rs. 232.573 million (2019:
Rs. 224.368 million).
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the year ended December 31, 2020

Provision held against other assets

Advances, deposits, advance rent & other prepayments
Receivable from Speedway Fondmetall Pakistan Limited
Receivable against factorized portfolio

Other receivables - SME Portfolio

Legal charges recoverable from borrowers - SBFC & RDFC
Trading right entitlement certificate - TREC

Others

Movement in provision held against other assets
Opening balance

Charge for the year

Reversals for the year

Transferred to NBP
Amount written off
Closing balance

2020 2019

(Rupees in '000)

2,705 2,706
19,640 19,640
5,148 5,148
43,709 43,461
22,659 22,661
21,560 21,560
1,933 1,933
117,354 117,109
117,109 118,800
2,929 3,054
(2,682) (3,040)
247 14
2) -

- (1,705)
117,354 117,109
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16.

17.

17.3

2020 2019
BILLS PAYABLE Note (Rupees in '000)
In Pakistan 99,986 51,543
Outside Pakistan - -
99,986 51,543
BORROWINGS
Secured
Repurchase agreement borrowings
State Bank of Pakistan 17.2 3,941,151 1,137,846
Financial Institutions 17.2 74,596 2,442,609
Long term financial - SMEL 17.3 373 373

4,016,120 3,580,828
Unsecured
Borrowing from State Bank of Pakistan
Financing facility for storage of agricultural produce 17.4 111,866 74,316
4,127,986 3,655,144

Particulars of borrowings with respect to Currencies
In local currency 4,127,986 3,655,144

In foreign currencies - -
4,127,986 3,055,144

These represent transactions with financial institutions for sale of Government Securities under re-purchase agreement
(REPO) in the inter bank money market at mark-up rates ranging from 7.18% to 7.40% (2019: 13.38% to 13.75%) per
annum for period upto one months (2019: upto two months). REPO transactions are secured against investment of the
Bank in Government securities.

This represents balance due against financing facilities amounting to Rs. 0.373 million (2019: Rs. 0.373 million) from
National Energy Conservation Centre (Enercon) by SMEL. The facilities from Enercon have been obtained under an
agreement whereby they have agreed to provide funds to SME Leasing for granting lease / finance facility to its
customers for procuring and using energy efficient equipments. The facility requites sharing of profit @ 5% of the
financing amount on quarterly basis. However, this facility is no more acticve.

This represents financing facility obtained from State Bank of Pakistan under the scheme "Financing Facility For Storage
of Agti Produce (FFSAP). These carry mark up rate's ranging from 2.0% to 3.25% per annum (2019: 2.0% to 3.25% per
annum) and is repayable in quarterly instalments.
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18. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2020 2019
In Local In Foreign Total If1 Local In‘ Foreign Total
Currency Currency Currency Currency
(Rupees in '000)
Customers
Current accounts 1,195,828 - 1,195,828 499,200 - 499,200
Savings deposits 3,357,871 - 3,357,871 3,153,652 - 3,153,652
Term deposits 2,405,940 - 2,405,940 3,207,339 - 3,207,339
Margin accounts 80,594 - 80,594 112,398 - 112,398
7,040,233 - 7,040,233 6,972,589 - 6,972,589
Financial Institutions

Current accounts 24 - 24 24 - 24
Savings deposits 502,005 - 502,005 471,695 - 471,695
Term deposits 60,000 - 60,000 56,400 - 56,400

Margin accounts - - - - - -
562,029 - 562,029 528,119 - 528,119
7,602,262 - 7,602,262 7,500,708 - 7,500,708

2020 2019
18.1  Composition of deposits (Rupees in '000)

Individuals 1,560,869 1,149,907
Government (Federal and Provincial) 956,673 721,679
Public Sector Entities 53,509 46,543

Banking Companies - -
Non-Banking Financial Institutions 562,029 528,119
Private Sector 4,469,182 5,054,460
7,602,262 7,500,708

18.2  Total deposits include eligible deposits of Rs. 2,489.865 million (2019: Rs. 2,349.577 million) as required by the Deposit
Protection Corporation’s (a subsidiary of SBP) Circular No. 4 of 2018 dated June 22, 2018.
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19

20.

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE
2020

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later

than five years

Total minimum lease payments

Financial charges not due yet

Present value of minimum lease payments

OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up/ return/ interest payable in local currency

Unearned commission on guarantees

Accrued expenses
Sundry creditors
Branch adjustment account

Payable against employees' benefit plans

Defined benefit pension
The Bank

Defined benefit funded gratuity scheme

The Bank - funded
SMEL - unfunded

Unfunded compensated absences

The Bank
SMEL

Payable on termination/maturity of lease

Security deposits against lease

Leased liability against right of use assets
Employees' VSS payments withheld

Income tax withheld payable
Others

2019

Minimum lease Present value

Minimum lease

Present value

(Rupees in '000)

4,201 2,914 4,392 2,489
8,392 7,214 13,184 10,506
12,593 10,128 17,576 12,995
(2,465) - (4,581) -
10,128 10,128 12,995 12,995
2020 2019
Note (Rupees in '000)
108,833 218,846
2,799 1,875
10,875 13,026
20.1 161,781 172,041
1,386 586
37.7 337,993 370,155
37.7 4,833 14,172
37.17 9,165 7,623
37.7 68,328 95,297
2,960 2,501
2,132 1,323
201,466 224,043
20.2 551,206 551,751
12,603 12,603
19,603 19,311
3,923 3975
1,499,886 1,709,128

20.1 This include Rs. 90.615 million (2019: Rs. 90.615 million) payable to SBP/MoF representing the leftover funds after
settlement of VSS-2009 payments and amount of stale bills payable Rs. 59.287 million (2019: Rs. 72.847 million).

20.2

This represents lease liability under IFRS 16 :

Opening net book value
- Additions

- Interest

- Payment

Closing net book value

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - SMEL

Closing net book value

Note

19

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
538,756 540,961
11,525 -
69,451 67,337
(78,654) (69,542)
541,078 538,756
10,128 12,995
551,206 551,751
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21. SHARE CAPITAL
21.1 Authorized Capital

2020 2019 2020 2019
Number of Shates (Rupees in '000)
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000  Otdinary shares of Rs. 10 each 10,000,000 10,000,000
21.2  Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
2020 2019 Ordinary shares 2020 2019
Number of Shares (Rupees in '000)
152,853,153 152,853,153  Fully paid in cash 1,528,532 1,528,532
50,000,000 50,000,000 Issued as bonus shares 500,000 500,000
36,397,547 36,397,547 Issued for consideration other than cash 363,975 363,975
239,250,700 239,250,700 2,392,507 2,392,507
Number of
21.3 Break-up of share capital is as follows: shares %
Federal Government 224,615,978 93.89 2,246,160 2,246,160
National Bank of Pakistan 6,121,095 2.56 61,211 61,211
United Bank Limited 3,975,003 1.66 39,750 39,750
Habib Bank Limited 1,987,501 0.83 19,875 19,875
MCB Bank Limited 1,490,619 0.62 14,906 14,906
Allied Bank Limited 774,351 0.32 7,744 7,744
Industrial Development Bank Limited 286,146 0.12 2,861 2,861
Directors 7 - - -
239,250,700 100 2,392,507 2,392,507
22. SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS 2020 2019

Note
Surplus/ (deficit) on revaluation of
Available-for-sale securities
- Federal Government securities 10.1

- Listed companies/mutual funds

Deferred tax on surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of available-for-sale securities
- Federal Government securities
- Listed companies/mutual funds

(Rupees in '000)

750 (301,559)
3,228 1,912
3,978 (299,647)
(263) .
(1,129) (669)
2,586 (300,316)

Annual Report 2020 164




SME Bank 1

smallbusiness - Big opportunities

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020

23.

NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST- (NCI)

The following table summarizes the information relating to the subsidiary (SME Leasing) having the NCIL.

SME Leasing Limited

NCI percentage

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and bank balances

Advances

Prepayments and other receivables
Accrued interest on loans

Current maturity of non-current assets

Non-current assets

Long term finances and loans

Net investment in finance leases
Long term deposits and prepayments
Fixed assets

Right of use assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Mark-up accrued on borrowings

Short term borrowings

Current maturity of non-current liabilities

Provision for compensated absences

Current maturities of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Provision for taxation - net

Non-current liabilities

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Long term deposits

Defined benefit obligations

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Carrying amount of NCI

2020 2019
26.859% 26.859%
2020 2019

Rupees in '000
p

1,626 788
5,007 3,370
846 904
651 47
150,082 163,025
158,212 168,134
47,709 58,604
187,152 237,196
871 1,162
3,904 4,510
7,770 12,054
247,406 313,586
405,618 481,720
5,040 4,870
- 20
4,211 2,143
144,790 142,156
57,382 60,591
2,960 2,501
2,914 2,489
8,204 8,168
225,501 222,938
7,214 10,506
144,178 163,545
9,165 7,623
160,557 181,674
386,058 404,612
19,560 77,108
11,165 26,621
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2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)

Revenue 21,955 26,578
Loss for the year (57,677) (35,694)
Other comprehensive income 129 1,120
Total comprehensive income (57,548) (34,574)
Loss attributable to NCI (15,491) (9,587)
Other comprehensive income allocated to NCI 35 301
Cash flows from operating activities 297 (1,834)
Cash flows from investment activities 1,620 (270)
Cash flows from financing activities, before dividends to NCI (3,713) (3,839)
Cash flows from financing activities-cash dividends to NCI - -
Net (dectease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,796) (5,943)

SME Leasing Limited has its principal place of business in Pakistan.
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2020 2019
24. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS Note (Rupees in '000)
- Guarantees 24.1 229,498 261,582
- Commitments 242 4,278,596 3,842,670
- Other contingent liabilities 24.3 1,192,987 1,157,757
5,701,081 5,262,009
241 Guarantees
Financial guarantees - -
Performance guarantees 24.1.1 229,498 261,582
Other guarantees - -
229,498 261,582
24.1.1  This include expired letter of guarantees/performance aggregating to Rs. 69.690 million (2019: Rs. 34.142 million) for
which formalities for return of original documents are in process.
2020 2019
Note (Rupees in '000)
24.2 Commitments
Commitments in respect of:
- forward government securities transactions 24.2.1 4,017,519 3,560,826
- forward lending 24.2.2 259,813 280,608
Commitments for acquisition of:
- operating fixed assets 1,264 987
- intangible assets - 249
Other commitments 2423 - -
4,278,596 3,842,670
24.2.1  Commitments in respect of forward government securities transactions
Sale and repurchase agreements 4,017,519 3,560,826
24.2.2 Commitments in respect of forward lending
Undrawn facilities 202,613 174,708
Commitments to extend credit 57,200 105,900
259,813 280,608
24.2.3  Other commitments
Bills for collection
Payable in Pakistan - -
24.3 Other contingent liabilities 1,192,987 1,157,757
a) Claims not acknowledged as debt from vatious borrowers of defunct
RDFC. 53,686 53,686
b) Tax demands of Rs. 612.707 million raised by the Income Tax Authorities
related to VSS staff cost (tax year-2005) which has been decided in favor of
the Bank. However tax authorities have filed appeal before ATIR against
the decision of the Commissioner Income Tax (Appeals) which is pending
adjudication. The management of the Bank strongly believes and expects
favorable outcome and therefore no provision has been made for these
effect in the consolidated financial statements. 612,707 612,707
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d)

©)

g)

h)
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The Bank and the income tax department have filed cross appeals against
the appellate order of the Commissioner (Appeals), who had partly set aside
the order of the taxation officer, resulting in taxable income of Rs. 151.234
million and tax liability of Rs. 52.932 (payable amounting Rs. 6.163 million
after adjustment of credit for taxes paid/ suffered at source amounting Rs.
46.768 million) against the declared tax loss of Rs. 23,489 thousand and tax
liability of Rs. 4.249 million for the tax year 2008. Without prejudice to the
appeal, the Bank has offered adjustment of said demand against refunds
available for tax year 2009. However no provision has been made in these
consolidated financial statements as the management is confident of a
favorable outcome.

DCIR raised tax demand for the tax year 2010 for Rs. 211.716 million
which was again amended to Rs.198, 528,541/~ vide Order # 11/40 dated
22-May-2013 u/s 221, stay against from Islamabad High Court was
obtained and also appeal was filed with CIRA-II who partly accepted the
Bank's plea in the case and remanded it back to DCIR for vetification of
evidences and opportunity of hearing the Bank for certain issues vide his
order in Appeal # 968/2013 dated 07-Jan-2014. Parallel to that Bank has
filed 2nd appeal in ATIR on 27-Feb-2014 and rectification application was
also submitted with CIRA on 24-Feb-2014 no decision has been made yet.
The tax department has also filed an appeal with the ATIR through
Commissioner (Legal) vide their letter # 249 dated 7-Mar-2014. Based on
the facts revealed by the consultants vide letter # IT/1156/2015 dated
March 03, 2015, the management strongly believes for favorable outcome in
the case and therefore no provison in this respect has been recorded in
these consolidated financial statments.

The taxation officer created aggregate demand of Rs.53.674 million for
withheld amount of Rs.17.598 million from VSS payment of employees for
the Tax Years 2003-2004 -2005-2006-2008-2009-2010-2011-2013 which was
not deposited upon advice of the legal advisor due to stay order of Supreme
Court of Pakistan. The case is pending before Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue and the provision of default surcharge Rs. 36.076 million was not
made ipso facto.

The Officer Inland Revenue, LTU, Islamabad created demand for Rs.
21.171 million for tax year 2016 under section 161/205 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. After rejection of the first appeal by CIRA the Bank has
submitted second appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue along
with stay application to keep the recovery proceedings in abeyance. The
referred second appeal has not yet been fixed for hearing.

The Officer Inland Revenue, LTU, Islamabad issued an order u/s 161/205
for the tax year 2013. The Bank filed an appeal before the Commissioner
(Appeals), who has remanded the case back to assessing officer, notice to
fresh proceeding have been replied no further action on the response.

The Officer Inland Revenue, I.TU, Islamabad issued an order u/s 161/205
for the tax year 2017 without serving proper notices. An appeal against this
impugned order has been filed before the Commissioner (Appeals), which
is pending for fixation. Without prejudice, the tax department has been
requested to adjust the tax demand with the available income tax refunds.

2020 2019

Rupees in '000
p

6,163

198,529

36,076

21,171

18,663

38,723

6,163

198,529

36,076

21,171

18,663

38,723
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k)

The Officer Inland Revenue, LTU, Islamabad made an assessment for the
year 2001-2002 vide order dated June 20, 2005 of Rs. 590.667 million and a
tax demand of Rs. 118.721 million which was contested in ATIR which
otdered the appeal in Bank's favor vide Order no. ITA No.857/1B/2006
dated April 05, 2007. Tax department has filed income tax reference with
the Islamabad High Court having no. I.T.R. 48 of 2007.

Back benefits and claims of staff/employees under litigation.

Sales Demands of Rs. 0.791 million and Rs. 17.098 million wete created for
the year 2008 & 2010 respectively during proceedings of sales audit. Against
the said demands advance payments of Rs. 0.299 million and Rs. 3.743
million respectively were made to avail stay against recovery of entire
amount. Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue has remanded both cases back
to the Commissioner for fresh proceedings, which have not been initiated
yet. Furthermore, sales demands amounting Rs. 1.708 million & Rs. 1.045
million were created for the year 2009 and 2012 respectively during
proceedings of sales audit. Against the said demands advance payments of
Rs. 0.577 million & Rs.1.045 million respectively were made to avail stay
against recovery of entire amount. Both appeals are pending before
Appellate  Tribunal Inland Revenue for fixation of hearing. The
management strongly believes for favorable outcome in the said cases.

2020

2019

(Rupees in '000)

118,721 118,721
67,550 32,320
20,998 20,998
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25. MARK-UP/ RETURN/ INTEREST EARNED

On loans and advances to customers
On investment in finance lease to customers

Employees

On investments in

Available for sale securities
Held to maturity securities

On deposits with financial institutions

On securities purchased under resale agreements
On clean lending

On call money lending

26. MARK-UP/ RETURN/ INTEREST EXPENSED

On deposits

On securities sold under repurchase agreements
On SBP Refinance Scheme

Brokerage and commission

Bank charges

27. FEE & COMMISSION INCOME

Branch banking customer fees
Card related fees

Credit related fees
Commission on guarantees
Commission on remittances
Others

28. GAIN / (LOSS) ON SECURITIES

Realised
Unrealised - held for trading

28.1  Federal government securities - net
Shates

29. OTHER INCOME

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets - net
Fee on fund managed by the Bank -EPF
Claim against stolen vehicle

Others

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)

253,111 296,505
17,777 19,634
270,888 316,139
3,608 4,003
274,496 320,142
460,667 454,326
4,293 3,595
464,960 457,921
295 405
- 91
376 113
916 3789
741,043 782,461
632,225 596,499
372,606 550,778
2,023 1,029
1,566 1,081
422 254
1,008,842 1,149,641
3,002 2,155
435 431
2,403 2,709
4,995 4526
59 95
20 17
10,914 9,933
815 7
815 7
815 7
815 7

289 -
974 974

610 -
8 26
1,881 1,000
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2020 2019
30. OPERATING EXPENSES Note (Rupees in '000)

Total compensation expense 30.1 661,840 692,552
Property expense
Rent & taxes 4,820 8,060
Insurance 2,384 2,311
Utilities cost 21,198 22,884
Security (including guards) 16,124 15,480
Repair & maintenance 6,898 6,428
Depreciation 57,958 56,650
Others - -

109,382 111,813
Information technology expenses
Software maintenance 4,797 4,737
Hardware maintenance 1,668 1,953
Depreciation 4,946 5,140
Amorttization 1,346 1,374
Network charges 13,463 14,253
Others 309 833

26,529 28,290
Other operating expenses
Directors' fees, allowances and other expenses 3,174 660
Legal and professional charges 7,441 7,486
Outsourced setvices costs 30.2 26,589 26,630
Travelling and conveyance 2,388 6,699
NIFT clearing charges 2,049 1,837
Depreciation 13,121 12,337
Training & development 1,194 2,287
Postage & courier charges 801 937
Communications 4,492 4,755
Stationery and printing 5,043 5,876
Marketing, advertisement & publicity 1,260 1,476
Donations - -
Auditors' remuneration 30.3 1,980 1,578
Vehicle running and maintenance 3,945 4,986
Entertainment 2,522 2,699
Subscription, books and newspapers 3,568 3,022
Deposits premium 2,713 3,617
Loss on sale of operating fixed assets - net - 29
Others 950 1,860
83,230 88,771
880,981 921,426
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30.1

30.2

30.3

31.

32.
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Total compensation expense

Managerial Remuneration
- Fixed
- Variable
Cash award
Charge for defined benefit plans
- pension fund and gratuity
- funded gratuity scheme
- unfunded gratuity scheme - SMEL
- funded staff provident fund - SMEL
- unfunded compensated absences
Contribution to defined contribution plan - benevolent fund
Rent & house maintenance
Utilities
Medical
Conveyance
Telephone
Uniform allowance
Child education allowance
Group insurance
Overtime
Adhoc relief
Leave absence
Leave fare assistance
Rental in lieu of vehicle
Reimbursement of vehicle running & maintenance
Staff welfare benefits

2020 2019
Note (Rupees in '000)

305,439 293,255
298 165
37.7 100,775 115,434
37.7 11,389 10,541
1,722 2,433
776 730
37.7 (25,528) 15,050
256 429
101,517 95,678
31,297 29,079
42,389 39,711
14,909 14,035
4,232 3,974
1,133 1,167
7,326 7,240
1,202 1,215
1,302 1,442
2,163 1,221
8,322 7,276
13,615 14,226
6,272 6,538
27,714 30,622
3,320 1,091
661,840 692,552

Total cost for the year included in other operating expenses relating to outsourced activities is Rs 26.589 million (2019: Rs

26.630 million) related to companies incorporated in Pakistan. Material outsourcing arrangements include the services of

messengers, drivers and electronic financial transaction (EFT).

Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee

Fee for other statutory certifications
Fee for audit of employees funds
Special review

Out-of-pocket expenses

OTHER CHARGES

Penalties imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan
Right of use assets - unwinding of present value

PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS - NET

Provisions against lending to financial institutions

Provisions/ (teversal of provision) for diminution in value of investment
Provisions/ (reversal of provision) against loans & advances

Other provisions / written off directly against other assets

Bad debts written off directly

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
1,213 1,178
228 222
24 24
340 -
175 154
1,980 1,578
108 2,089
71,287 69,374
71,395 71,463
- (20,000)
(712) (4,103)
247 14
(465) (24,089)
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33.

331

33.2

33.3

33.4

34.

35.

TAXATION 2020 2019
Note (Rupees in '000)
Current 33.2 11,948 11,595
Prior years 33.3 (43,898) -
Deferred (137,680) (226,385)
(169,630) (214,790)

Relationship between tax expense and accounting loss

Loss before tax (1,204,471) (1,322,793)
Applicable tax rate 35% 35%
(Rupees in '000)

Tax on loss (421,565) (462,978)
Deferred tax asset recognized during the year (137,680) (226,385)
Tax effect of income taxed at lower rate 36 28
Minimum tax 11,912 11,567
Other permanent differences 377,667 462,978

(169,630) (214,790)

Provision for current year tax expense is charged on minimum tax rate of 1.50% of the turnover due to tax losses of the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2020.

This represents the effect which reconciles the balance of advance tax with the tax position of the Bank as per tax returns
and assessment orders pertaining to assessment yeats/ tax years 2001-2020.

Current status of tax assessments

The income tax assessments of the SME Leasing (SMEL) for tax year 2012 has been selected for tax audit u/s 214 C of
Income tax ordinance 2001.

In respect of Tax year 2012, the tax authorities have served order under section 122(1) read with section 177(1) and 214C of
the Income Tax Otrdinance, 2001 disallowing expenses relating to depreciation allowance, markup on loan to employees
and financial cost and creating tax demand of Rs. 3.8 million. SMEL filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland
Revenue (Appeals-1I) against the said order who decided all the issues in favor of the SMEL except for initial allowance on
leased asset. SMEL has filed second appeal and the appeal has not yet been fixed for hearing.

In respect of minimum tax for the year ended December 31, 2015, the tax authorities have served order under section 124
of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for additional amount of minimum tax of Rs. 0.14 million payable due to restatement of
turnover of SMEL. SMEL has filed application for rectification in the order on the issue of incorrect value of turnover for
the purpose of charging minimum tax under section 113 and tax credit not allowed. No action has been taken by the tax

officer yet.

BASIC/ DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 2020 2019
Note (Rupees in '000)
Net loss after tax for the year (1,019,350) (1,098,416)
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 239,250,700 239,250,700
(Rupees)
Basic/ diluted loss per share (4.26) (4.59)

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earning per share of the Bank.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
Cash and balances with treasury banks 8 668,793 650,638
Balances with other banks 9 3,683 5,252
672,476 655,890
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36. STAFF STRENGTH

Permanent

On contract
Average number of employees
Permanent

On contract

36.1 In addition to the above, 109 (2019

2020 2019
(Numbers)
163 170
228 235
391 405
167 173
232 229
399 402

: 107) employees of outsourcing services companies were assigned to the Bank.
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37.17 DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS-SMEL
The Company operates an unapproved and unfunded gratuity scheme for all of its permanent employees. Number of
employees covered under the scheme are 27 (2019: 28).
Principal actuarial assumptions

The latest actuarial valuation of the gratuity scheme was carried out on December 31, 2020 by Nauman Associates using
the Projected Unit Credit Method. The following significant assumptions wete used for valuation of the scheme:

2020 2019
Valuation discount rate 11.25% 11.25%
Expected long term rate of increase in salary level 11.25% 11.25%
2020 2019

37.17.1 Liability in statement of financial position Note (Rupees in '000)

Present value of defined benefit obligation 37.17.2 9,165 7,624
37.17.2 Movement in liability during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year 7,624 9,091

Charged to statement of profit or loss account 1,723 2,433

Remeasurements chargeable in other comprehensive income

37.175 (129) (1,120)

Benefits paid during the year (52) (2,780)

Balance at the end of the year 9,165 7,624
37.17.3 Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligations

Present value of obligations at beginning of the year 8 9,091

Current service cost 868 1,413

Interest cost 855 1,020

Past service cost - -

Benefits paid during the year (52) (2,780)

Remeasurements (gain) / losses chargeable in other comprehensive

) (129) (1,120)

income

Present value of obligations at the end of the year 9,165 7,624
37.17.4 Charged to statement of profit or loss account

Current services cost 868 1,413

Past service cost - -

Interest cost 855 1,020

1,723 2,433

37.17.5 Remeasurements (gain) / losses chargeable in other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation (20) (23)

Experience adjustment (109) (1,097)

Total re-measurements recognized in other comprehensive income (129) (1,120)
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37.17.6 Sensitivity analysis
Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying one assumption keeping all other assumptions constant and
calculating the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations under the employee benefit schemes. The
increase / (dectease) in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change in each assumption is

summatized below:

Discount rate effect (Rupees in '000) Rate effect
Original liability 9,165 11.25%
1% increase 10,082 12.25%
1% decrease 8,249 10.25%
Salary increase rate effect (Rupees in '000) Rate effect
Original liability 9,165 11.25%
1% increase 10,082 12.25%
1% decrease 9,073 10.25%

The sensitivity analysis prepared presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the

assumptions may be correlated.

2020 2019

37.17.7 Maturity profile
The weighted average duration of the obligation (in years) 10 10
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39. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
39.1 Total Compensation Expense

2020 2019
Non: President / . Noni President / .
Items Executives Executives | Executives , Executives
. CEO . CEO
Directots Directors
(Rupees '000)
Fees and allowances etc. 1,995 - - 660 - -
Managerial remuneration
i) Fixed - 5,465 120,217 - 2,444 110,782
ii) Total variable - - - - - -
Charge for defined benefit plan - 1,456 43,644 - 1,764 45,582
Rent & house maintenance - 4,049 35,437 - 1,344 31,891
Utilities - 1,247 11,937 - 244 10,710
Medical - 726 12,716 - 367 10,662
Conveyance - - 789 - - 566
Motor car running & maintenance - - 26,717 - 500 26,265
Others 1,179 1,193 25,075 - 731 23,654
Total 3,174 14,136 276,532 660 7,394 260,112
Number of Persons 12 1 74 6 1 69

Executives mean employees, other than the chief executive and directors, whose basic salary exceeds twelve hundred

thousand rupees in a financial year.

39.2 Remuneration paid to directors for participation in board and committee meetings of the Bank

2020
Meeting fees and allowances paid
For board committees
:I:)'. Name of Director For Board Board Risk Human Board
Meetings Audit Management| Resource | Procutrement Total
Committee | Committee |[Committee | Committee
(Rupees '000)
1 |Mt. Niaz Muhammad Khan 175 55 40 25 - 295
2 [Mr. Muhammad Waqas 150 - 25 - 25 200
3 |Mr. Rauf Ahmad 175 - - 40 40 255
4 [Mt. Enamullah Khan 150 55 - 90 - 295
5 |Mr. Hashim Raza 175 - 40 - 40 255
6 [Mr. Omar Farooq 125 55 - - - 180
Total amount paid 950 165 105 155 105 1,480
2019
Meeting fees and allowances paid
For board committees
Sr. Name of Director For Board . Risk Human Board
No. . Board Audit .
Meetings . Management | Resource | Remuneration Total
Committee . . .
Committee | Committee | Committee
(Rupees '000)
Due to absence of board no
1 meetings of the board and i ) ) i ) )
its committees held during
the current year.
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Remuneration paid to directors for participation in board and committee meetings of the SMEL

2020
Meeting fees and allowances paid
For board committees
St. Name of director For board Risk Human Board
no. . Board audit .
meetings i management | tresource |remuneration Total
committee committee | committee [ committee
(Rupees in '000)
1 |Mzt. Dilshad Ali Ahmad 75 - - 10 - 85
2 |Mrt. Mubeen Mufti 75 30 - - - 105
3 |Mst Sameena Gul 25 - - - - 25
4 |Mr. Bilal Mustafa 75 - 10 10 - 95
5 [Mt. Javed Mehmood 75 30 10 - - 115
6 |Mst. Darakshan S. Vohra 50 20 10 10 - 90
Total amount paid 375 80 30 30 - 515
2019
Meeting fees and allowances paid
For board committees
St Name of director For board . Risk Human Board
no. . Board audit .
meetings committee manage@ent resou.rce remunefanon Total
committee committee committee
(Rupees in '000)
1 |Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad 100 - 10 10 - 120
2 |Muhammad Farrukh 100 40 - - - 140
Mansoor Malik
3 |Mzr. Bilal Mustafa 100 - 10 10 - 120
Mt. Abdul Waseem 25 10 - - - 35
5 [Mst. Darakshan S. Vohra 100 30 - 10 - 140
6 |Mr. Mubeen Mufti 75 30 - - - 105
Total amount paid 500 110 20 30 - 660

39.3 The President/CEO and certain executives were also provided with free use of Group's owned and maintained cars in
accordance with their terms of employment.
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41. SEGMENT INFORMATION
41.1 Segment details with respect to Business Activities

The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follows:

December 31, 2020
Trading & Commercial Other leasing Total
Sales Banking operations
(Rupees in '000)
Profit & Loss
Net mark-up/return/profit 466,252 253,141 21,650 741,043
Inter segment revenue - net - 256,154 - 256,154
Non mark-up/return/intetest income 2,444 12,490 305 15,239
Total income 468,696 521,785 21,955 1,012,436
Segment direct expenses 394,016 1,521,505 45,697 1,961,218
Inter segment expenses allocation 256,154 - 256,154
Total expenses 650,170 1,521,505 45,697 2,217,372
Provisions - (14,521) 14,056 (465)
Loss before tax (181,474) (985,199) (37,798) (1,204,471)
Trading & Commercial ~ Other leasing Total
Sales Banking operations
(Rupees in '000)

Balance Sheet
Cash & Bank balances 378,678 292,172 1,626 672,476
Investments 5,747,605 - 5,747,605
Net inter segment lending 2,307,691 2,307,691
Lending to financial institutions - - -
Advances - Performing - 1,245,062 281,211 1,526,273

- Non-petforming - 140,535 103,732 244,267
Others 764,707 1,142,676 10,845 1,918,228
Total Assets 6,890,990 5,128,136 397,414 12,416,540
Borrowings 4,015,747 111,866 373 4,127,986
Deposits & other accounts - 7,602,262 - 7,602,262
Net inter segment borrowing 2,307,691 - - 2,307,691
Others 367,719 1,003,576 228,577 1,599,872
Total Liabilities 6,691,157 8,717,704 228,950 15,637,811
Equity 199,833 (3,589,568) 168,464 (3,221,271)
Total Equity & liabilities 6,890,990 5,128,136 397,414 12,416,540
Contingencies & Commitments 4,017,519 1,683,562 - 5,701,081
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Profit & Loss

Net mark-up/return/profit

Inter segment revenue - net

Non mark-up/return/interest income
Total income

Segment direct expenses

Inter segment expenses allocation
Total expenses

Provisions

Loss before tax

Balance Sheet

Cash & Bank balances
Investments
Net inter segment lending
Lending to financial institutions
Advances - Performing

- Non-performing
Others
Total Assets

Borrowings

Deposits & other accounts

Net inter segment borrowing
Others

Total Liabilities

Equity

Total Equity & liabilities
Contingencies & Commitments

Assumptions used:

December 31, 2019

Trading & Commercial Other leasing Total
Sales Banking operations
(Rupees in '000)

461,914 293,992 26,555 782,461

- 237,196 - 237,196

2,254 10,913 20 13,187
464,168 542,101 26,575 1,032,844
571,657 1,524,583 46,290 2,142,530
237,196 - - 237,196
808,853 1,524,583 46,290 2,379,726
(20,000) 642 (4,731) (24,089)
(324,685) (983,124) (14,984 (1,322,793)

Trading & Commércial Other le:asing Total
Sales Banking operations
(Rupees in '000)

432,679 222,423 788 655,890
5,659,227 - - 5,659,227
3,182,440 - 3,182,440

- 1,627,750 334,205 1,961,955

- 138,089 124,680 262,769
663,285 1,183,432 13,880 1,860,597
6,755,191 6,354,134 473,553 13,582,878
3,580,455 74,316 373 3,655,144
- 7,500,708 - 7,500,708
3,182,440 - - 3,182,440
415,993 1,092,974 251,704 1,760,671
7,178,888 8,667,998 252,077 16,098,963
(423,697) (2,313,864 221,476 (2,516,085)
6,755,191 0,354,134 473,553 13,582,878
3,560,826 1,680,185 - 5,241,011

- Unallocatable assets representing 7.25% (December 31, 2019:

segments based on their respective incomes.

- Unallocatable liabilities representing 5.94% (December 31, 2019

segments based on their respective incomes.

41.2 Segment details with respect to geographical locations

Presently the Group does not deal outside Pakistan.

6.03%) of the gross assets have been allocated to

: 6.93%) of the gross liabilities have been allocated to
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The risk weighted assets to capital ratio, calculated in accordance with the State Bank's guidelines on capital adequacy is as

follows:
2020 2019
Regulatory capital base (Rupees in '000)
Tier I capital
Shareholders capital/assigned capital 2,392,507 2,392,507
Reserves 234,660 234,660
Non-controlling interest 11,165 26,621
Unapproptiated/untemitted profits (net of losses) (5,862,189) (4,869,557)
(3,223,857) (2,215,769)
Less: Adjustments
Goodwill/intangible Assets 1,756 1,331
Investment in equity of subsidiary - -
Deficit on revaluation of available for sale investments - 300,316
1,756 301,647
Total tier I capital (3,225,613) (2,517,416)
Tier II capital 8,593 8
Eligible tier 111 capital - -
Total regulatory capital (3,217,020) (2,517,408)
Risk-weighted exposures 2020 2019
Book value Risk adjusted Book value Risk adjusted
value value
Credit risk (Rupees in '000)
Balance sheet items:
Cash and other liquid assets 672,476 737 655,890 1,050
Investments/ lending to financial institutions 5,747,605 66,870 5,659,227 65,554
Loans and advances 1,770,540 1,061,323 2,224 724 1,347,509
Fixed assets 483,858 483,858 548,676 548,676
Deferred tax assets 874,915 874,915 752,294 752,294
Other assets 557,699 274,926 558,296 281,704
10,107,093 2,762,629 10,399,107 2,996,787
Off balance sheet items
Weighted Non-funded exposures 191,773 95,887 206,700 103,350
191,773 95,887 206,700 103,350
Credit risk-weighted exposures 10,298,866 2,858,516 10,605,807 3,100,137
Market risk 310,065 728,771
Market risk-weighted exposures - 310,065 - 728,771
Total risk-weighted exposures 3,168,581 3,828,908
Capital adequacy ratio credit risk[ (a) / (b) x 100 ] -112.54% _81.20%
Total Capital adequacy ratio | (a) / (c) x 100 ] -101.53% ~65.75%

State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has granted exemption to the Bank vide letter No. BSD/SU-21/220/1624/2007 dated June 08,
2007 from computing capital adequacy ratio under BASEL II till restructuring/privatization and has granted exemption from
implementation of Basel III  Capital Instructions tll restructuring/privatization vide SBP letter #
BPRD/BA&CPD/646/000886/16 dated January 12, 2016. Accordingly, the Bank computes capital adequacy ratio under
BASEL I and SBP has allowed exemption in meeting the minimum CAR requirements of 10% till December 31, 2019 or
completion of restructuring/  privatizaton of the Bank, whichever is earlier vide SBP letter No.
BPRD/BA&CPD/646/332/20 dated January 6, 2020.
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44. RISK MANAGEMENT
44.1 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter parties failed
completely to perform as contracted. The Group is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk. Written procedures
for credit and risk management functions have been developed and implemented. Credit evaluation system comprise of
well designed loan approval and review responsibilities and it is ensured that Bank's credit-granting activities conform to
the established strategy, prudential regulations and SBP instructions are strictly followed. To ensure that credit granting
activities are adequately diversified, besides fixing limits on individual credit, it is ascertained that there is no
concentration in a particular industry or economic sector, geographical region and specific product. Special attention is
placed on such non-performing loans and a Special Assets Management Division follows up and recovers all such loans.

44.1.1 Advances
Credit risk by industry sector

Gross Advances Non-performing advances Provision held
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
Chemical and pharmaceuticals 148,669 179,898 107,471 105,771 103,717 101,354
Agriculture, forestry,
hunting and fishing 233,526 233,782 202,883 203,002 202,883 203,002
Mining & quarrying 9,053 9,053 9,053 9,053 9,053 9,053
Textile 419,179 426,831 355,498 352,142 350,715 342,930
Cement - - - - - -
Footwear and leather garments 83,065 79,332 74,239 71,503 62,113 60,344
Automobile and transportation
equipment 140,009 149,469 85,817 72,397 69,252 65,546
Financial 39,596 47,786 - - - -
Insurance - -
Electronics and electrical
appliances 51,819 54,999 13,693 15,307 10,484 10,582
Construction 217,100 311,340 74,956 70,079 69,930 69,975
Power (clectricity), gas, water
and sanitary 61,804 76,089 6,775 7,255 3,606 3,956
Wholesale and trade 1,718,561 1,820,807 1,523,227 1,530,671 1,489,957 1,490,818
Transport, storage, and
communication 107,028 105,819 24,920 25,164 8,761 4,351
Individuals 1,117,892 1,136,643 1,050,826 1,050,840 1,050,826 1,050,840
Services 453,266 547,418 236,291 240,299 156,508 157,022
Government - -
Others 2,371,193 2,448,362 1,871,245 1,912,182 1,804,822 1,833,123

7,171,760 7,627,628 5,636,894 5,005,665 5,392,627 5,402,896

44.1.2 Segment by sector

Public/ Government - - - - - -
Private 7,171,760 7,627,628 5,636,894 5,665,665 5,392,627 5,402,896
7,171,760 7,627,628 5,636,894 5,665,605 5,392,627  5402,896
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44.1.3

44.1.4

Contingencies and Commitments

Credit risk by industry sector 2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
Chemical and pharmaceuticals 137 379
Agriculture, forestry, hunting and fishing 73 4
Mining & quarrying - -
Textile 4,968 6,556
Cement - -
Sugar - -
Footwear and leather garments - -
Automobile and transportation equipment 20,767 10,002
Financial 4,041,976 3,568,670
Insurance - -
Electronics and electrical appliances 7,386 7,253
Construction 232,467 266,385
Power (electricity), gas, water and sanitary 24,200 25,403
Wholesale and trade 60,943 89,761
Exports/ Imports - -
Transport, storage and communication - 18,000
Individuals 67,550 34,620
Services 71,955 11,294
Government 1,071,751 1,071,751
Others 96,908 151,931
5,701,081 5,262,009

Credit risk by public/private sector

Public/ Government 1,071,751 1,071,751
Private 4,629,330 4,190,258
5,701,081 5,262,009

Concentration of Advances

The bank top 10 exposures on the basis of total (funded and non-funded expsoures) aggregated to Rs. 681.998 million
(2019: Rs. 795.836 million) are as following

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
Funded 526,337 618,945
Non funded 155,661 176,891
Total Exposure 681,998 795,836

The sanctioned limits against these top 10 expsoures aggregated to Rs 833.938 million (2019: Rs. 901.404 million)

Total funded classified therein 2020 2019

Amount Provision Amount Provision held
held

(Rupees in '000)
OAEM - - - -
Substandard - - - -
Doubtful - - - -

Loss - - - -

Total - - - -
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44.1.6 IMPACT OF COVID- 19

The Bank

The outbreak of coronavirus has severely affected national and global economies. Vatious businesses are
facing different issues with a certain degree of losses. Particularly, businesses are facing problems such
as a decrease in demand, supply chain disruptions, raw material shortage, and transportation disruptions,
among others. Regulators and governments across the globe have introduced fiscal and economic stimulus
measures to mitigate Covid-19 impact.

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has responded to the crisis by cutting the policy rate by 625 basis points
to 7 percent and by introducing regulatory measures to maintain banking system soundness and to sustain
economic activity. These include (i) reducing the capital conservation buffer by 100 basis points to 1.5
percent; (ii) increasing the regulatory limit for retail asset classification by 44 percent to Rs.180 million,
thus resulting in reduced risk weighted assets; (iii) relaxing the debt burden ratio for consumer loans from
50 percent to 60 percent; (iv) allowing banks to defer clients’ payment of principal on loan obligations
by one year; (v) relaxing regulatory critetia for restructured/rescheduled loans for borrowers who require
relief beyond the extension of principal repayment for one year ; and(vi) control unemployment, offered
refinance facilities to customers for meeting their salary expense. COVID 19 has also impacted the banks
in Pakistan from vatious facets which include increase in credit risk pertaining to loans and advances
portfolio, reduced fee income due to slowdown in economic activity, operational issues such as operations
of branches and managing investment banking activities including arrangement of syndicate loans, debt
and capital advisory services etc.

As the current economic crisis unfolds against the backdrop of a public health emergency, the disruption
to economic activity put strain on the solvency of customers and certain distressed customers sought help
for financial hardships. Around 95 Covid affected borrowers of the Bank have availed the SBP enabled
deferment/restructuring and rescheduling relief. The full potential effect of the economic stress is difficult
to predict given the uncertain economic environment, however, the management of the Bank is closely
monitoring the performance of its borrowers specially those how availed the SBP enabled deferment
facility. In view of above the Bank has also increased its vigilance in respect of its credit review procedures.
Given the uncertainty that may prevail until the pandemic is over the management of the Bank believes that
it is prudent to maintain a general provision at the rate of 4.5% (approximately) in respect of borrowers
who have availed the SBP enabled packages. Had this additional provision of Rs.8.582 million not been
made, advances and the loss after tax for year ended would have been higher by Rs. 8.582 million and Rs.
5.57 million respectively.

SME Leasing

Financial relief offered by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) to the customers of financial institutions
governed by it, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its Circular (the Circular)
dated March 31, 2020 allowed NBFCs to defer customers’ principal repayments on their finance obligations
by up to one year along with relaxing other regulatory criteria related to testructuting / rescheduling of
financing limits. As per the Circular, the customers were required to apply by June 30, 2020 to avail the
deferment. SECP subsequently extended the deadline for application till September 30, 2020.

The Company has processed all the eligible deferment requests received and agreed with its customers. The
management of the Company has approved a total of 8 customers availing finance lease arrangements with
aggregate balance of Rs. 43.48 million as per the treatment prescribed in the Circular. All necessary legal
and procedural arrangements were executed to ensure the timely processing of eligible deferment requests.
Furthermore, the recovery status and credit risk of financing exposures under both regular and deferred
arrangements are being closely monitored amid changing economic and overall situation in the country due
to COVID-19.
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45. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Bank on March 06, 2021.

Cm%- s 6.9 GoseSany /M

2 w-
Dilshad Ali Ahmad Sameena Gul Omer Farooq Hashim*Raza Rauf Ahmad
President/CEO Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director
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Modern Motors House T +92 21 3567 2951-56
H H ™ Beaumont Road, F +92 21 3568 8834
An instinct for growth Karachi 75530 www.gtpak.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SME LEASING LIMITED

Review Report to the Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulation 2019 and Public Sector Companies (Corporate
Governance) Rules, 2013

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and Public Sector Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (both herein referred to as ‘Codes’) prepared by the Board
of Directors of SME Leasing Limited for the year ended December 31, 2020 to comply with the
requirements of regulation No 36 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 and regulation 24 of the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules,
2013.

The responsibility for compliance with the Codes is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the
Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Codes and report if it does not and to highlight any
non-compliance with the requirements of the Codes. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Codes.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Codes require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with
the requirements contained in the Codes as applicable to the Company for the year ended December
31, 2020.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Codes as
reflected in the note/ paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:
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S.No.| Statement of Compliance ..
Description
reference

Statement of Compliance as per Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

23 Company does not have nomination committee.
2A (1) The company does not comply with the requirement
of minimum number of directors.

Statement of Compliance as per Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

o4 The Chief Financial Officer also holds the position of
Company Secretary.

31 Performance appraisal of the Internal Auditor was not
performed during the year.

CZ< )
\((4 »"}' H’lmd'om@qw /LJ-\W‘—-—.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
Dated: March 04, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SME LEASING LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of SME Leasing Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020 along with the statement of
profit or loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity,
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information; and we state that we
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessaty for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss account, the
statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of
cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the
Company’s affairs as at December 31, 2020 and of the loss and other comprehensive loss, the changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Taxation — net includes an amount of Rs. 8.1 million (2019: Rs. 8.1 million) which was pertaining
to prior years as provision for taxation. In order to ascertain the above, we requested supporting
documents and management informed us that they are unable to locate these documents. We were
unable to substantiate “Taxation — net” amounting to Rs. 8.1 million due to non-availability of records
and being old in nature. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments to these
amounts were necessary.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Awditors Responsibilities
Jor the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company within
the meaning of International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 1.4 to the financial statements which states that the Company has incurred a
net loss of Rs. 57.676 million (December 31, 2019: Rs. 35.694 million), resulting in accumulated losses
of Rs. 348.906 million (December 31, 2019: Rs. 291.358 million) as at statement of financial position
date and as of that date the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 67.154 million
(December 31, 2019: Rs. 54.804 million). Further, it is fully explained in note 1.2, application with
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for renewal of license to operate as a leasing
company is still pending;
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These conditions along with other matter as set forth in the above referred note indicate the existence
of material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 1.3 to the financial statements which states the status of non-compliance
with the Regulation 4 of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on this matter. In addition to the matters described in the ‘Basis for Qualified
Opinion’ and the ‘Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern’ section, we have determined the
matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter is as follows:

S. No. Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Impairment allowance for potential | Our audit work included:
lease and loan losses
- obtaining an understanding and evaluating
Refer to notes 9, 10 and 15 to the financial the design of the key controls;
statements and the accounting policy

in notes 5.9 and 5.10 to the financial | - performing detailed assessment of the

statements

The Company’s portfolio of net
investment in finance leases and long term
finances and loans amounts to Rs. 323.368
million and Rs. 61.08 respectively having
provision of Rs. 148.813 million and Rs.
11.088 million respectively.

We identified the impairment allowance
for potential lease and loan losses as
a key audit matter due to the inherent
uncertainty and judgement used by the
management and compliance of the
applicable regulations issued by Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

(SECP).

credit approval procedures of the leases
sanctioned in accordance with the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulations, 2008 and the credit
manual of the Company.
detailed testing and assessment of
provision/reversal of net investment in
finance leases and long-term finances and
loans to ensure that these amounts are in
line with applicable regulations.

testing a sample of lease portfolio to
ascertain whether the loss event (that is the
point at which impairment is recognized)
had been identified in a timely manner
including, where relevant, how recoveries
have been made and where impairment
has been identified.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
in the other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
ot, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguard.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section
of our report, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section
of our report, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss account, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement
of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;
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¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhammad
Shaukat Naseeb.

<z1 d
l/c, ;,+ ]L[/'v.{foua’quw/"(.\j-\wm

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Karachi
Date: March 04, 2021
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at December 31, 2020

2020 2019
ASSETS Note Rupee
Non-current assets
Property and equipment 6 3,903,811 4,510,324
Right-of-use asset 7 7,770,109 12,053,712
Intangible asset 8 - -
Net investment in finance leases 9 187,152,253 237,195,651
Long term finances and loans - secured 10 47,385,562 57,932,105
Long-term loans to employees - secured 11 323,196 732,683
Long-term deposits and prepayments 12 870,558 1,162,410
Total non-curtent assets 247,405,489 313,586,885
Current assets
Advances 13 5,007,025 3,369,958
Prepayments and other receivables 14 1,496,938 951,154
Current maturity of non current assets 15 150,082,218 163,024,745
Cash and bank balances 16 1,626,307 787,718
Total current assets 158,212,488 168,133,575
Total assets 405,617,977 481,720,460
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorized share capital
100,000,000 (2019: 100,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 24 320,000,000 320,000,000
Capital reserves 38,019,277 38,019,277
358,019,277 358,019,277

Revenue reserves
Reserve against future losses 10,447,052 10,447,052
Accumulated losses (348,905,989) (291,358,265)

(338,458,937) (280,911,213)
Total shareholders' equity 19,560,340 77,108,064
Non-current liabilities
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 21 7,214,310 10,505,675
Long-term deposits 9 144,177,595 163,545,094
Defined benefit obligations 23 9,164,855 7,623,230
Total non-current liabilities 160,556,760 181,673,999
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 5,040,042 4,870,238
Unclaimed dividend - 19,694
Mark-up accrued on borrowings 18 4,211,211 2,143,384
Short term borrowings - secured 19 144,790,638 142,156,359
Current maturity of non-current liabilities 20 57,381,913 60,590,939
Current maturity of liabilities against finance lease assets 21 2,913,768 2,489,296
Provision for compensated absences 22 2,959,558 2,500,565
Taxation - net 8,203,747 8,167,922
Total current liabilities 225,500,877 222,938,397
Total equity and liabilities 405,617,977 481,720,460
Contingencies and commitments 25
The annexed notes from 1 to 42 from an integral part of these financial statements.

Pk o Y
L o —
M. Shahzad Muhamm ubeen Mufti Javed Mehmood Bilal Mustafa

Chief Financial Officer irector Director Director

*  Filling for vacancy of CEO in process.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

For the year ended December 31, 2020

REVENUE

Income from operations

Other operating income
Other income

Total revenue

EXPENSES
Administrative and general
Finance cost

Total expenses

Operating loss before reversals / (provisions)
(PROVISIONS)/REVERSALS
(Provisions)/reversals for potential lease losses - net
(Provisions)/reversals for loans and receivables - net
Total (provisions) / reversals

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Taxation

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss per share - basic and diluted

Note

26

27

28
29

9.6
10.2

30

31

2020 2019
Rupees

21,583,297 26,466,198
371,609 111,440
21,954,906 26,577,638
(43,681,689) (44,233,719)
(21,569,869) (22,459,467)
(65,251,558) (66,693,186)
(43,296,652) (40,115,548)
(12,461,567) 3,510,494
(1,594,618) 1,220,483
(14,056,185) 4,730,977
(57,352,837) (35,384,571)
(323,749) (309,759)
(57,676,586) (35,694,330)
(1.80) (1.12)

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 from an integral part of these financial statements.

[ \om . -
M. Shahzad Muhamm ubeen Mufti Javed Mehmood
Chief Financial Officer irector Director

*  Filling for vacancy of CEO in process.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2020

2020 2019

Note ——mmmmmmmmeee Rupees
Loss for the year (57,676,586) (35,694,330)
Other comprehensive loss
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss account in
subsequent years
Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligation 23 128,862 1,120,142
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss account in - -
subsequent years
Total comprehensive loss for the year (57,547,724) (34,574,188)

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 from an integral part of these financial statements.

G R

M. Shahzad Muhamm ubeen Mufti Javed Mehmood Bilal Mustafa
Chief Financial Officer irector Director Director

*  Filling for vacancy of CEO in process.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2020

2020 2019
Note Rupee
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation (57,352,837) (35,384,571)
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortization 28 3,579,845 3,517,675
Gratuity expense 23.2 1,722,387 2,433,115
Provision for compensated absences 22 1,524,411 1,348,605
Finance cost 29 21,569,869 22,459,467
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 27 (310,128) (2,500)
Provisions/ (reversals) for potential lease losses - net 9.6 12,461,567 (3,510,494)
Provisions/ (reversals) for loans and receivables - net 10.2 1,594,618 (1,220,483)
42,142,569 25,025,385
Operating loss before working capital changes (15,210,268) (10,359,186)
Movement in working capital
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets
Net investment in lease 48,409,860 33,002,556
Finances and loans 11,893,462 5,211,350
Long-term loans to employees - secured 599,710 -
Prepayments and other receivables (545,784) 259,087
Long-term deposits and prepayments 291,852 (337,509)
Long term deposits paid (22,576,525) (6,771,981)
Advances (1,637,067) (24,013)
36,435,508 31,339,490
(Decrease) / increase in operating liabilities
Trade and other payables 169,804 1,126,383
Unclaimed dividend (19,694) -
150,110 1,126,383
Cash generated from operations 21,375,350 22,106,687
Financial charges paid (19,734,352) (19,579,127)
Interest income received 61,481 108,940
Gratuity paid 233 (51,900) (2,780,405)
Benefits paid 22 (1,065,418) (1,339,631)
Taxes paid (287,924) (350,627)
(21,078,113) (23,940,850)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 297,236 (1,834,163)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure 6 (145,600) (272,011)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 27 1,766,000 2,500
Net cash generated /(used in) from investing activities 1,620,400 (269,511)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease rentals paid (3,713,326) (3,839,362)
Net cash used in financing activities (3,713,326) (3,839,362)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,795,690) (5,943,036)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (141,368,641) (135,425,605)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 34 (143,164,331) (141,368,641)
The annexed notes from 1 to 42 from an integral part of these financial statgments.
o et g
M. Shahzad Muhamm ubeen Mufti Javed Mehmood Bilal Mustafa
Chief Financial Officer irector Director Director

*  Filling for vacancy of CEO in process.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended December 31, 2020

Capital reserves Revenue reserves
b Iss.l:;j d Total
subscribed an R
. *Share *Statutory eserve Accumulated | shareholders'
paid-up share . against future .
. premium reserves losses equity
capital losses
Rupees
Balance as at January 01, 2019 320,000,000 10,000,000 28,019,277 10,447,052 (256,784,077) 111,682,252
Total Comprehensive loss for the year
ended December 31, 2019
Loss for the year - - - (35,694,330) (35,694,330)
Other comprehensive loss
- B B 1,120,142 1,120,142
Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligation
Balance as at December 31, 2019 320,000,000 10,000,000 28,019,277 10,447,052 (291,358,265) 77,108,064
Balance as at January 01, 2020 320,000,000 10,000,000 28,019,277 10,447,052 (291,358,265) 77,108,064
Total Comprehensive loss for the year
ended December 31,2020
Loss for the year - - - (57,676,586) (57,676,586)
Other comprehensive loss
- - - 128,862 128,862
Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligation
Balance as at December 31, 2020 320,000,000 10,000,000 28,019,277 10,447,052 (348,905,989) 19,560,340
* Share premimm and Statutory reserves are reflected as capital reserves in statement of financial position.
The annexed notes from 1 to 42 from an integral part of these financial statements.
M. Shahzad Muhamm ubeen Mufti Javed Mehmood Bilal Mustafa
Chief Financial Officer rector Director Director

*  Filling for vacancy of CEO in process.
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1

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

SME Leasing Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on July 12, 2002 as an
unlisted public company and acquired the status of a listed company on December 13, 2006.
The Company is a subsidiary of SME Bank Limited (the Holding Company), who holds
73.14% (2019: 73.14%) of the Company’s shares. At the time of incorporation, the Company
was a wholly owned subsidiary of SME Bank Limited, whereby under an arrangement the
assets and liabilities of the leasing division of SME Bank Limited were transferred to the
Company on January 28, 2003. The Company is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange and its
registered office is situated at 56-F, Nazim-ul-Din Road F-6/1, Blue Area, Islamabad. The core
objective of the Company is to extend lease and working capital financing facilities to small
and medium enterprises of the country. The PACRA Credit Rating Agency has assigned a
long term rating of B (2019: B) and a short-term rating of B (2019: B) to the Company in the
month of April 2020.

The license of the company to operate as a leasing company expired on May 20, 2019.
Thereafter, the Company applied via application reference # SMEL/MO/2019 dated April
16, 2019 for its renewal in the manner so required by the NBFC rules, 2003. However, renewal
of license was in progress till the year end.

The Company obtained license of non deposit taking NBFC and as per section 4 (Schedule
I) of NBFC Regulations 2008, a non deposit taking NBFC shall have minimum equity of
Rs 50 million. The Company being non deposit taking NBFC has not complied with said
requirement of NBFC Regulations 2008 of maintaining minimum capital requirement.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company has incurred a net loss of Rs. 57.676
million (December 31, 2019: Rs. 35.694 million), resulting in accumulated losses of Rs. 348.906
million (December 31, 2019: Rs. 291.358 million) at the end of the year. Further, the net assets
of the Company amounts to Rs. 19.694 million (December 31, 2019: Rs. 77.108 million). The
Company has negative cash and cash equivalent of Rs. 143.164 million (December 31, 2019:
Rs. 141.368 million) which comprise of running finance facility from SME Bank Limited and
as of that date the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 67.154 million
(2019: Rs. 54.805 million)

Further, the Company is dependent on the running finance facility granted by the holding
company. The revised prudential regulation of State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) applicable from
June 2015 has restricted the exposure by bank to a related party to the extent of 7.5% of its
equity. However, SBP on letter BPRD/BA&CPD/646/332/20 dated January 06, 2020 had
granted relaxation the Parent Company relaxation of the aforesaid requirement, which had
expired on December 31, 2019. During the year, the Parent Company has requested SBP to
allow exemption form related party exposure limit till December 31, 2020 and correspondence
regarding this was in progress till year end.

“These factors along with other factors may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern and the Company may not be able to realize its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.”

However, these financials are prepared using going concern assumption considering the
factors mentioned below:
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- The holding company has granted a short term running finance facility to the
Company amounting to Rs. 150 million out of which Rs. 144.747 million has been
utilized as at December 31, 2020 (2019: Rs. 142.156 million). The said facility can be
extended to the extent of Rs. 300 million as per the standby agreement for finance
facility. The holding company will not call off the said amount till June 30, 2022 and
the holding company will facilitate, assist and support the Company in arrangement
of finance from external sources as and when required by the Company.

- The management of the Company has prepared cash flow projections which reflect
that based on financial support by the holding company the Company will be able to
continue its business on going concern basis in the foreseeable future.

- Concerted efforts are being made for the recovery of non-performing leases and
loans and finances and in this respect during the year Rs. 25,048 million (2019: Rs.
17.612 million) has been recovered.

- Efforts are also being made by the management to reduce the overall cost of the
Company.

Based on the above mentioned financial measures and the concerted operational measures
being taken by the Company, the management is confident that the company would be able to
survive in the foreseeable future and therefore, has prepared the financial statements on going
concern basis.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

2020 2019
Note Rupee
Net lease disbursements 2.1 27,000,000 64,460,000
Recoveties 22 79,532,814 113,127,363

This represents amount disbursed against new leases written during the year.

This represents recoveries from non-performing loans amounting to Rs. 20,714,737 (2019: Rs.
17,612,272) and regular parties amounting to Rs. 58,818,077 (2019: Rs. 95,515,091).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017, the provisions of
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the Non-Banking Finance Companies
(Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), and the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations). In case where
requirements differ, the provision or directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, NBFC
Rules, 2003 and NBFC Regulations, 2008 shall prevail.
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3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
that defined benefit liability, compensated absences and liabilities against asset subject to
finance lease, which is carried at present value. These financial statements are prepared on
accrual basis of accounting,

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. The figures are rounded off to the nearest rupee.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
as applicable in Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and associated
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experiences, current trends and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the estimates.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period
in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future period if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The significant judgments made by the management in applying the accounting policies and
the key sources of estimating uncertainty were the same as those applied to financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2019.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements are described in the following:

- Provision for current and deferred taxation and recognition and measurement of
deferred tax assets and liabilities (notes 5.17 and 30).

- Classification and provision of net investment in finance lease and loans and finances
(notes 5.9, 5.10, 9 and 10).

- Determination and measurement of useful life and residual value of property and
equipment, right of use asset and intangibles (note 5.2, 5.3, 5.6, 6, 7 and 8 ).

- Staff retirement benefits (note 5.8 and 23).

- Staff compensated absences (note 5.8 and 22).

- Impairment of non-financial assets (note 5.14).

STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO APPROVED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Standards, interpretations and amendments that are relevant to the company and
adopted in the current year

The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards
and interpretations of IFRSs which became effective during the current year.
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Standard or Interpretation Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)

IAS 1 “Presentation of financial statements (amendments)” January 1, 2020

IAS 8 “Accounting policies, change in accounting estimates and | January 1, 2020
errors (amendments)”

IFRS 3 “Business Combinations (amendments)” January 1, 2020

There are certain other new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that
are mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020
but are considered not to be relevant or will not have any significant effect on the Company’s
operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are
relevant but not yet effective and not early adopted by the Company

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)
IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS7, IFRS4, and IFRS16 Interest Rate Benchmark | January 1, 2021
Reform Phase 2

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use — | January 1, 2022
Amendments to IAS 16

Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to IFRS 3 | January 1, 2022
IFRS 17 and IFRS 4 Ammenment to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts | January 1, 2022
IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41 Annual Improvements to IFRS | January 1, 2022
Standards 2018-2020 cycle

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current— Amendments | January 1, 2022
to IAS 1

The above standards, amendments and interpretations are not expected to have a material
impact on the Company’s financial statements when they become effective.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are
notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Following new standard have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) which are notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)

Financial Instruments - IFRS 9 January 1, 2022

The SECP vide SR.O. 1332(I)/2019 has modify the effective date for applicability of
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5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

International Financial Reporting Standard - Financial Instruments (IFRS-9) in place of
International Accouniting Standard (IAS-39) (Financial Instruments: recognition and
Measurement) for Non Banking Finance Companies as “Reporting period/year ending on or
after 30 June, 2020.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied in preparation of these financial
statements, unless otherwise stated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and balances in current and savings bank
accounts. Short term running finance that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Company’s cash management, are included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Property and equipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss account by using the straight line method
at the rates specified in note 6 after taking into account residual value, if any. Depreciation
on additions is charged from the month the assets are put to use while no depreciation is
charged in the month in which the assets are disposed off. The residual values, useful lives and
depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each statement of financial
position date.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amounts or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other subsequent costs
including repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss account as
and when incurred.

Gains or losses on sale of assets are charged to the statement of profit or loss account in the
period in which they arise.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-
of-use assets are subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
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include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.

5.5 Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases
of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease
of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

5.6 Intangible

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.
Amortization is charged using the straight line method over its estimated useful life at the rate
specified in note 8 after taking into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful
lives and amortization methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at each statement
of financial position date. Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amounts only
when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Amortization on additions is charged from the month the assets are put to use while no
amortization is charged in the month in which the assets are disposed off.

Gain and losses on disposal of such assets, if any, are included in the statement of profit or
loss account.

5.7 Staff retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company operates an approved defined contributory provident fund for all its permanent
employees. Monthly contributions are made to the fund equally by the Company and the
employees at the rate of 8 % of basic salary. The contributions are recognized as employee
benefit expense when they become due.

Staff retirement benefits are payable to employees on completion of the prescribed qualifying
period of service under the scheme.

The Company accounts for its liability towards accumulating compensated absences, when the
employees render service that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences.
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5.8

5.9

5.10

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unapproved and unfunded gratuity scheme covering all of its
permanent employees who have completed the qualifying period under the scheme. The
scheme is administered by the trustees and contributions therein are made in accordance with
the actuarial recommendations.

The valuation in this regard is carried out at each year end, using the Projected Unit Credit
Method for the valuation of the scheme. Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability, which
comprises of actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other comprehensive
income based on actuarial gains and losses.

The Company determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for
the year by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual year to the net defined benefit liability, taking into account and
change in the net defined benefit liability during the year as a result of contribution and
benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expense related to defined benefit plans are
recognized in statement of profit or loss account.

Net investment in lease finance
Leases where the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the leased assets to the lessees, are classified as finance leases.

The leased asset is derecognized and the present value of the lease receivable is recognized on
the statement of financial position date. The difference between the gross lease receivables
and the present value of the lease receivables is recognized as unearned finance income.
A receivable is recognized at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease
payments under the lease agreements, including guaranteed residual value, if any.

Each lease payment received is applied against the gross investment in the finance lease
receivable to reduce both the principal and the unearned finance income. The finance income
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss account on a basis account that reflects a
constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in the finance lease.

Initial direct costs incurred by the Company in negotiating and arranging finance leases are
added to finance lease receivables and are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit
or loss account over the lease term on the same basis as the finance lease income.

Provision for potential lease losses and doubtful loans and receivables

Specific provision for potential lease losses and doubtful loans and receivables are made
based in the appraisal of each lease or loan on the basis of the requirements of the NBFC
Regulations.

Financial assets and liabilities

All the financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and derecognized when the
Company losses control of contractual rights that comprises the financial assets and in the
case of financial liabilities when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is taken
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to statement of profit or loss account directly.

Financial assets carried at balance sheet date includes cash and bank balances, long term
finances and loans, net investment in finance leases, deposits and other receivables.

Financial liabilities carried at balance sheet date includes short term borrowing, long term
finances, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued, and trade and other payables.

Investments

All investments are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration
given and include transaction costs except for held for trading investments in which case
transaction costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss account. All purchase and sale
of investments that require delivery within the required time frame established by regulations
or market convention are accounted for at the trade date. Trade date is the date when the
Company commits to purchase or sell the investments. These are recognized and classified as
follows:

Investment at fair value through profit or loss (held for trading)

At the time of acquisition, quoted investments which are acquired principally for the purpose
of generating profit from short term fluctuations in price or are part of portfolio for which
there is a recent actual pattern of short term profit taking are classified as held for trading.

Subsequent to initial recognition these are premeasured at fair value by reference to quoted
market prices with the resulting gain or loss being included in net profit or loss for the period
in which it arises.

Available-for-sale

These are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss being recognized directly in equity.
Gains or losses on revaluation of available-for-sale investments are recognized directly in
equity until the investments are sold or other wise disposed off, or until the investments are
determined to be impaired, at which time cumulative gain or loss previously reported in the
equity is included in current year’s statement of profit or loss account.

All investments classified as available-for-sale are initially recognized at cost inclusive of
transaction costs and subsequently quoted investments are marked to market using the last
quoted rate at the close of the financial year.

Held to maturity
At the time of acquisition, investments with fixed maturity, where management has both the
intent and the ability to hold to maturity, are classified as held to maturity.

Subsequently, these are measured at amortized cost less provision for impairment in value, if
any amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
by using the effective yield method.

The difference between the redemption value and the purchase price of the held to maturity
investments is amortized and taken to the statement of profit or loss account over the term
of the investment.
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These are reviewed for impairment at year end and any losses arising from impairment in
values are charged to the statement of profit or loss account.

5.12  Loans and receivables
These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market.

These are initially recognized at fair value plus any related transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried at amortized cost.

5.13  Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying value of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized
in the statement of profit or loss account.

5.14  Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which
the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently premeasured at fair value. All
derivative financial instruments are carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities
when fair value is negative. Any change in the fair value is recognized in the statement of profit
or loss account.

5.15 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the
balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and
the Company intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultancously.

516  Taxation
Taxation charge in the statement of profit or loss account comprises of current and deferred
tax.

Current

Provisions for current taxation is based on taxability of certain income streams of the
Company under presumptive / final tax regime and minimum tax under section 113 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, wherever applicable, at the applicable tax rates and remaining
income streams chargeable at current rate of taxation under the normal tax regime after taking
into account tax credits and tax rebates available, if any.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided
is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
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be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax are reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

5.17  Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of
past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arise from past events but it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

5.18  Provisions
A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has legal
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

519  Long term finances
Long term finances are initially recognized at cost being the fair value of the consideration
received together with the associated transaction cost.

Subsequently, these are carried at amortized cost using effective interest method. Transaction
cost relating to the long term finance is being amortized over the period of agreement using
the effective interest method.

5.20  Revenue recognition

- The Company follows the finance lease method in accounting for the recognition
of lease income. Under this method, the unearned lease income i.e. the excess of
gross lease rentals and the estimated residual value over the cost of the leased assets
is deferred and taken to income over the term of the lease contract, so as to produce
a systematic return on the net investment in finance lease. Unrealized lease income is
held in suspense account, where necessary, in accordance with the requirements of
the NBFC Regulations.

- Front-end fees and documentation charges are taken to income when realized.

- Income on investments is accounted for on accrual basis.

- Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.

- Income on loans and finances is accounted for on accrual basis using effective interest
method.

- Unrealized lease income and unrealized income on loans and finances is held in
suspense account, where necessary, in accordance with requirements of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (NBFC
Regulations).

- Profit on bank deposit and short term placements is accrued on a time proportion
basis.

- Gain or loss arising on sale of investments are taken to income in the period in which
they arise.

- Other income is recognized on receipt basis.
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5.21

5.22

5.23

5.24

5.25

Earnings / (loss) per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share (EPS) for its shareholders.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary share holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effect of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, if any.

Dividend distribution and transfer between reserves

Dividend distribution (including stock dividend) to the Company’s shareholders and transfer
between reserves, except appropriations which are required under law, are recognized in the
financial statements in the period in which such dividends are declared or such transfers
between reserves are made.

Capital and revenue reserves

Share premium

The share premium was recorded in the year 2006 on issue of shares in accordance with
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 the repealed Ordinance. This premium is
available for restrictive use as per section 81 of the Companies Act 2017.

Statutory reserves

In accordance with the requirements of the NBFC Regulations, an amount of not less than
20% of after tax profits shall be transferred to statutory reserve till such time when the reserve
equals the amount of paid-up capital, and thereafter a sum of not less than 5 percent shall be
transferred. Consequently, during the current year the Company has transferred an amount of
Rs. nil due to loss (2019: Rs. nil) to its statutory resetrve.

Reserve against future losses

This reserve represents amounts set aside in view of the risks associated with the economic
cyclical nature of the business and is recognized as an appropriation of retained earnings. Any
credits resulting from reduction of such amounts result in an increase in unappropriated profit
and are not included in the determination of profit or loss for the period. The amount to be set
aside against future losses is determined at the rate of 0.5 % of the outstanding balance of the
regular portfolio of leases and loans and receivables as at each year end. This was applicable
when the company was deposit taking NBFC till year 2008, however, subsequently when the
status of company changed from deposit taking NBFC to non-deposit taking NBFC, this
policy is no more applicable. Therefore, no such reserve has been created by the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2020.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting structure.
Management monitors operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of
making decisions regarding resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment results,
assets and liabilities include item directly attributable to segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis.

Deposits and prepayments
These are initially recognised at cost being the fair value of the consideration paid. Subsequently,
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5.26

5.27

5.28

5.29
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these are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any which equals to the fair value of the
consideration to be received in future.

Accrued and other payables
Accrued expenses and other payables are carried at cost which equals to the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in future for goods or services received.

Expenses
Operating expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss account upon utilisation
of the service or at the date of their origin.

Other receivables
Other receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any which equals to the fair value
of the consideration to be received in future.

Finance cost

Finance cost on short term borrowings and lease liabilities is recognised in statement
of profit or loss account as and when accrued. It also includes transaction charges
incurred on bank accounts.
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9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5
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2020 2019
Note Rupees
NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASES
Net investment in finance leases 9.1 323,368,379 383,222,542
Less: Current maturity 15 (136,216,126) (146,026,891)
187,152,253 237,195,651
Net investment in finance leases
December 31,2020 December 31, 2019
Later th Later th
ater than one Not later ater than one Not later than
Total year and less Total year and less
than one year ! one year
than five years than five years ’
Note (Rupees)
Minimum lease payments 93 332473338 252,615,664 79,857,674 363,613,847 266,683,943 96,929,904

Add: Residual Value of leased assets 94 201,186,275 144,177,595 57,008,680  223,762.800 163,545,094 60,217,706

Gross Investment in leases 533,659,613 396,793,259 136,866,354 587,376,647 430,229,037 157,147,610
Less: Unearned lease Income (12,813,448)| (12,163,220  (650,228)|| (18,120,622)]|  (6,999,903)|| (11,120,719)
Less: Markup held in Suspense Account (48,664,406)]|  (48,664,406) - (49,681,670)]|  (49,681,670)

(61477854) (60,827,626  (650,228) (67,802292)  (56,681,573) (11,120,719

41,181,759 335965633 136216126 519574355 373547464 146,026,891

Less: Provision for potential lease losses 9.6 (148,813,380)  (148,813,380) - (136,351,813)  (136,351,813)

Net Investment in Finance leases 323,368,379 187,152,253 136,216,126 383222542 237,195,051 146,026,891

The internal rate of return (IRR) on lease contract receivable ranges from 9.5% to 25% per annum (2019: 9.5%
to 25% per annum).

This include amount receivable in respect of non performing leases of Rs. 199.204 million (2019: Rs. 124.601
million) which have not been fully provided due to forced sales value benefit amounting to Rs. 87.345 million
(2019: Rs. 150.100 million).

These represent interest free security deposits received against lease contracts and are refundable / adjustable at
the expity / termination of the respective leases. The amount is net of security deposit held against non-
performing leases amounting to Rs. 144.988 million (2019: Rs. 145.463 million).

Lease rentals received during the year aggregate to Rs. 79.533 million (2019: Rs. 113.127 million). Lease
disbursed during the year amounts to Rs. 27 million (2019: Rs. 64.460 million).
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2020 2019
Note Rupees
9.6  Provision for potential lease losses
Balance at the beginning of the year 136,351,813 139,862,307
Provision for the year 29,052,904 9,403,368
Recovered during the year (16,591,337) (12,913,862)
Net provision 12,461,567 (3,510,494)
Balance at the end of the year 148,813,380 136,351,813
10 LONG TERM FINANCES AND LOANS - SECURED
Customers
-considered good 10.1 20,351,243 24244705
-considered doubtful 51,818,056 59,818,056
10.3 72,169,299 84,062,761
Less: Provision for doubtful finances and loans - net 10.2 (11,088,650) (9,494,030)
61,080,649 74,568,731
Less: Current maturity
Customers 15 (13,695,087) (16,636,626)
47,385,562 57,932,105

10.1 These represent loans to customers for a period of three to five years on mark-up basis and are secured by way
of hypothecation of stock and immovable property. The rate of mark-up ranges from 11.35% to 17.33% (2019:
15% to 27%) per annum.

2020 2019
10.2 Provision for doubtful finances and loans - net Rupees
Balance at the beginning of the year 9,494,030 10,714,513
Provision for the year 5,718,015 3,588,157
Recovered during the year (4,123,397) (4,808,640)
Net provision 1,594,618 (1,220,483)
Balance at the end of the year 11,088,648 9,494,030

10.3 'This includes non performing loans of Rs. 59.140 million (2019: Rs. 75.661 million) which have not been fully
provided due to FSV benefits amount to Rs. 63.832 million (2019: 76.025 million).

1 LONG-TERM LOANS TO EMPLOYEES - SECURED 2020 2019
Note Rupees

Related parties - considered good

- house loans - 155,352
- car loans 494,201 938,559

11.1&11.2 494,201 1,093,911
Less: Current maturity 15 (171,005) (361,228)
323,196 732,683

11.1 Movement in loan to employees

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,093,911 1,504,534
Disbursements 49,500 89,567
Repayments (649,210) (500,190)
Balance at the end of the year 494,201 1,093,911
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11.2 These represent housing loans and car loans given to employees. These loans are recovered through deduction
from salaries over varying petiods up to a maximum period of 20 years. These loans are granted to the
employees in accordance with their terms of employment. The housing loans are secured by registered
mortgage in favor of the Company. Car loans are secured by the title of car in the Company's name. These
loans carry mark-up at 5% to 7% (2019: 5% to 7 %) per annum.

12 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 2020 2019
Note Rupees
Other deposits 121 787,222 787,222
Prepayments 864,004 1,062,373
Less: Current maturity 14 (780,668) (687,185)
Non-current prepayments 83,336 375,188
870,558 1,162,410

12.1 Other deposits

Deposit On Rent: Branches 711,000 711,000
Deposit - Central Depository Company 50,000 50,000
Miscellanous Deposits 14,422 14,422
Deposit On BRR Security Vault 11,800 11,800

787,222 787,222

13 ADVANCES

Considered good - unsecured

- employees 13.1 1,678,710 1,180,216

- legal advisors 13.2 2,289,853 2,053,200

- others 137,426 136,542

- Advance agaisnt lease vehicle 886,036 -

- SBP deposit 15,000 -
5,007,025 3,369,958

13.1 These represents interest free advances given to employees against salaries. These are recovered through

monthly deductions from salaries over a period of one year from the date of disbursement.

13.2 These represents advance payments made to the legal advisors of the Company for handling the cases on behalf
of the Company.

2020 2019
Note Rupees
14 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Prepayments 780,668 838,786
Other receivable 65,000 65,000
Accrued interest on long term finances and loans 651,270 47,368
1,496,938 951,154
15 CURRENT MATURITY OF NON CURRENT ASSETS
Current maturity of :
- Net investment in finance leases 9 136,216,126 146,026,891
- Long term finances and loans 10 13,695,087 16,636,626
- Long term loans to employees 11 171,005 361,228
150,082,218 163,024,745
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16

16.1

17

18

18.1
19

19.1

20

2020 2019
CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note Rupees
Balance with State Bank of Pakistan in current account - 6,282
Balances with banks in:
- Current accounts 1,466,000 633,408
- Saving accounts 16.1 93,895 81,616
Cash in hand 66,412 66,412
1,626,307 787,718
These carry profit rate of 5.5% to 11.25% per annum (2019: 4% per annum).
2020 2019
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note Rupees
Payable on termination/maturity of leases 2,132,445 1,323,320
Insurance payable 1,829,706 2,023,774
Accrued expenses 798,429 1,206,715
Others 255,933 316,429
Sales tax payable 23,529 -
5,040,042 4,870,238
MARK-UP ACCRUED ON BORROWINGS
Interest accrued on:
- Short term borrowings 18.1 4,211,211 2,143 384
This amount represents accrued interest payable to the holding company.
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED
Short term bortowings 19.1 144,790,638 142,156,359

The Company has a running finance facility available from the holding company amounting to Rs.150
million (2019: Rs.150 million) at mark-up rates ranging between 11.35% to 17.33% (2019: 10.43% to
17.33%) per annum. Above arrangements are secured by way of hypothecation of the Company's specific
leased assets and related receivables of the Company.

2020 2019
CURRENT MATURITY OF NON- Note Rupees
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term deposits 9.1 57,008,680 60,217,706
Long term finance 20.1 373,233 373,233
57,381,913 60,590,939
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20.1 'This represents balance due against financing facilities amounting to Rs. 0.373 million (2019: Rs. 0.373 million)
from National Energy Conservation Centre (Enercon). The facilities from Enercon wete obtained under an
agreement whereby they agreed to provide funds to the Company for granting lease / finance facility to its
customers at a preferential mark-up rate for procuring and using energy efficient equipments. The facility
requires sharing of profit @ 5% of the financing amount on quartetly basis. However, this facility is no more

active.

21 CURRENT MATURITY OF LIABILITIES AGAINST FINANCE LEASE ASSETS

2020 2019
Minimum Minimum
Lease Present value Lease Present value
Payment Payment
Rupees Rupees
Upto one year 4,200,835 2,913,768 4392,078 2,489,296
Later than one year but not later than five - -
years 8,392,048 7,214,310 13,183,867 10,505,675
Total minimum lease payments 12,592,883 10,128,078 17,575,945 12,994,971
Less: Finance charges not due yet (2,464,805) - (4,580,974) -
Present value of minimum lease payments 10,128,078 10,128,078 12,994,971 12,994971
Less: Cuttent portion (2,913,768) (2,913,768) (2,489,296) (2,489,296)
Non-current portion 7,214,310 7,214,310 10,505,675 10,505,675
2020 2019
22 PROVISION FOR COMPENSATED ABSENCES Note Rupees

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations
Present value of defined benefit obligations- Opening 2,500,565 2,491,591
Current service cost 1,266,197 820,743
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 221,384 241,385
Benefits paid (1,065,418) (1,339,631)
Remeasurement
- Actuarial gains from changes in assumptions (5,872) (4,307)
- Expetience adjustments 42,702 290,784
Present value of defined benefit obligations- Closing 2,959,558 2,500,565
Expenses to be charged to statement of profit or loss account
Current service cost 1,266,197 820,743
Experience adjustments 42,702 290,784
Actuarial gains from changes in financial assumptions (5,872) (4,307)
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 221,384 241,385
Expense chargeable to statement of profit or loss account 28.1 1,524,411 1,348,605
Changes in net liability
Statement of financial position liability- Opening 2,500,565 2,491,591
Expenses chargeable to statement of profit or loss account 1,524,411 1,348,605
Benefits paid (1,065,418) (1,339,631)
Statement of financial position liability- Closing 2,959,558 2,500,565
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23

231

23.2

23.3

23.4

23.5

DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Company operates an unapproved and unfunded gratuity scheme for all of its permanent employees.
Number of employees covered under the scheme are 27 (2019: 28).

Principal actuarial assumptions

The latest actuarial valuation of the gratuity scheme was cartied out on December 31, 2020 by Nauman

Associates using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The
valuation of the scheme:

Valuation discount rate

Expected long term rate of increase in salary level
Liability in statement of financial position
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Movement in liability during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year

Charged to statement of profit or loss account
Remeasurements chargeable in other comprehensive
income

Benefits paid during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligations

Present value of obligations at beginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Past service cost

Benefits paid during the year

Remeasurements gain chargeable in other comprehensive
income

Present value of obligations at the end of the year
Charged to statement of profit or loss account

Current services cost
Past service cost
Interest cost

Remeasurements gain chargeable in other comprehensive income

Actuarial gains on obligation

Experience adjustment

following significant assumptions were used for

Note

23.2

28.1

23.5

Total re-measurements recognized in other comprehensive income

2020 2019
11.25% 11.25%
11.25% 11.25%

Rup\,\,o
9,164,855 7,623,230
7,623,230 9,090,662
1,722,387 2,433,115
(128,862) (1,120,142)
(51,900) (2,780,405)
9,164,855 7,623,230
7,623,230 9,090,662
867,693 1,412,804
854,694 1,020,311
(51,900) (2,780,405)
(128,862) (1,120,142)
9,164,855 7,623,230
867,693 1,412,804
854,694 1,020,311
1,722,387 2,433,115
(19,855) (23,258)
(109,007) (1,096,884)
(128,862) (1,120,142)
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23.6 Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying one assumption keeping all other assumptions constant and
calculating the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations under the employee benefit
schemes. The increase / (decrease) in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change in
each assumption is summarized below:

Discount rate effect Rupees Rate effect
Original liability 9,164,855 11.25%
1% increase 10,081,341 12.25%
1% decrease 8,248,370 10.25%
Salary increase rate effect Rupees Rate effect
Original liability 9,164,855 11.25%
1% increase 10,081,341 12.25%
1% decrease 9,073,206 10.25%

The sensitivity analysis prepared presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as

some of the assumptions may be correlated.
23.7 Maturity profile 2020 2019

The weighted average duration of the obligation (in years) 10 10

24  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2020 2019 2020 2019
(Number of shares) Rupees

10,100,000 10,100,000 Otdinary shares of Rs. 10 each 101,000,000 101,000,000
issued as fully paid in cash

19,900,000 19,900,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
issued as  fully paid for 199,000,000 199,000,000
consideration other than cash

2,000,000 2,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 20,000,000 20,000,000

issued as fully paid bonus shares

32,000,000 32,000,000 320,000,000 320,000,000

24.1 SME Bank Limited is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan on October 30, 2001 under the
Companies Otdinance, 1984 having its registered office at 56-F, Nazim-ud-Din Road, F-6/1, Blue Area
Islamabad. The Bank obtained its business commencement certificate on April 16, 2005 which became
effective from the date of its issue. The Bank is a Scheduled Commercial Bank engaged in the business
engaged in the business of banking with primary objective to support and develop Small and Medium
Enterprise (SME) sector in Pakistan by providind necessaty financial assistance and business support services
on sustainable basis. At December 31, 2020, The holding company and its nominees hold 73.14% (2019:
73.14%) ordinary shates of the Company.

Annual Report 2020 242




SME Leasing Limited
2

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2020

25

251

25.2

26

27

28

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

There are no contingencies as at December 31, 2020 (2019: Nil).

Commitments

There are no commitments as at December 31, 2020 (2019: Nil).

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

Income from finance leases

Income on finances and loans

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Mark-up on loan to employees

Profit on bank account/return on investment

Income from non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Other (loss)/income

ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Depreciation and amortization

Legal and professional

Insurance

Travelling, conveyance and entertainment
Electricity, gas and water

Telephone and postage

Miscellaneous

Auditors' remuneration

Directors' fee

Printing and stationery

Repairs and maintenance

Rent, rates and taxes

Vehicle running

Advertising

Books and periodicals

Training and development

2020 2019
6 Rupees-----------------
17,776,964 19,634,038
3,806,333 6,832,160
21,583,297 26,466,198
59,299 89,003
6,998 -
310,128 2,500
(4,816) 19,937
371,609 111,440
28.1 30,075,743 28,359,429
6,7&8 3,579,845 3,517,675
2,977,654 2,754,034
1,182,235 970,843
958,947 1,660,194
887,010 958,523
759,466 899,205
599,259 782,187
28.6 622,000 509,825
28.4 515,000 660,000
471,352 706,202
441,005 479,549
257,372 507,025
218,273 474,076
97,363 327,545
36,165 59,407
3,000 608,000
43,681,689 44,233,719
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28.1 Salaries allowance and other benefits include: 2020 2019
Note Rupee
Staff gratuity fund 23.4 1,722,387 2,433,115
Staff provident fund 775,716 665,233
Compensated absences 22 1,524,411 1,348,605
4,022,514 4,446,953

28.2 Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer and Executives

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements, including all benefits, to the Chief Executive

Officer and Executives of the Company are as follows:

2020 2019
Chief Chief
Executive Executive Executive Executives
Officer Officer
---------------------- (Rupees) -------==mmmmmmmmmmme
Managerial remuneration 1,576,625 2,981,253 1,057,813 2,101,935
Housing and utilities 500,813 1,490,629 528,906 1,050,968
Provident fund 26,709 72,000 - -
Medical and other perquisites 463,343 628,017 105,781 210,194
Gratuity - - 1,548,800 -
Leave encashment - 192,500 270,911 67,375
Leave fare assistance - - 387,200 -
2,567,490 5,364,399 3,899,411 3,430,472
Number of person(s) 2 2 2 3

28.3  The Chief Executive Officer and certain executives were also provided with free use of Company owned and

maintained cars in accordance with their terms of employment.

28.4  This represents remuneration paid to the non-executive directors of the Company for attending meetings of

the Board and Board's committees.

28.5  Executive means an employee, other than the chief executive and directors, whose basic salary exceeds twelve

hundred thousand rupees in a financial year.

28.6  Auditors' remuneration 2020 2019
Rupees

Annual audit fee 285,000 250,000

Half yeatly review fee 56,000 55,600

9 Month review fee 56,000 -

Fee for other certifications 50,000 50,000

Out of pocket expenses 175,000 154,225
622,000 509,825

29 FINANCE COST

Mark-up on short term borrowings 19,611,282 20,290,115
Interest expense for leasing arrangements 1,835,517 2,036,840
Bank charges 123,070 132,512

21,569,869 22,459,467
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30

30.1

30.2

30.3

30.4

31

311

TAXATION

Current tax liability

Provision for the current year income tax has been made under the provisions of minimum tax under Section
113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Current status of tax assessments

The income tax assessments of the Company for tax year 2012 has been selected for tax audit u/s 214 C of

Income tax ordinance 2001.

In respect of Tax year 2012, the tax authorities have served order under section 122(1) read with section
177(1) and 214C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 disallowing expenses relating to depreciation allowance,
markup on loan to employees and financial cost and creating tax demand of Rs. 3.8 million. The Company
filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals-1I) against the said order who decided all
the issues in favor of the Company except for initial allowance on leased asset. Company has filed second

appeal and the appeal has not yet been fixed for hearing.

In respect of minimum tax for the year ended December 31, 2015, the tax authorities have served order under
section 124 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for additional amount of minimum tax of Rs. 0.14 million
payable due to restatement of turnover of the Company. The Company has filed application for rectification
in the order on the issue of incorrect value of tutnover for the purpose of charging minimum tax under

section 113 and tax credit not allowed. No action has been taken by the tax officer yet.

Deferred tax asset of Rs.43.620 million (2019: Rs. 125.357 million) has not been recognized as the Company

does not foresee future taxable profits against which unused tax losses will be utilized.

The Company computes tax based on the generally accepted interpretations of the tax laws to ensure that the
sufficient provision for the purpose of taxation is available which can be analyzed as follows:

2019 2018 2017
Rupees
Tax provision as per accounts 309,759 349,920 333,598
Tax payable/paid as per tax return 350,627 349,920 383,785
LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 2020 2019
Rupees
Loss after taxation attributable to ordinaty shareholders (57,676,586) (35,694,330)
(Number of shares)
Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares 32,000,000 32,000,000
2020 2019
Rupees
Loss per share - basic and diluted (1.80) (1.12)

No figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has no potential ordinary shares

outstanding at year end.
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32 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties of the company comprise of SME Bank Limited (the Holding Company), key management
personnel, non-executive directors and contributory staff retirement benefit plan.

2020 2019
Note Rupees
321  Balances
SME Bank Limited (holding company)
Shott term borrowing 19 144,790,638 142,156,359
32.2  Transactions
SME Bank Limited (holding company)
Mark up on short-term borrowings 29 19,611,282 20,290,115
Acquisition of short term borrowing facility-net 2,634,279 600,317
Rent expense paid for Peshawar branch 550,272 544,805
Key management personnel
Key management remuneration 7,931,889 7,329,883
Staff provident fund
Company's contribution towards provident fund 28.1 775,716 665,233
Unaudited Audited
2020 2019
33 Provident fund Note Rupees
Size of the fund (Net assets) 5,674,170 5,418,176
Cost of Investment made 5,719,414 5,282,289
Percentage of investment made 100.80% 97.49%
Fair value of investments 5,851,465 5,608,363

All the investments of the Provident Fund are kept in mutual funds.

33.1  Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of the section 218 of
the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

2020 2019
34 Cash and cash equivalents Note Rupees
Cash and bank balances 16 1,626,307 787,718
Short term borrowings 19 (144,790,638) (142,156,359)
(143,164,331) (141,368,641)
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35

35.1

35.1.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Introduction and overview
The Company has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:

- credit risk
- liquidity risk
- market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s

objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing it.
Risk management framework

Company's Board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's
risk management framework. The Board has established the Risk Management Committee, which is
responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports
regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and

obligations.

The Company's audit committee oversees how management monitor compliance with the Company's risk
management policies and procedures, and review the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation
to the risks faced by the Company. The Company's audit committee is assisted in its oversight by internal
audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures,

the result of which are reported to the audit committee.
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Concentration
of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by
changes in economics, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative

sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Management of credit risk

The Company's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the internal risk management
policies and the requirements of the NBFC Rules and Regulations. The Company attempts to control credit
risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counter parties, and continually

assessing the credit worthiness of counter parties.

247 Annual Report 2020



SME Leasing Limited
*

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2020

35.1.2 Exposure to credit risk

35.1.3

35.1.4
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In summary, compared to the maximum amount included in the balance sheet, the maximum exposure to
credit risk as at December 31, 2020 is as follows:

Bank balances

Advances

Net investment in finance lease
Long term finances and loans
Long-term loans to employees
Deposits and other receivables

Credit ratings and collaterals

2020 2019
Statement of X Statement of .
. Maximum . Maximum
financial financial
.. exposure .. exposure
position position
(Rupees)
1,559,895 1,559,895 721,306 715,024
152,426 152,426 136,542 136,542
323,368,379 323,368,379 383,222,542 383,222,542
61,080,649 61,080,649 74,568,731 74,568,731
494,201 494,201 1,093,911 1,093,911
852,222 852,222 899,590 899,590
387,507,771 387,507,771 460,642,622 460,636,340

Details of the credit ratings of balances with the banks (including profit receivable) as at 31 December were as

follows:
Ratings

Al+
A-1+
Others

Description of collateral held

2020 2019
0.00% 0.00%
99.13% 99.13%
0.87% 0.87%
100% 100%

The Company's leases are secured against assets leased out. In a few leases additional collaterals are also

obtained.

Details of exposures and the collateral as at December 31, 2020 against them are as follows:
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35.1.4

35.1.5

Settlement risk

Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of an entity to honor its obligations to deliver cash or other

assets as contractually agreed on sale.

This risk is addressed more or less in accordance with the parameters set out in the credit risk management

above.

To reduce the exposure to credit risk the Company has developed a formal approval process whereby credit
limits are applied to its customers. The management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the
customers and makes provision against those balances considered doubtful of recovery (and also obtains
security / advance payments, wherever considered necessary). Cash is held only with reputable banks with
high quality credit worthiness.

Impairment losses and past due balances

2020
Total Loans and Net investment  Impairment
receivables in finance lease recognized
(Rupees)
Not past due 130,495,171 13,043,817 117,451,354 -
1-179 days 19,416,042 651,270 18,764,772 -
180 days - 1 year - - - -
More than 1 year 234,537,815 58,474,212 335,965,633 (159,902,030)
384,449,028 72,169,299 472,181,759 (159,902,030)
2019
Total Loans and Net investment Impairment
receivables in finance lease recognized
(Rupees)
Not past due 143,898,499 16,636,626 127,261,873 -
1-179 days 18,812,386 47,368 18,765,018 -
180 days - 1 year - - - -
More than 1 year 295,127,756 67,378,767 373,547,464 (145,845,843)
490,439,687 84,062,761 519,574,355 (145,845,843)

Concentration of credit risk - net investment in finance lease

The Company seeks to manage its credit risk through diversification of financing activities to avoid undue
concentration of credit risk with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations or business sectors. It
also obtains collaterals when appropriate.

The management of the Company follows two sets of guidelines. Internally, it has its own policies and
procedures duly approved by the Board of Directors whereas externally it adheres to the regulations issued by
the SECP. The operating policy defines the extent of fund based exposures with reference to a particular
sector or group of leases.

Details of the composition of leases and loans and finances portfolio of the Company ate given below:
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the year ended December 31, 2020
2020 2019
Rupees Percentage Rupees Percentage

Public Transport Services 99,353,265 15.86% 99,445,189 14.51%
Printing & Packaging 56,780,997 9.06% 59,389,249 8.66%
Miscellaneous 55,650,938 8.88% 33,863,905 4.94%
Film Processing 47,365,497 7.56% 48,744,973 7.11%
Oil & Gas 42,958,603 6.86% 49,316,299 7.20%
Food & Beverages 40,569,788 6.48% 42,898,326 6.26%
Health Cate 40,277,035 6.43% 56,529,752 8.25%
Garments 30,850,275 4.92% 38,339,582 5.59%
Cargo Cartiers 29,661,613 4.74% 24,697,886 3.60%
Entertainment 28,862,877 4.61% 31,122,877 4.54%
Rubber 28,681,331 4.58% 58,935,095 7.21%
Leather & Tannery 17,164,218 2.74% 15,364,218 2.24%
Engineering 16,500,306 2.63% 16,925,999 2.47%
Textile 14,092,568 2.25% 14,293,784 2.09%
Plastic 13,950,099 2.23% 12,894,665 1.88%
Gems & Jeweler 13,781,662 2.20% 13,921,662 2.03%
Pharma 12,236,745 1.95% 12,236,745 1.79%
Education 10,229,377 1.63% 17,651,360 2.58%
Confectionary 9,107,485 1.45% 9,637,726 1.41%
Communication 6,802,623 1.09% 6,802,623 0.99%
Construction & Building Product: 5,192,256 0.83% 5,192,256 0.76%
Chemicals 4,086,174 0.65% 24,438,035 3.57%
Fisheries 1,285,857 0.21% 1,285,857 0.19%
Dates 551,021 0.09% 550,947 0.08%
Furniture 421,872 0.07% 441,872 0.06%

626,414,482 100% 694,920,882 100%

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they
fall due. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities

carlier than expected or may face difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial
liabilities as they fall due.

Management of liquidity risk

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

Due to nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining committed credit
lines available. The Company’s liquidity management involves projecting cash flows and considering the level
of liquid assets necessary to fulfill its obligation; monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and
external requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.
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35.2.2 Maturity analysis for financial liabilities

35.3

35.3.1

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to maturity date and represents the undiscounted cash flows. The

amounts in the table are the gross nominal undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments).

2020
Contractual cash  Up to one year Two to five
Total flow years
(Rupees)

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables 5,040,042 5,040,042 5,040,042 -
Lease liability 10,128,078 10,128,078 2,913,768 7,214,310
Short term borrowings 144,790,638 144,790,638 144,790,638 -
Long term finances 373,233 373,233 373,233 -
Long term deposits 201,186,275 201,186,275 57,008,680 144,177,595
Markup accrued 4,211,211 4,211,211 4,211,211 -

365,729,477 365,729,477 214,337,572 151,391,905

2019
Contractual cash Two to five
Total Aow Up to one year years
(Rupees)

Financial Liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities 4,870,238 4,870,238 4,870,238 -
Lease liability 12,994,971 12,994,971 2,489,296 10,505,675
Short term borrowings 142,156,359 142,156,359 142,156,359 -
Long term finances - secured 373,233 373,233 373,233
Long term deposits 223,762,800 223,762,800 60,217,706 163,545,094
Markup accrued 2,143,384 2,143,384 2,143,384

386,300,985 386,300,985 212,250,216 174,050,769

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange
rates and credit spreads (not relating to changes in the obligor’s/issuet’s credit standing) will effect the
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing
the return on risk.

The Company is exposed to interest rate and other price risk only.

Management of market risk

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimizing the return on risk. The Company manages the market risk by monitoring
exposure on marketable securities by following internal risk management policies and regulations laid down by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure atises on investment in

finance lease, finance and loans, investment in government securities, bank balances and borrowing from

banks. The Company carries a mix of fixed and floating rate financial instruments.

At December 31, 2020, details of the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial

instruments were as follows:

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets
Net investments in finance lease
Long term finance and loans

Long-term loans to employees - secured

Financial liabilities
Long term finance

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets

Bank balances

Financial liabilities

Short term borrowings

Effective interest
rate %

9.5% to 25%
15% to 27%
5% to 7%

0%
17.33% to 18.26%

5.5% to 11.25%

10.43% to 17.33%

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Carrying amount

2020 2019
————————————————— Rupees-----------------
323,368,379 383,222,542
61,080,649 74,568,731
494,201 1,093,911
384,943,229 458,885,184
373,233 373,233
10,128,078 12,994,971
10,501,311 13,368,204
93,895 81,616
93,895 81,616
144,790,638 142,156,359
144,790,638 142,156,359

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit

and loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit and loss account.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) profit
or loss by Rs. 0.144 million (2019: Rs. 0.142 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, remain
constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis which were used for the year ended December 31,

2019.
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35.3.5 Interest rate gap position

Yield / interest tate sensitivity position for on balance sheet financial insttuments based on the eatlier of contractual re-pricing
or maturity date is as follows:

2020
Exposed to matk-up / interest / profit
rate risk
Effective mark-
up / interest / Total More than
N Upto three |three months| More than
profit rate %
months and up to one year
one year
----------------- (Rupees) ----------------
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances 5.5% to 11.25% 93,895 93,895 - -
Long term finances and loans 15% to 27% 61,080,649 13,043,817 - 47,385,562
Long-term loans to employees - secured 5% to 7% 494,201 - 171,005 323,196
Net investment in finance lease 9.5% to 25% 323,368,379 - 136,216,126 187,152,253
Total financial assets as on December 31, 2020 385,037,124 13,137,712 136,387,131 234,861,011
Financial liabilities
Lease liability 17.33% 10,128,078 598,001 2,315,767 7,214,310
Short term borrowings 10.43% to 17.33% 144,790,638 - 144,790,638 -
Long term finances 0% 373,233 373,233 - -
Total financial liabilities as on December, 2020 155,291,949 971,234 147,106,405 7,214,310
On balance sheet gap 229,745,175 12,166,478  (10,719,274) 227,646,701
Total interest rate sensitivity gap 229,745,175 12,166,478 1,447,204 229,093,905
2019
Exposed to mark-up / interest / profit rate
risk
Effective mark-up
. More than
/ interest / profit Total
cate % Upto three | three months | More than
months and up to one|  one year
year
(Rupees)
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances 4.0% 81,616 81,616 - -
Long term finances and loans 15% to 27% 74,568,731 16,636,626 - 57,932,105
Long-term loans to employees 5% to 7% 1,093,911 - 361,228 732,683
Net investment in finance lease 9.5% to 25% 383,222,542 - 146,026,891 237,195,651
Total financial assets as on December 31, 2019 458,966,800 16,718,242 146,388,119 295,860,439
Financial liabilities
Lease liability 17.33% 12,994,971 438,657 2,050,639 10,505,675
Short term borrowings 10.43% to 17.33% 142,156,359 - 142,156,359 -
Long term finances 0% 373,233 373,233 - -
Total financial liabilities as on December, 2019 155,524,563 811,890 144,206,998 10,505,675
On balance sheet gap 303,442,237 15,906,352 2,181,121 285,354,764
Total interest rate sensitivity gap 303,442,237 15,906,352 18,087,473 303,442,237
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Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value ot future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest risk or currency risk) whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting
all similar financial instruments traded in the market. Presently, the Company is not exposed to equity
securities price risk as the Company does not hold any equity securities as at December 31, 2020.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide adequate returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce its cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it
in the light of changes in the economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to its shareholders or issue new shares. Consistent with
others in the industry, the Company also monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total debt divided by total capital employed:

2020 2019
Rupees
Total debt 10,128,078 12,994,971
Total equity 19,560,340 77,108,064
Total capital employed 29,688,418 90,103,035
Gearing ratio 34.11% 14.42%

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of its working capital
with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize liquidity
risk. Taken as a whole, the Company's risk arising from financial instruments is limited as there is no

significant exposure to price and cash flow risk in respect of such instruments.
Fair value and risk management

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value of underlying financial assets
are determined based on requirements of Regulation 66 of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulations, 2008 and directives if any, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan. Fair value of debt instruments other than Government Securities, which are unlisted or listed but
not traded regularly on stock exchange be valued at rates notified by Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan.
The fair value of financial assets traded in active market i.e. listed securities are based on the quoted market

price at determined by stock exchange in accordance with its regulations.

The table below analyses recurring fair value measurements for financial assets and financial liabilities.
These fair value measurements are categorized into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs to valuation techniques used. The different levels are defined as follows:
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371

37.2

SEGMENT INFORMATION

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in business activities from which
the Company eatns revenues and incur expenses and its results are regulatly reviewed by the Company's chief
operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance. Further, discrete financial information is available for each segment.

The Company's reportable segments under IFRS 8 ate therefore finance lease, loans and receivables, and
investments.

All assets and liabilities are allocated to teportable segments other than assets and liabilities not directly related
to the particular segment.

2020
L d
Finance lease oa.n S an Others Total
receivables
(Rupees)

Segment revenue 17,776,964 3,806,333 371,609 21,954,906
Segment profit 30,238,531 5,400,951 371,609 36,011,091
Segment result 36,011,091
Unallocated cost
Finance cost (21,569,869)
Administrative and general expenses (43,681,689)

(65,251,558)
Loss before tax (57,352,837)
Taxation (323,749)
Loss after tax (57,676,586)
Other information
Segment assets 323,368,379 61,080,649 - 384,449,028
Unallocated assets 21,168,949 21,168,949
Total assets 405,617,977
Segment liabilities 203,814,410 - - 203,814,410
Unallocated liabilities 182,243,227 182,243,227
Total liabilities 386,057,637
Net assets 19,560,340
Capital expenditure - - 145,600 145,600

Revenue reported above represents revenue from external customers. There are no intersegment sales.

Revenue from finance lease includes income from finance lease operations and gain/loss on termination of
lease. Revenue from loans and receivable includes mark-up income on loans to customers and employees, and
revenue from investments include gain on disposal of investments, dividend income and mark-up on
government securities.
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2019
Fi L d
tnance oar.ls an Investment Others Total
lease receivables
(Rupees)

Segment revenue 19,634,038 6,832,160 - 111,440 26,577,638
Segment profit 16,123,544 5,611,677 - 111,440 21,846,661
Segment result 21,846,661
Unallocated cost
Finance cost (22,459,467)
Administrative and general expenses (44,233,719)

(66,693,186)
Loss before tax (35,384,571)
Taxation (309,759)
Loss after tax (35,694,330)
Other information
Segment assets 383,222,542 74,568,731 - - 457,791,273
Unallocated assets 23,929,187 23,929,187
Total assets 481,720,460
Segment liabilities 226,993,289 - - - 226,993,289
Unallocated liabilities 177,619,107 177,619,107
Total liabilities 404,612,396
Net assets 77,108,064
Capital expenditure - - - (272,011) (272,011)

Geographical segment analysis
The Company’s operations are restricted to Pakistan only.

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 a global pandemic in March 2020. Like other parts of the
world, Pakistan also went into lockdown to reduce the spread of pandemic. The lockdown globally impacted the
economies and businesses in different facets. In Pakistan, the financial sector encountered an overall increase in
credit risk pertaining to its loans and advances portfolio in certain sectors, reduced income due to slowdown in
business activity, operational issues such as preventing spread of virus at work place and managing cyber security
threat, etc. Subsequent to the financial year-end and before the approval of these financial statements, most of
the lockdown restrictions have been lifted by the Government especially related to businesses and their
operations. The major aspects of COVID-19 on the Company’s risk management policies are discussed below
along with measures and controls adopted to mitigate those risks.

Similar to the financial relief offered by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) to the customers of financial
institutions governed by it, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its Circular (the
Circular) dated March 31, 2020 allowed NBFCs to defer customers’ principal repayments on their finance
obligations by up to one year along with relaxing other regulatory critetia related to restructuring / rescheduling
of financing limits. As per the Citcular, the customers were required to apply by June 30, 2020 to avail the
deferment. SECP subsequently extended the deadline for application till September 30, 2020.
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The Company has processed all the eligible deferment requests received and agreed with its customers. The
management of the Company has approved a total of 8 customers availing finance lease arrangements with
aggregate balance of Rs. 43.48 million as per the treatment prescribed in the Circular. All necessary legal and
procedural arrangements were executed to ensure the timely processing of eligible deferment requests.
Furthermore, the recovery status and credit risk of financing exposures under both regular and deferred
arrangements are being closely monitored amid changing economic and overall situation in the country due to

COVID-19.

39 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
The number of employees as on the year end were 32 (2019: 32) and average number of employees during the
year were 33 (2019: 33).
40 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the date of report and date of
authorization.
41 CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purposes of
comparison and better presentation. No significant rearrangements or reclassifications have been made in these
financial statements during the current year.
42 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorized for issue on 04 March, 2021 by the Board of Directors of the
Company.
V‘ \am N \
M. Shahzad Muhamm ubeen Mufti Javed Mehmood Bilal Mustafa
Chief Financial Officer irector Director Director

*

Filling for vacancy of CEO in process.
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HEAD OFFICE

56-F, Nazim-ud-Din Road,
F-6/1, Blue Area,

Islamabad.

Ph.# (051) 9217000, Fax.# (051)9217001
UAN: 111 11 00 11
Website: www.smebank.org

BRANCH NETWORK

SME Bank Ltd

Lahote Main Branch

84-B-1, Gulberg - 111

Ghalib Market

LAHORE

PH # (042) 35772130, 35772015
Fax # (042) 35772178

UAN # (042) 111-11-00-11

SME Bank Ltd

Alamgir Building Ground Floor
17-Edwards Road

(Mouj Darya Road)

LAHORE CITY.

PH # (042) 37224180, 37221008,
37224183,37224190

Fax (042) 37220663

SME Bank Ltd

923-Block-B, Maulana Shaukat Ali Road,
Faisal Town,

LAHORE.

PH # (042) 35218601-5,

Fax # (042) 35218603

SME Bank Ltd

56-F, Nazim-ud-Din Road,

F-6/1, Blue Area,

ISLAMABAD.

PH # (051) 9219260, 9213478, 9213743
Fax # (051) 9213742

UAN # (051) 111-11-00-11

SME Bank Ltd

State Life Building,

Ground Floot, 34-The Mall,
PESHAWAR

PH # (091) 5262780, 5285939, 5262779
Fax # (091) 285177

UAN (091) 111-11-00-11

SME Bank Ltd

26-27-], Trust Plaza, G.T. Road,
GUJRANWALA.

PH # (055) 9220767, 9200443
Fax # (055) 9200243

UAN # (055) 111-11-00-11
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SME Bank IL.td

Junaid Plaza, Igbal Road,
Near Committee Chowk,
RAWALPINDI.

PH # (051) 5553902, 5553922

SME Bank Ltd

Karachi Main Branch

B/9-B/3, Near Post Office, SI.T.E
Chorangi,

KARACHLI.

Ph # 2587144-6

Fax # (021) 32587144-46

UAN # (021) 111-11-00-11

SME Bank Ltd

Federal B-Area Branch

S 4 & S 5, Latif Terrace

Plot # St-4-D, Block 20,
FEDERAL B-AREA KARACHI
PH # (021) 36800771-3

Fax # (021) 36366947

UAN # (021) 111-11-00-11

SME Bank Ltd

Plot # 1.S-4, Sector 12,
Orangi Town Branch
KARACHI.

PH # (021) 36653424-5
Fax # (021) 6653425

SME Bank IL.td

P-341-B, Peoples Colony No.1,
Satyana Road,
FAISALABAD.

PH # (041) 9220481-4,

Fax # (041) 9220483

UAN # (041) 111-11-00-11

SME Bank I.td

Ground Floor, Al-Amin Building,
Opp. SCCI Paris Road,
SIALKOT.

PH # (052) 4266055, 9250566-7
Fax # (052) 4265041

UAN # (052) 111-11-00-11

SME Bank Ltd
Plot# 1-6/28 (404)
M.A. Jinnah Road,
QUETTA.

PH # (081) 2836816
Fax # (081) 2836817
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RECOVERY OFFICES

SME Bank Ltd

Model Services Building,
56-F, Nazim-ud-Din Road,
F-6/1, Blue Area,
Islamabad

Ph.# (051) 9217000

Fax # (51) 9217001

SME Bank Limited

17-E Edwards Road,

Lahore

PH.#(042) 37312078, 37355358

SME Bank Limited
Flat#06, Cantonment Plaza,
Abbottabad Cantt.
Abbottabad

PH.#(0992) 9310159
Fax#(0992) 9310311

SME Bank Limited

801-802, 8th Floor, Park Avenue
24-A, Block PECHS, Shahrah-e-Faisal
Karachi

PH.#(021) 34538041-34533886

SME Bank Limited

B # 104, Akhuwat Nagar, Airport Road
Sukkur

PH.#(071) 5804556-7
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TREASURY OFFICE

KARACHI
801-802, 8TH Floor, Park Avenue
24-A, Block PECHS
Shahrah-e-Faisal
KARACHI (EAST).
PH#(021) 34382310, 34382311

AUDIT OFFICES

LAHORE
Ist Floor, Alamgir Building
17 - Edward (Syed Mouj Darya) Road
LAHORE
PH # (042) 37232736

KARACHI
801-802, 8TH Floor
Park Avenue
24-A, Block PECHS
Shahrah-e-Faisal
KARACHI (EAST).
PH#(021) 34383100

SME LEASING LTD.

HEAD OFFICE
Office # 304, 3rd Floor
Business Arcade
Shahrah-e-Faisal
KARACHI
PH # (021) 34322128-9
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FORM OF PROXY

I/'We of being
a member of SME BANK LIMITED, hereby appoint

or failing him of

as my/our proxy, to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 18" Annual General Meeting of the

Bank to be held on March 30, 2021 at 3:30 pm and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand the day of signed by the said

in the presence of

Revenue Stamps:

Signature:

Name:

Designation:

Address:

Witness:

Signature:

Name:

Signature:

Name:

Notes:

1. A proxy must be a member of the Bank. However, an association (whether body corporate or
not) being a member of the Bank may appoint as its proxy one of its officers though not a
member of the Bank.

2. Proxy form, in order to be valid, must be duly signed and deposited at registered office of the
Bank not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.
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AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

|

|

|

|

The Company Secretary |

SME Bank Ltd. |

56-F, Nazim-ud-Din Road, [
F-6/1, Blue Area,

Islamabad. I

|

ol
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